
 

 

 

 
City of Woodstock 

Office of the City Manager 
Phone (815) 338-4301   Fax (815) 334-2269 

citymanager@woodstockil.gov 
www.woodstockil.gov 

121 W. Calhoun Street          Roscoe C. Stelford III  
Woodstock, Illinois 60098         City Manager 
 

                       WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

City Council Chambers 

April 21, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

                                 

Any Person Wishing to Address the City Council 

Must Approach the Podium, be Recognized by the 

   Mayor, and Provide Their Name and Address for the Record 

 

The complete City Council packet is available at the Woodstock Public Library, 

Woodstock City Hall, and via the City Council link on the City’s website, 

www.woodstockil.gov.  For further information, please contact the Office of the 

City Manager at 815-338-4301 or citymanager@woodstockil.gov. 

   

The proceedings of the City Council meeting are being audio-recorded only 

to aid in the preparation of the Minutes and are not retained as part of the 

permanent records of the City. 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL: 

 

 

A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:    Recognition of Councilwoman Julie Dillon 

     

Anyone wishing to address the Council on an item not already on the agenda may do 

so at this time. 

1. Public Comments 

2. Council Comments    

                   

CONSENT AGENDA: 
(NOTE: Items under the consent calendar are acted upon in a single motion.  There is 

no separate discussion of these items prior to the Council vote unless: 1) a Council 

Member requests that an item be removed from the calendar for separate action, or 2) 

a citizen requests an item be removed and this request is, in turn, proposed by a 

member of the City Council for separate action.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mailto:citymanager@woodstockil.gov


Woodstock City Council  

April 21, 2015 

Page Two 

 

 

B.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              

            April 7, 2015 City Council Meeting 

  

  

C.        WARRANTS:   3659  3660  MFT 546 

 

 

D. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Community and Economic Development Report – March 2015 

 Police Department Report – March 2015  

 Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes – January 13, 2015 

 Transportation Commission Minutes - January 21, 2015 

  

    

E. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 44 

 

1.  Liquor License Amendment – Adoption of an Ordinance Amending      

      Section 3.3.6. Classification of Licenses; Number and Fees of the            

      Woodstock City Code which would increase the number of Class A-6     

      liquor licenses by one for LIO Investment LLC d/b/a Porkies and the       

      number of Class E-3 liquor licenses by one for Mixin Mingle, Inc. 

 

2. Event Request and Outdoor Dining Requests – Tequilaville –               

      Approval of the following: 

              a.)  A Grand Opening/Cinco de Mayo event in the parking lot at 135 

                   W. Washington to include the serving of alcohol in the outdoor   

                   event space. 

              b.) Approval of outdoor dining and alcohol on the patio on the west- 

                   side of the restaurant. 

 

 3.   Liquor License Amendment – Adoption of an Ordinance amending        

                         Chapter 3, Liquor Control of the Woodstock City Code 

 

 

 4.     Annual Budget for FY15/16 – Approval of an Ordinance adopting the  

                         City of Woodstock’s FY15/16 Budget. 

 

 5. Schedule of Authorized Positions – Approval of the City of 

Woodstock’s General Salary Range Table and the Schedule of 

Authorized Positions for FY15/16.   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(44a)(Doc.1) 

 

 

 

 

 

(44b) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(44c)(Doc.2) 

 

 

 

(44d)(Doc.3) 

 

 

(44e) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Woodstock City Council  

April 21, 2015 

Page Three 

 

6. FY15/16 Water and Sewer Rates – Adoption of an Ordinance                 

     amending Title 6, Chapter 4 of the City Code pertaining to water and        

     sewer rates. 

 

            7. Award of Contract – Water Meters – Approval to waive the                    

                  requirement for competitive bids and award a contract for the purchase of 

                 water meters to Water Resources, Inc. 

 

 8.  Change Order – Water Treatment Plant – Adoption of a Resolution     

                 authorizing a Change Order for repair of a softener at the First Street         

                 Water Treatment Plant. 

          

           9.  Purchase – Ice Control Salt – Approval to purchase bulk Rock Salt         

                 from Compass Minerals America, Inc. for the 2015/2016 winter season.  

 

     10.  Fire Alarm System – Adoption of an Ordinance varying building code   

      provisions for property at 1300 South Eastwood Drive. 

 

                             11.   Dakota Ridge Phase 3 - Final Plat –Adoption of a Resolution granting 

                                    a third extension of time in which to record the Dakota Ridge Phase 3       

                                    Final Plat.                                             

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 

             12.   Downtown Perimeter Lighting 

 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), this 

and all other City Council meetings are located in facilities that are physically 

accessible to those who have disabilities.  If additional reasonable 

accommodations are needed, please call the City Manager’s Office at 815/338-

4301 at least 72 hours prior to any meeting so that accommodations can be made. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(44f)(Doc.4) 

 

 

 

(44g) 

 

 

 

(44h)(Doc.5) 

 

 

 

(44i) 

 

 

(44j)(Doc.6) 

 

 

(44k)(Doc.7) 

 

 

 

 

 

(44l) 

 



MINUTES 

WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

April 7, 2015 

City Council Chambers 

 

The regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM on Tuesday, 

April 7, 2015 in Council Chambers at City Hall. 

 

A roll call was taken. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph Staryzynski, Mark Saladin, Maureen Larson, RB 

Thompson, J. Dillon, Mayor Sager, M.Turner.  

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:   

 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, Finance 

Director Paul Christensen,  Community and Economic Development Director Cort Carlson, 

Chief Lowen, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, City Planner Nancy Baker,  Economic 

Development Coordinator Joe Napolitano. 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: City Clerk Arleen Quinn, Woodstock Celebrates Rodney Paglialong. 

 

Mayer Sager called the meeting to order, asked for Council consensus to move the meeting to 

Woodstock High School after the presentation by Woodstock Celebrates Rodney Paglialong. 

This move will provide everyone the opportunity to participate in the meeting, accommodate the 

open meetings act and to continue Woodstock City Council’s commitment to engage and invite 

the public with issues important to you.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING:   FY2015/2016 Budget  

 

A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:    Presentation by Woodstock Celebrates 

Woodstock Celebrates Rodney Paglialong, 325 Dacy St. Woodstock said there will be a Welles 

Centennial Festival on May 8-9, 15-16, 22-23. Mr. Paglialong spoke of Mr. Welles achievements 

as an actor and artist. For more information go to welleswoodstock.com 

 

There was a consensus by council to move the meeting to Woodstock High School to 

accommodate the community attending tonight. Council meeting will reconvene in twenty 

minutes at 7:35 PM. 

 

There were no additional public comments at Council Chambers. 

 

Meeting was reconvened at Woodstock High School at 7:35 PM. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph Staryzynski, Mark Saladin, Maureen Larson, RB 

Thompson, J. Dillon, Mayor Sager, M. Turner.  

 



   Woodstock City Council 

   4/7/15 

   Page 2 of 9  
 
Motion by J. Dillon, seconded by RB Thompson to open public hearing.  

 

A roll call was taken: Ayes: M. Saladin, M. Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, J. Dillon,  

Mayor Sager, Mike Turner . Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

FY 2015/16 Budget 

1. Public Comments: 

 

Molly Oakford, 1341 Winslow Circle, Woodstock, said that she would like to see recycling bins 

and waste bins be a different color and be in all parks. She said she would also like to see 

benches on walking paths at City Park. 

 

Scott Gessert, 810 Gerry St, Woodstock, said he is opposed to spending $120,000 for home rule 

census. He feels this should be on the 2016 referendum which would include the community in 

decision making and eliminate the cost of another special census. 

 

There were no additional public comments to proposed 2015/16 budget for city. 

 

Motion by M. Saladin, seconded by RB Thompson to close the public hearing on the proposed 

fiscal year 2015/16 budget for Woodstock City.  

 

A roll call was taken: Ayes: M. Saladin, M. Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, J. Dillon,  

Mayor Sager, Mike Turner . Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Public Comments: 

 

Alan Stebbons, chair of the Woodstock Historic Preservation Commission asked that the date of 

the minutes from November 24, 2015 be changed to Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

November  24, 2014. 

 

Council comments: 

 

M. Larson invited the public to the Opera House on April 22 for the Urban Panel results for the 

Courthouse. 

 

M. Saladin, member of the Economic Development Corporation, stated that the EDC has made 

great contacts with the Chicago export initiative so if you do have a manufacturing business and 

want to get into the export business we can put you in touch with the appropriate contact to assist 

you. 

 

There were no additional comments from Council. 

 

Consent Agenda:   

 

Motion by M Turner, second by J Dillon to concur with Consent Agenda Items B – E 10.  

 



   Woodstock City Council 

   4/7/15 

   Page 3 of 9  
 
A roll call was taken: Ayes: M. Saladin, M. Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, J. Dillon,  

Mayor Sager, Mike Turner . Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Mayor Sager asked for Items E 11 and 12 to be removed for consideration. 

RB Thompson asked for items E 2 and 3 to be removed for consideration. 

D. Frick asked for Item E 1 to be removed for consideration at the consensus of Council 

 

B.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              
            March 17, 2015 City Council Meeting 

 March 25, 2015 Special City Council Meeting 

 

  

C.        WARRANTS:       3657  3658   

 

 

D. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Community and Economic Development Report – February 2015  

 Historic Preservation Commission Minutes – January 26, 2015 

  

 

E. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 43 
 

1. Public Comments – Open Meetings – Adoption of Ordinance 15-O-20 adding 

Sections 1.5.4, 1.5.8 and 2.1.3 of the Woodstock Municipal Code to establish and 

record rules for public comment at all open meetings. 

 

2. Liquor License Moratorium – Adoption of Ordinance 15-O-21 establishing a 

moratorium on the acceptance of liquor license applications for certain applications. 

 

3. Waiver of Building Permit Fees – Adoption of Ordinance 15-O-22 waiving                             

building permit fees for Guy Spinelli LLC for property at 1150 McConnell Road. 

 

4. Revolving Loan Fund – Approval of the recommendation for the Revolving Loan 

guidelines and procedures. 

 

5.  Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund Agreement – Adoption of  Resolution 15-R-

10 authorizing a Tolling Agreement between the City of Woodstock and Illinois 

Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET) .  

 

6. Multi-Use Path Construction – Adoption of Ordinance 15-O-23 authorizing a joint 

agreement between the State of Illinois Department of  Transportation and the City of 

Woodstock for the construction of a multi-use path along Route 14 from Lake 

Avenue to West Lake Shore  Drive. 

 

 7.  2015-2016 Police-High School Liaison – Approval of the 2015-2016                       

Police-High School Liaison Agreement between District 200 and the City of Woodstock. 



   Woodstock City Council 

   4/7/15 

   Page 4 of 9  
 
 

 8.   Professional Services - Approval of the Engineering Services proposal  from 

Hampton, Lenzini and Renwick, Inc. for the 2015 Street Maintenance Resurfacing 

Program. It is recommended that the proposal from Hampton, Lenzini and Renwick, Inc. 

for preliminary engineering professional services for the 2015 Street Maintenance 

Resurfacing Program be approved for an amount not-to-exceed $65,208. 

 

 9.  Award of Bid – Mosquito Control Services – Recommendation to waive the 

requirement for competitive bids and award a contract for 2015 Mosquito Control 

Services to Clarke. It is recommended that the City waive the requirement for 

competitive bids to provide mosquito control services and award a contract for 2015 

mosquito control services to Clarke for the quoted price of $4,817 per each application of 

larvae control products and $4,376 per each application for adult mosquito spraying.  

 

           10. Change Order - Old Courthouse – Adoption of Resolution 15-R-11 authorizing 

Change Order 004 for the Old Courthouse. 

 

11. 217-219 N. Benton Street - Appeal of the Historic Preservation Commission Denial 

of Certificate of Appropriateness for 217-219 N. Benton Street. 

 

12. Governor Rauner’s “Turnabout Agenda” – Consideration and approval of a 

Resolution in Support of the “Turnaround Agenda” for Local Government Empowerment 

and Reform as requested by Governor Rauner.                                             

 

 

Item E 1 Public Comments – Open Meetings – Adoption of Ordinance 15-O-20 adding 

Sections 1.5.4, 1.5.8 and 2.1.3 of the Woodstock Municipal Code to establish and record 

rules for public comment at all open meetings. 

 

Donald Frick 334 S. Jefferson Woodstock, wondered what prompted this change.  Mayor Sager 

asked the city attorney to comment. Ruth Schlossberg said that the law changed in 2011 at the 

State level. This required the public to be permitted to address public officials under the rules 

established and recorded by the public body. In most of our communities we felt that as long as it 

was their practice to permit comments, and Woodstock is a model as the most meticulous in 

permitting public comments, we never took the position that you had to pass an ordinance setting 

up new rules. Last fall the attorney general’s office issued a couple of opinions, one of which 

was, regardless of the fact that a municipality had a long standing practice of operating in a 

certain way, because they failed to record them they could not rely on them as a legal defense. 

 

It became clear that the public counselor’s position was they actually need to be written rules. 

We had to pass this to comply with state law so we drafted rules that we tried to make both 

consistent with public counselor access opinions, making sure we were complying  with the State 

law interpretation and were consistent with  Woodstock’s habits of having consistently open 

comments.   

 



   Woodstock City Council 

   4/7/15 

   Page 5 of 9  
 
Mr. Frick was concerned that the public agenda not be to technical and that there be a audio and 

video recording of public meetings. 

 

Mayor Sager replied that Council is always willing to improve communications and this in no 

way is intended to restrict that. RB Thompson said that most cities have a limit of three minutes; 

Mayor Sager replied that Woodstock has never limited comments to a specific time allowing the 

community to express themselves, while Item 3 does provide guidelines, it will not limit time.    

 

Motion by M. Turner, seconded by J. Dillon concerning Public Comments – Open Meetings – 

Adoption of Ordinance 15-O-20 adding Sections 1.5.4, 1.5.8 and 2.1.3 of the Woodstock 

Municipal Code to establish and record rules for public comment at all open meetings. 

 

 A roll call was taken: Ayes: M. Saladin, M. Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, J. Dillon,  

Mayor Sager, Mike Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Item E 2 Liquor License Moratorium – Adoption of Ordinance 15-O-21 establishing a 

moratorium on the acceptance of liquor license applications for certain applications. 

 

RB Thompson questioned the moratorium on liquor license applications. He felt that the 

commission should be able to function even if the Mayor is out of town. The Mayor explained 

that the move away from a commission was to quickly address concerns with the applicant 

simply having to make an appointment with the mayor without having to schedule it at a monthly 

meeting. The moratorium is to be able to have more of a handle when large amounts of 

applications come forward except for special events such as: 

K Retailer Not for Profit Event 

KK Chamber of Commerce 

M-1 Retailers Special Event Including Consumption 

M-2 Retailers Special Event Beer and Wine Only/No Consumption 

N-1 Not for Profit Event Permit 

N-2 Not for Profit Daily Event Permit  

 

The reason for the ordinance is that currently the City is receiving a large number of liquor 

license requests, including requests to modify existing license classifications or establish new 

license classifications to accommodate unique business interests. City Council’s intent is to 

protect the public health and safety relative to licensing the sale of a controlled substance. 

 

M. Saladin, seconded by M. Turner was in favor of adopting an ordinance establishing a 

moratorium on the acceptance of liquor license applications for certain applications in the City. 

 

A roll call was taken: Ayes: M. Saladin, M. Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, J. Dillon,  

Mayor Sager, Mike Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Item E 3 Waiver of Building Permit Fees – Adoption of Ordinance 15-O-22 waiving                             

building permit fees for Guy Spinelli LLC for property at 1150 McConnell Road. 

 

Mr. Spinelli plans on moving his paper business, currently located in Huntley, IL, 



   Woodstock City Council 

   4/7/15 

   Page 6 of 9  
 
to this facility. His total investment in the property, building renovations, furniture, equipment, 

etc. is estimated to be in excess of $2 million. Guy’s E. Paper, LLC currently employs 28 full-

time personnel. With the proposed relocation and expansion, that number would increase by up 

to 10 additional within the first three months of relocating and 10 to 15 more in year two. 

Mr. Spinelli has asked if the City offered any incentives to assist with the costs associated with 

the purchase and renovation of the building which will bring an anticipated 28 new full-time jobs 

to the City with up to 60 jobs when the project is complete. Since he is prepared to move now he 

cannot wait for the potential approval of the Enterprise Zone and its associated benefits (50% 

building permit fee waiver, tax abatement).  

 

Mayor Sager and M. Saladin thanked Mr. Spinellli for investing in the community. This move is 

consistent with the City’s economic development goals of providing new employment 

opportunities and filling vacant industrial spaces.  

 

Motion by J. Dillon, seconded by M. Saladin to adopt an ordinance waiving building permit fees 

for Guy Spinneli LLC for property at 1150 McConnell Rd. 

 

A roll call was taken: Ayes:, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, M. Larson, 

Mayor Sager, Mike Turner . Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Item E 11. 217-219 N. Benton Street - Appeal of the Historic Preservation Commission Denial 

of Certificate of Appropriateness for 217-219 N. Benton Street. 

 

Paul Glenn of PSTM Architecture represents the owner Mark Bezik. He is familiar with the style 

of architecture and has worked on numerous projects of a similar nature. His firm is familiar with 

Department of Interior Rehab Standards, and he is a registered architect for the State Historic 

Commission. Mr. Glenn described the proposed work, focusing on the façade and brick work. He 

also noted the owner’s request to replace many of the windows and change the color scheme, 

referencing the five photos included in the proposal. Mr. Glenn also noted that the proposed 

brickwork would maintain the current diamond pattern, but would use new bricks, not recycled 

bricks.  

 

Mr. Glenn and Mr. Bezik previously appeared before the Commission seeking approval to install 

new storefronts and upper story windows, and to remove and replicate the existing brick work on 

both buildings. The majority of the discussion focused on the proposed removal of the existing 

brick veneer front facades and the installation of new brick across both facades. 

 

The Commission thought that the use of the same brick across both storefronts would create a 

single unified appearance that was not appropriate for the buildings and that once the brick was 

replaced there would be no original materials on the front of either building. 

 

Motion by M. Turner, seconded by M, Larson for M. Bezik and the Historic Preservation 

Commission to meet and work out the issue. 

 

A roll call was taken: Ayes: M. Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, J. Dillon,  



   Woodstock City Council 

   4/7/15 

   Page 7 of 9  
 
Mayor Sager, Mike Turner, M. Saladin . Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. 

Motion carried. 

 

Item E 12. Governor Rauner’s “Turnabout Agenda” – Consideration and approval of a 

Resolution in Support of the “Turnaround Agenda” for Local Government Empowerment 

and Reform as requested by Governor Rauner.     

 

Those in opposition to Item E 12 are listed below: 

Joel Sanchez 8718 Crystal Springs Rd, Woodstock 

Ken Edwards 6200 Joliet Rd  

Ryan Mains 10548 Oxford Dr Huntley 

Bob Passarella 765 Munshaw Ln Crystal Lake 

Vern Bauman 3702 Fawn Lane Wonder Lake      

M. Zimmerman 4511 Doty Rd Woodstock ( no show) 

Kieth Menge 1642 Tappan Woodstock 

Daniel Schroder 5714 Amber Way Johnsburg 

Guy Busch 4001 Crabapple Ln Wonder Lake  

Brian Johnson 1500 Wing St Elgin 

Art Peterson 164 Ridgewood Woodstock (no show) 

Bob Paddock 300 Buckingham Algonquin 

Ed Flavin 719 Harrison Algonquin 

Duane Peiffer 290 Verbena Ln Woodstock 

Jack Canniff 280 Columbia Elmhurst 

Jim Smith 11701 Timothy Woodstock 

Dave Heelein 412 Hill St Woodstock 

Shannon Laidig 410 Dean St Woodstock  (no show) 

Jennifer Waldock 329 Terry Woodstock (no show) 

Bill Donato 338 Hayward Woodstock 

Key Kittna 8010 Belvue Ave Spring Grove 

Bob Teuber 1251 Sandpiper Ln Woodstock 

Lynn Krause 417 Park Woodstock 

Rick Ross 401 Porloff St Woodstock (no show) 

Lenore Beyer Claw 875 Carol Woodstock (no show) 

Kristen Zahorle 8 Fenview Algonquin 

Michael Bissett 971 Brittany Bend  LITH 

Tom Aellig 826 Wheeler St Woodstock 

John Peter Creighton 2728 Crystal Lake Rd Cary ( no show) 

John Peters  4707 Ashley Dr McHenry 

Geogry Las 13901 Sunset Ridge Rd Woodstock (no show) 

Stan Gabrielse 1002 Powers Rd Woodstock (no show) 

Sandra Bacon 4020 Seneca Rd Wonder Lake (no show) 

Elisabeth Danato 338 Hayward Woodstock (no show) 

Allen Stebbas 508 Dean Woodstock 

Tim Knudsen 25903 Streit Rd Harvard 

Steve Bridges 11412 Halma Woodstock (no show) 

Joe Tachoer 15209 Manor Lane Homer Glen  



   Woodstock City Council 

   4/7/15 

   Page 8 of 9  
 
S. Klin 4507 McCauley Woodstock (no show) 

Karen Bergren 683 Regent Crystal Lake 

Derek Enger 8N331 Ethel  Winfield 

Patricia McCann 1653 Wheeler Woodsotck (no show) 

Jeff Albertz 630 N Sharon Woodstock 

Charles Barnes 121 Pleasant Woodstock 

Philip Groh 1012 Dakota Woodstock 

Zac Maxwell 525 E Jackson Woodstock 

Carlos Acosta 580 Prairie Ridge Woodstock 

Derrick Mootrey 432 W 1oth St Belvidere (no show) 

Royce Madulb 2503 S Hidden Trail Spring Grove 

Tim Brady 512 Blakey Woodstock 

Fred Spinyes 161 Nuthatch Dr Woodstock 

Thomas Krueger 9504 Thompson Woodstock 

Ron Schraeda McHenry 

Melinda Malo Woodstock 

Craig Hallenstein Woodstock 

Susane Kockler Woodstock 

Mike Gogola Huntley 

Brad Peter Libertyville 

Daved Andes Woodstock 

Bruce Portage Woodstock 

Jeffrey Schroeder Woodstock 

Nick Kockler Woodstock 

Robby Lopez Woodstock 

Jason Walters Woodstock 

 

Motion by M. Saladin, seconded by M. Turner to table the resolution. 

 

A roll call was taken: Ayes: M. Saladin, M. Larson, J. Starzynski, Mayor Sager, Mike Turner. 

Nays: RB Thompson, J. Dillon, None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

                                    

DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

 

             13.   Woodstock TIF Financial Analysis 

 

Council was asked for input on the future direction of TIF. Some items mentioned were: the 

VFW building to be turned into a three story parking garage, Courthouse staircase, stone veneer, 

roundabout, mural, and alley improvement. The Council agreed that they should look at 

extending the TIF and discuss it during the budget workshop. 

 

There were no additional council comments. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

Motion made by, M. Saladin seconded M. Larson by to adjourn to Executive Session for the 

purpose of discussing: 



   Woodstock City Council 

   4/7/15 

   Page 9 of 9  
 
 

            Litigation (Open Meeting Act: 5ILCS 120/2 (c) (11) 
Litigation, when an action against, affecting or on behalf of the particular body has been filed, and is 

pending before a court, or administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds that an action is 

probable or imminent, in which case the basis for finding shall be recorded and entered into the minutes 

of the closed meeting. 

 

The City of Woodstock vs. Scott Bialis/Redlight Boutique 

 

Council discussed a matter of imminent litigation. 

 

A roll call vote was taken:  Ayes: M. Saladin, M. Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, Mayor 

Sager, M.Turner, J. Dillon. Nays: None. Absentees: Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 
The Woodstock City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 12:09AM.  
 

 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: 
The City Council returned to Open Session at 12:22AM.   

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph Staryzynski, Mark Saladin, Maureen Larson, RB 

Thompson, J. Dillon, Mayor Sager, M. Turner 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  
 

STAFF PRESENT: Clerk Arleen Quinn, Economic Development Director Cort Carlson. 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

R. Stelford evaluation to May 5, 2015. 

 

No further comments on future agenda items 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion M. Saladin, seconded by J. Dillon, to adjourn the regular meeting of the Woodstock City 

Council to the April 21,  2015 City Council meeting. Ayes: M. Saladin, M. Larson, RB 

Thompson, J. Starzynski, Deputy Mayor Sager, J. Dillon, M. Turner.  Nays: None. Absentees:  

Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 12:25 A.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________ 

Arleen Quinn- City Clerk 























DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   1
TIME: 16:02:41                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100592  A-1 AIR COMPRESSOR CORP        DRYER MAINT ENANCE KIT          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         199.26
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          199.26

 100593  CONSERV FS                     REGULAR FUE L                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               54.12
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        23.32
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         60.10
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         44.28
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          72.06
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         45.15
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            1,882.35
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       211.70
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        270.36
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        186.21
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               19.98
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        45.84
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         26.13
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          32.97
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            1,139.44
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       235.28
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        305.88
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,655.17

 100594  AIRGAS                         SERVICE                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              67.14
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           67.14

 100595  ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE        UNIFORM CLE ANING               POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              21.77
                                        UNIFORM CLE ANING               POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              21.77
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           43.54

 100596  ASSOCIATED ELECTRICAL          SERVICE FOR  ELECTRIC FURNACE   TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI      2,041.31
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,041.31

 100597  WILLIAM T. BARUTH              CLOSEOUT-CA RBON LEAF PROGRAM   ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         2,765.16
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,765.16

 100598  BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS           BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   922.04
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   764.69
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,686.73



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   2
TIME: 16:02:43                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100599  BARDON DATA SYSTEMS            MAINTENANCE                     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   138.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          138.00

 100600  BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.         GIS UPDATE                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &      1,011.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,011.90

 100601  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            SUMP PUMP                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         199.99
                                        SUMP PUMP                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         169.99
                                        ANGLE STEEL                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                9.49
                                        TANK SPRAYE R, PUSHBROOM        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         115.98
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               14.77
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                6.49
                                        PLUMBING SU PPLIES              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                9.20
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              19.97
                                        KEYS FOR CI TY HALL             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                       4.98
                                        BASKETBALL BACKBOARD REPAIRS   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                         3.48
                                        LOCKS FOR S PEED TRAILER        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              19.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          574.33

 100602  BROWNELLS, INC.                QUICK ATTAC H REDI-MAG          POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             584.66
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          584.66

 100603  JUDITH BROWN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             174.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          174.00

 100604  BUSS FORD                      CALIPER                        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             147.58
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          147.58

 100605  JOHN P. BYARD                  KARATE SERV ICES                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           630.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          630.00

 100606  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.           SUPPLIES RE TURN                PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                  -109.66
                                        FINEREADER                     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   168.22
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           58.56

 100607  CABAY & COMPANY, INC           SUPPLIES                       RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             644.23
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   270.62
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   446.80



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   3
TIME: 16:02:45                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100607  CABAY & COMPANY, INC           SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             876.33
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,237.98

 100608  TARA CALABRESE                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              72.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           72.00

 100609  CALL ONE                       PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             58.22
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT           -305.57
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                57.21
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D         58.22
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR        545.90
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             -56.56
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION           4,088.09
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     196.09
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   139.89
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,221.09
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        184.15
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        488.50
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WIRELESS ALARM MONITORING / WIR ELESS ALARM MONI        625.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        8,301.13

 100610  CARQUEST AUTO PARTS STORES     INTERNAL TR ANS FILTER          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               13.85
                                        MODULE                         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              401.40
                                        TRANS FILTE R                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               13.01
                                        TRANS FILTE R RETURN            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              -13.85
                                        STEERING DA MPNER               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        34.39
                                        GEAR BOX,HO SES,TRANS LINE      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        548.12
                                        BRAKE CLEAN ER                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               39.72
                                        HEADLAMP BU LBS                 POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             146.94
                                        AIR FILTERS                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               54.36
                                        IDLER, TENS IONER               POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              38.98
                                        FUEL FILTER                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                6.40
                                        CORE RETURN                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION             -379.00
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               23.70
                                        CONSOLE                        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION               8.79
                                        WASHER PUMP                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              18.89
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          955.70



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   4
TIME: 16:02:45                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100611  CHICAGO COFFEE ROASTERY, INC.  CAFE SUPPLI ES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                             87.70
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           87.70

 100612  PAUL CHRISTENSEN               MAGNET                         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                       7.30
                                        GIFTCARD                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                      20.00
                                        HOTEL - WAT ERCON               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT             40.00
                                        FUEL - WATE RCON                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT             10.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           77.30

 100613  CL GRAPHICS                    SPRING EVEN T MAILER            PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     697.91
                                        SPRING 2015  EVENT SELF MAILER  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                   1,325.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,022.91

 100614  MERV COLLINS                   CONCERT AT THE LIBRARY         PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

 100615  COMMONWEALTH EDISON            UTILITY SER VICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         113.03
                                        UTILITY SER VICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         314.76
                                        UTILITY SER VICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          57.02
                                        UTILITY SER VICES               RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             797.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,282.06

 100616  COMPASS MINERALS               COARSE ROCK  SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,382.18
                                        COARSE ROCK  SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,565.65
                                        COARSE ROCK  SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,391.20
                                        COARSE ROCK  SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,422.28
                                        COARSE ROCK  SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,370.15
                                        COARSE ROCK  SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,423.28
                                        COARSE ROCK  SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,460.38
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       17,015.12

 100617  CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       8,981.83
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         971.13
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       3,421.40
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         454.33
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER           2,458.51
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION           17,671.91
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       33,959.11



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   5
TIME: 16:02:46                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100618  DELL COMPUTER                  COMPUTER EQ UIPMENT             PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING      6,792.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        6,792.00

 100619  JULIE DOERR                    RECERATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

 100620  ASHLEY ESUNIS                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              75.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           75.00

 100621  DAVID G. ETERNO                PROFESSIONA L SERVICES          ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUDICATION / A DMINISTRATIVE AD        487.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          487.50

 100622  JOHN FAHEY                     RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            70.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           70.00

 100623  FASTENAL COMPANY               MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               45.23
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          17.14
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           62.37

 100624  FINDAWAY WOLRD LLC             LIBRARY MAT ERIALS              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    50.89
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.89

 100625  ANNA FRIESEN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             260.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          260.00

 100626  KARINA FUENTES                 FRIDAY FAMI LY FUN NIGHT        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

 100627  GALE                           BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    95.16
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    91.66
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   124.55
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    18.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          330.27

 100628  SYNCHRONY BANK                 SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       189.91
                                        WIRE, CABLE  CUTTER             PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        24.12
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        35.88
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          249.91



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   6
TIME: 16:02:46                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100629  CHARLES GONZALEZ               RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            70.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           70.00

 100630  HAAS SERVICE SYSTEM            JANITORIAL SERVICES            PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING      2,100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,100.00

 100631  HACH COMPANY                   REPAIRS- TO UCH SCREEN          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         928.60
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          928.60

 100632  DON HANSEN'S ALIGNMENT AND     ALIGNMENT S ERVICES             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         75.00
                                        ALIGNMENT S ERVICES             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         75.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          150.00

 100633  CHAS. HERDRICH & SON, INC.     SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                             74.00
                                        SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                            114.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          188.95

 100634  JOHN HOCKERSMITH               RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             195.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          195.00

 100635  HOME STATE BANK                EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL                    57,204.28
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION          58,917.38
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   819.80
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             819.80
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                    12,679.85
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                   6,182.02
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                10,724.44
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER        22,456.86
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL      169,804.43

 100636  HOWARD LEE & SONS, INC         ROLL UP SUN  COVER              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              47.64
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           47.64

 100637  DON HUMBERTSON                 CONCERT AT THE LIBRARY         PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

 100638  HUNTLEY COLLISION CENTER INC   PAINT FENDE R                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              150.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          150.00



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   7
TIME: 16:02:46                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100639  INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL OF       MEMBERSHIP                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D        100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

 100640  INTERSTATE BATTERY             BATTERIES                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              106.35
                                        BATTERIES                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         85.45
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          191.80

 100641  LAURA KEYES                    LAURA INGEL LS WILDER PROGRAM   PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   195.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          195.00

 100642  SHIRLEY A. KOCH                RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             119.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          119.00

 100643  SALLY R. LESCHER               INSTRUCTOR CONTRACT            RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              97.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           97.50

 100644  LLOYD'S PAINT AND PAPER, INC.  MATERIALS                      RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              42.85
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           42.85

 100645  MARATHON HYDRAULIC MOTORS      REPAIR                         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              225.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          225.00

 100646  TIM MAUDE TREE SPACE SERVICE   REMOVE & RE LOCATE PEAR TREE    CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / PARKS                   300.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          300.00

 100647  MCHENRY ANALYTICAL WATER       SAMPLE TEST ING                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         412.50
                                        SAMPLE TEST ING                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          442.50

 100648  MC HENRY COUNTY COUNCIL OF     DINNER MEET ING EXPENSE         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             99.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           99.00

 100649  MENARDS                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          82.28
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          78.46
                                        CARBINER D HOOK                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                2.99
                                        PAINT                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               23.84
                                        POST SUPPOR T                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               10.98
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              172.34



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   8
TIME: 16:02:47                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100649  MENARDS                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    24.06
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    13.44
                                        VACUUM                         POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              99.99
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              62.63
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          571.01

 100650  MILLER ENGINEERING CO.         SERVICE                        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         262.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          262.50

 100651  MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT         MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              197.72
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          197.72

 100652  MUZAK LLC                      SERVICES                       AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    33.62
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           33.62

 100653  JOYCE A NARDULLI LLC           RETAINER FE E- AUGUST 2014      CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK      5,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,000.00

 100654  NAPA AUTO PARTS                U-JOINT                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              150.14
                                        SWITCH, SWI TCH PANEL           PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        17.23
                                        FENCE REPAI RS @ WATER WORKS    AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                     3.85
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          171.22

 100655  NASCO/FORT ATKINSON            SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   101.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          101.20

 100656  MAILFINANCE                    POSTAGE MAC HINE                PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    62.96
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           62.96

 100657  NEOPOST USA INC                POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT              3.56
                                        POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT             84.23
                                        POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                 4.86
                                        POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D         22.19
                                        POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUDICATION / A DMINISTRATIVE AD          3.24
                                        POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR          6.97
                                        POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION             8.59
                                        POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            WIRELESS ALARM MONITORING / WIR ELESS ALARM MONI          1.78
                                        POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &          0.65



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   9
TIME: 16:02:47                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100657  NEOPOST USA INC                POSTAGE MAC HINE INK            PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      25.92
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          161.99

 100658  NIERMAN LANDSCAPE & DESIGN     SNOW REMOVA L, SALT SPREAD      PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING        270.00
                                        SNOW REMOVA L, SALT SPREAD      PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING        540.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          810.00

 100659  NICOR                          UTILITY-GAS                     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             861.42
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          17.73
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        28.37
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              89.82
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         741.51
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        128.43
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   153.62
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,475.16
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        210.85
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,706.91

 100660  NORTHERN KEY & LOCK, INC.      KEY FOR FIR E DEPART (CITY HALL GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                      22.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           22.50

 100661  MOLLY O'CONNOR                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             490.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          490.00

 100662  STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY     GASKETS, SW ITCHES              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              123.81
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        133.98
                                        MATERIALS R ETURN               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        -77.84
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               50.05
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               98.08
                                        MURPHY SWIT CH                  ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND /  ENVIRONMENTAL M         53.51
                                        MATERIALS R ETURN               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION             -100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          281.59

 100663  BYRON PORTER                   WATER/SEWER  REFUND             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER            13.76
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           13.76

 100664  POOLBLU                        SERVICE                        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             234.00
                                        MATERIALS                      RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             229.93



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  10
TIME: 16:02:48                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100664  POOLBLU                        SERVICE- FI LTER REPAIR         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             234.00
                                        MATERIALS- FILTER REPAIR       RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             384.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,082.92

 100665  PRECISION SERVICES & PARTS,    ROTORS, BRA KES                 POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             251.88
                                        CORE RETURN                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        -44.00
                                        PARTS RETUR N                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        -61.84
                                        CONNECTORS                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              44.03
                                        FAN ASSEMBL Y                   POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              21.71
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        320.16
                                        ROTORS, BRA KE PADS             PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       168.51
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        172.98
                                        ROTOR ASSEM BLY                 POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              83.96
                                        MATERIALS                      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       387.43
                                        CORE RETURN                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        -44.00
                                        ROTORS, BRA KE PADS             PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       399.39
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,700.21

 100666  QUILL CORPORATION              SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    55.45
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    48.97
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   186.89
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    63.97
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          355.28

 100667  PENGUIN RANDOM HOUSE LLC       BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    90.00
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    63.75
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    26.25
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    30.00
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    37.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          247.50

 100668  RECORDED BOOKS, LLC            BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    41.60
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    99.00
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    27.80
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    82.20
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   198.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          448.60



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  11
TIME: 16:02:48                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100669  RENAISSANCE RESTORATION INC    OLD COURTHO USE EXTERIOR STAIRS TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI     15,959.19
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       15,959.19

 100670  REICHERT CHEVROLET & OLDS      GASKETS, CA SE, FLUID           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            2,325.15
                                        BUSHINGS                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        18.61
                                        CORE RETURN                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION             -300.00
                                        COOLER LINE S                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        103.18
                                        COVER                          PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        13.11
                                        PIPE                           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         37.61
                                        LAMP                           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         71.99
                                        SWITCH, WIR ING HARNESS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              255.06
                                        REAR AXEL S EAL                 PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        20.94
                                        SERVICE                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               95.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,640.65

 100671  CHERYL REIMER                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              75.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           75.00

 100672  SAMS CLUB                      SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                            179.04
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          179.04

 100673  RORY SCHNEIDER                 EAR PLUG SE T, CRIMPER, FUNNEL  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              94.47
                                        RETHREAD DY E                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA          3.15
                                        SOCKET SETS                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             700.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          797.62

 100674  SCHMIDT PRINTING               BLUE REQUES T SLIPS             PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   127.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          127.00

 100675  ELIZABETH RYAN                 PROGRAM SUP PLIES               PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    68.21
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           68.21

 100676  ASHLEY RYMER                   RENTAL REFU ND                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

 100677  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO            SUPPLIES                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         100.88
                                        RETURN CRED IT                  PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        -7.06
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           93.82



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  12
TIME: 16:02:48                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100678  SMITH ECOLOGICAL SYSTEMS INC.  DETECTOR/MO NITOR/SENSOR        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,455.00
                                        SERVICE                        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         178.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,633.75

 100679  STAN'S OFFICE TECHNOLOGIES, IN COPIER ALLO WANCE               PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   423.27
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          423.27

 100680  TODAY'S UNIFORMS               UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              12.00
                                        UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              45.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           57.95

 100681  ULINE                          MATERIALS                      PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   236.56
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          236.56

 100682  ULTRA STROBE COMMUNICATIONS    MATERIALS                      POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             316.95
                                        REMOVE & IN STALL NEW CAMERA    CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / PUBLIC SAFETY           460.95
                                        REMOVE & IN STALL NEW CAMERA    CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / PUBLIC SAFETY           460.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,238.85

 100683  USALCO                         LIQUID ALUM INUM SULFATE        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      5,588.21
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,588.21

 100684  U. S. A. BLUE BOOK             MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          71.53
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        136.50
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        332.52
                                        LAB SUPPLIE S                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        370.66
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          911.21

 100685  UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC PLACEMENTS                     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   208.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          208.95

 100686  UNITED LABORATORIES            KOOL AMBER HI TEMP LESS TACK   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        886.86
                                        WEED & BRUS H                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              675.88
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,562.74

 100687  VIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY        CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,325.00
                                        CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,096.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,421.00



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  13
TIME: 16:02:48                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100688  WEST SIDE TRACTOR SALES        ISOLATOR                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               70.71
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           70.71

 100689  H. W. WILSON COMPANY           BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   348.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          348.50

 100690  CITY OF WOODSTOCK              REPLENISH P D PETTY CASH        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              30.26
                                        REPLENISH P D PETTY CASH        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              11.92
                                        REPLENISH P D PETTY CASH        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              55.02
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           97.20

 100691  WOODSTOCK HICKSGAS, INC.       LP GAS SUPP LY                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              170.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          170.00

 100692  WOODSTOCK INDEPENDENT          PUBLISHING SERVICES            ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           360.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          360.00

 100693  WOODSTOCK POWER EQUIPMENT, INC FUEL INLET                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                1.19
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            1.19

 100694  MARY JO YUMOL                  PROGRAM FEE  REFUND             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L                        90.00
                                        MEMBERSHIP REFUND              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          120.00

 100695  JOSE M. ZAMORANO               SERVICE                        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             170.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          170.00

 100696  ZEI DECORATING                 THEATER CEI LING SERVICE        PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                   3,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,000.00

 100697  ALZHEIMER'S ASSOCIATION        HEALTHY HAB ITS PROGRAM         PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

 100698  APWA - CHICAGO METRO CHAPTER   EDUCATIONAL  SEMINAR            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         40.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           40.00

 100699  ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE        UNIFORM REN TAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE               9.82
                                        UNIFORM REN TAL SERVICES        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                         9.83



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  14
TIME: 16:02:49                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100699  ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE        UNIFORM REN TAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA          9.83
                                        UNIFORM REN TAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                9.83
                                        UNIFORM REN TAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           8.82
                                        UNIFORM REN TAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT          8.83
                                        UNIFORM CLE ANING               POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              21.77
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           78.73

 100700  ARARMARK                       UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               86.98
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           86.98

 100701  ARLINGTON POWER EQUIPMENT INC  CHAINSAW & BLADES FOR ARBORIST PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       678.46
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          678.46

 100702  ASSOCIATED ELECTRICAL          CHECK GENER ATOR CONTROLS       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        125.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          125.00

 100703  BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS           BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   637.85
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   825.65
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   457.90
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   807.76
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 2,026.79
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   376.76
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   526.46
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 1,324.06
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        6,983.23

 100704  BAKER & TAYLOR CONTINUATION    BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    57.30
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    26.77
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           84.07

 100705  BAKER & TAYLOR INC             LIBRARY SYS TEM ON WEB          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    86.13
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           86.13

 100706  BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.         SEWER TELEV ISING               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI      1,225.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,225.00

 100707  BERT'S WELDING INC             WELDING                        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &        750.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          750.00



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  15
TIME: 16:02:49                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100708  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         19.97
                                        DRINKING FO UNTAIN REPAIRS      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        75.97
                                        MATERIALS R ETURN               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       -33.99
                                        DRINKING FO UNTAIN REPAIR PARTS PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        13.45
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         32.97
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          108.37

 100709  BOTTS WELDING SERVICE          DONATO WOOD S PATH - HS PROJECT PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       309.09
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          309.09

 100710  BROWNELLS, INC.                SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             142.74
                                        SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              14.15
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          156.89

 100711  JUDITH BROWN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             128.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          128.00

 100712  ROBERT BURG                    RECREATION INSTRUCTION         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           240.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          240.00

 100713  CHICAGO COMMUNICATIONS         LABOR/MATER IALS SERVICE        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             285.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          285.00

 100714  CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY           MATERIALS                      PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   271.18
                                        MATERIALS                      PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   115.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          386.68

 100715  COLUMBIA PIPE & SUPPLY COMPANY GASKETS                        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI      1,372.11
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,372.11

 100716  COMCAST                        COMMUNICATI ONS                 PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   394.85
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          394.85

 100717  COMMUNITY PLUMBING COMPANY     UNPLUG SHOW ER DRAIN            RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              75.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           75.00

 100718  CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        399.33
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          399.33



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  16
TIME: 16:02:49                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100719  CROWN RESTROOMS                BATES PARK                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       195.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          195.00

 100720  DECRAENE'S SERVICE CENTER      WINCH SERVI CE                  POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

 100721  DEMCO                          SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   234.00
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   704.26
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          938.26

 100722  DEWANE STUDIO                  DADDY DAUGH TER DANCE           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           403.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          403.75

 100723  DIRECT FITNESS SOLUTIONS, LLC  PARTS                          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             287.00
                                        LABOR/TRIP CHARGE              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             130.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          417.00

 100724  DI LAR'S EMBRIODERY            EMBROIDERY SERVICES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               32.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           32.00

 100725  EBSCO INFORMATION SERVICES     ONLINE SUBS CRIPTIONS           PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 6,378.78
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        6,378.78

 100726  ESPN                           SUBSCRIPTIO N                   RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              14.97
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           14.97

 100727  GALE                           BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    22.39
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    24.49
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    63.67
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    74.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          185.42

 100728  GAVERS ASPHALT PAVING          SAND DELIVE RED                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        396.27
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          396.27

 100729  GAYLORD BROTHERS, INC.         BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    77.26
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           77.26



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  17
TIME: 16:02:49                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100730  GOLF ACADEMY AT TERRA COTTA    GOLF INSTRU CTION               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            60.00
                                        GOLF INSTRU CTION               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           105.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          165.00

 100731  HAAS SERVICE SYSTEM            JANITORIAL SERVICES            PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING      2,100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,100.00

 100732  HD SUPPLY                      MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        197.52
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          197.52

 100733  VI HOAGLUND                    REFUND TEMP  MEMBERSHIP         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              65.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           65.00

 100734  JACK DOHENY COMPANIES          COUPLERS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         90.30
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           90.30

 100735  ILLINOIS LIBRARY ASSOCIATION   MEMBERSHIP                     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   235.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          235.00

 100736  CHANDAN KALLIA                 WATER/SEWER  REFUND             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER             5.91
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            5.91

 100737  KII ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS INC ELECTRICAL WORK- INSTALL TRACK PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING      1,196.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,196.00

 100738  LAND CONSERVANCY OF MCHENRY    BRUSH REMOV AL-RYDER WOODS      ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND / ENVIRONMENTAL M      6,270.00
                                        PASSIVE PAR K MAINTENANCE       ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND /  ENVIRONMENTAL M      1,760.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        8,030.00

 100739  ABRAHAM LINCOLN                LIBRARY MAT ERIALS              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   183.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          183.00

 100740  LIONHEART CRITICAL POWER       ANNUAL SERI VE TO GENERATORS    PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING        573.00
                                        REPLACEMENT  OF RADIATOR        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      4,969.00
                                        SERVICE TO GENERATORS          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        444.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,986.75

 100741  JANICE MALSBERRY               WATER/SEWER  REFUND             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER            47.83
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           47.83



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  18
TIME: 16:02:50                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100742  MDC ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES     GARBAGE STI CKERS               ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         4,020.00
                                        YARDWASTE S TICKERS             ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         1,200.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,220.00

 100743  MARSH USA INC                  LIQUOR INSU RANCE               PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                            990.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          990.00

 100744  MC HENRY COUNTY HISTORICAL     ANNUAL MEMB ERSHIP              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT            500.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          500.00

 100745  MENARDS                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              33.82
                                        FLEXILLA CO RD                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              34.99
                                        GRINDER WHE EL                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         60.97
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         43.14
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         13.99
                                        DEHUMIDIFIE R AND SUPPLIES      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        221.96
                                        CITY HALL C USTODIAL SUPPLIES   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                      19.61
                                        WWW SUMMERI ZATION SUPPLIES     AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    31.86
                                        SHOP MAINTE NANCE SUPPLIES      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       137.05
                                        SHOP SHELVI NG SUPPLIES         PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        29.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          627.34

 100746  METROPOLITAN INDUSTRIES, INC.  SERVICE TO SAVANNAH GROVE LS   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      3,260.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,260.00

 100747  MIDWEST TIME RECORDER, INC.    TIME CLOCK- STAMP EQUIPMENT     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             115.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          115.00

 100748  MIDWEST TAPE                   LIBRARY DVD S                   PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   850.06
                                        LIBRARY CDS                     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   519.65
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,369.71

 100749  MILLER ENGINEERING CO.         SHERIFF'S H OUSE HVAC           TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI        315.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          315.00

 100750  MAILFINANCE                    POSTAGE EQU IPMENT              POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             153.51
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          153.51



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  19
TIME: 16:02:50                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100751  JAY AND LORI NERLAND           MAILBOX REP LACEMENT            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               75.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           75.00

 100752  NICOR                          UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         24.89
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         26.07
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         79.83
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         85.49
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         26.66
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         29.58
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         17.76
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         27.25
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         23.14
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         24.30
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         26.29
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          391.26

 100753  NORTHWEST HERALD               SUBSCRIPTIO N                   PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     276.60
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          276.60

 100754  OFFICE MAX CONTRACT, INC.      TONER CARTR IDGES               PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 1,227.56
                                        TONER CARDT RIDGES              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   447.98
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,675.54

 100755  OPP. FRANCHISING, INC.         CLEANING SE RVICE               RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER           1,507.00
                                        CUSTODIAL C ONTRACT CLEANING    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                   1,373.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,880.00

 100756  PACIFIC TELEMANAGEMENT         MONTHLY FEE                     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    33.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           33.00

 100757  PENWORTHY COMPANY              BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 4,013.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,013.20

 100758  PIPE VIEW                      TELEVISE AN D DOCUMENT          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      1,320.00
                                        TELEVISE AN D DOCUMENT          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            1,320.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,640.00

 100759  POOLBLU                        SERVICE                        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              96.00



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  20
TIME: 16:02:50                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100759  POOLBLU                        MATERIALS                      RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              99.85
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          195.85

 100760  EDEN POWELL                    DANCE RECIT AL COSTUMES         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            91.05
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           91.05

 100761  PROQUEST                       CHICAGO TRI BUNE ELECTRONIC     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 8,210.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        8,210.00

 100762  QUILL CORPORATION              SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    96.29
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    11.99
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   156.54
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    23.97
                                        INK CARTRID GES                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &        200.60
                                        INK CARTRID GES                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         41.39
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          530.78

 100763  RALPH'S GENERAL RENT-ALL       SOD CUTTER - PEACE PARK        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        64.68
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           64.68

 100764  PENGUIN RANDOM HOUSE LLC       BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           30.00

 100765  RECORDED BOOKS, LLC            DVDS                           PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    41.60
                                        CDS                            PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   577.30
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          618.90

 100766  RESEARCH TECHNOLOGY            SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   454.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          454.00

 100767  ROTARY CLUB OF WOODSTOCK       DUES AND ME ETING EXPENSE       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT            215.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          215.00

 100768  R.N.O.W. INC                   LEADER HOSE                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        119.53
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          119.53

 100769  BRIDGET SALADIN                RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           160.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          160.00



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  21
TIME: 16:02:50                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100770  BECKY VIDALES                  SENIORS SUP PLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY EVENTS               28.80
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           28.80

 100771  SHAW MEDIA                     ADVERTISING                     PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                   1,542.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,542.50

 100772  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO            PAINT                          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           7.06
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            7.06

 100773  COURTNEY SLINKO                LITTLE SPOR TSTARS              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           300.00
                                        YOUTH VOLLE YBALL               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           325.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          625.00

 100774  WILLIAM D. SMITH               CDL RENEWAL                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         60.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           60.00

 100775  STATELINE TECHNOLOGIES         TECH SERVIC ES                  PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 3,510.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,510.00

 100776  HARRIS COMPUTER SYSTEMS        ICONNECT FE ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT            313.17
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          313.17

 100777  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY       CROUZET REL AY                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        647.16
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          647.16

 100778  SUBURBAN LABORATORIES          OUTSIDE TES TING                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        518.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          518.00

 100779  TEI LANDMARK AUDIO             MATERIALS                      PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    35.19
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           35.19

 100780  TICKET RETURN SOFTWARE         ONLINE SING LE TICKET SALES FEE ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         1,156.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,156.00

 100781  TRANS UNION RISK & ALTERNATIVE SEARCH FEES                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION               1.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            1.75

 100782  TODAYS BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC  ANNUAL LICE NSE & SVC AGREEMENT PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 1,095.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,095.00



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  22
TIME: 16:02:50                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100783  ULTRA STROBE COMMUNICATIONS    VEHICLE EQU IPMENT              CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / PUBLIC SAFETY         2,551.70
                                        DIAGNOSE PR OBLEM               CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / PUBLIC SAFETY            55.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,606.70

 100784  UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC SERVICES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    19.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           19.90

 100785  UNITED LABORATORIES            LIQUID IMPA CT                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      4,993.72
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,993.72

 100786  UNITED POSTAL SERVICE          METER # 245 65138               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT            464.57
                                        METER # 245 65138               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT            780.04
                                        METER # 245 65138               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                10.15
                                        METER # 245 65138               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D        170.76
                                        METER # 245 65138               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         67.04
                                        METER # 245 65138               WIRELESS ALARM MONITORING / WIR ELESS ALARM MONI        205.31
                                        METER # 245 65138               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           107.01
                                        METER # 245 65138               PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     195.12
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,000.00

 100787  U. S. POSTMASTER               CITY SCENE 2015                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION         1,814.50
                                        CITY SCENE 2015                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT          1,209.48
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,023.98

 100788  VERIZON WIRELESS               WIRELESS SE RVICE               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             41.39
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT             71.32
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE               POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              72.33
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D        147.89
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE- PUB WKS ADMI GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         97.85
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE- BUILD/EQUIP  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         38.35
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE- PARKS        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR        166.66
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE- STREET       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR        211.60
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           144.45
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        137.13
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          64.22
                                        WIRELESS SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        123.63
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,316.82



DATE: 04/13/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  23
TIME: 16:02:50                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003660
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100592 TO CHECK # 100796

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100789  WATER RESOURCES, INC.          WATER METER S                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      2,950.00
                                        COUPLINGS, PINS, SEAL          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      1,179.00
                                        WATER METER S                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      6,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       10,129.00

 100790  DARYL WELLS                    PROGRAM FEE  REFUND             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L                        87.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           87.00

 100791  WOODSTOCK POWER EQUIPMENT, INC TRAILER SUP PLIES               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       172.97
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          172.97

 100792  WOODSTOCK OPERA HOUSE          GOVERNORS M EETING              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             23.00
                                        SENIORS JAN -APRIL 2015         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY EVENTS              150.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          173.00

 100793  YOUNG MASTERS MARTIAL ARTS     ROOM RENTAL                     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             630.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          630.00

 100794  JOSE M. ZAMORANO               SERVICE                        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             175.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          175.00

 100795  ZEE MEDICAL SERVICES           MEDICAL SUP PLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE               9.31
                                        MEDICAL SUP PLIES               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                         9.32
                                        MEDICAL SUP PLIES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA          9.32
                                        MEDICAL SUP PLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                9.32
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           37.27

 100796  ZUKOWSKI, ROGERS, FLOOD &      LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT          3,637.50
                                        LEGAL FEES                     ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND /  ENVIRONMENTAL M        247.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,885.00

                                                                                                       WARRANT TOTAL      434,644.55















































Parks & Recreation Commission 
01/13/2015 

Page 1 of 4 

 
CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 
 

January 13, 2015 
City Council Chambers 

 
The regular meeting of the Woodstock Parks & Recreation Commission was called to order at 7:05 PM by 

Chairman Mike McCleary on Tuesday, January 13, 2015 in Council Chambers at City Hall.  
 
A roll call was taken. 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Mike McCleary, Steve Erwin, Nic Kearfott, Laurel Sheahan,  
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Recreation Director Dave Zinnen, Parks and Facility Superintendent Ernie Nelson, Assistant 

Director of Public Works, Jeff Van Landuyt, Woodstock Transportation Commission Chairman Andrew Celentano  
 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Amy Weber 
 
C. FLOOR DISCUSSION: 

1.  Public comments 

 No Comments 

2.  Commission Member comments for any item not on the agenda 

 No Comments 

 

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   
Motion by N. Kearfott, second by Laurel Sheahan to accept the December 9, 2014 Meeting minutes with the 

following change:  

 

Page 3, item 3, first sentence, change date to October 31, 2015  

 

Ayes:  Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None.  Motion carried 

 

E. TRANSMITTALS:  (No discussion or action requested) 

 

1.  Recreation Department Report for December 2014 

 

D. Zinnen stated that he didn’t have anything to add to the report except the $600.00 locker room floor leak.  

He described the difficulties he faced trying to find someone to fix the leak Christmas week.  He stated that 

the leak was difficult to get to and required cutting into concrete to reach the leaking pipes, fixing the pipes 

and then pouring the concrete back in.  He stated, however, that everything went smoothly.    D. Zinnen 

stated that he was satisfied with the numbers on the Department Report even though he was concerned about 

the amount of money being put into pool maintenance.   

 

M. McCleary asked if there were a large number of Harrison School District participants.  D. Zinnen replied 

that they didn’t have a large number from Harrison School District but they had an entire basketball team.  

He stated that they like our basketball program better than McHenry’s, plus we have aquatics.  M. McCleary 

asked if the fees for them are the same.  D. Zinnen replied there is a nonresident fee for basketball and 

aquatics.   M. McCleary asked if there were any questions for D. Zinnen.  No questions. 

 

 



Parks & Recreation Commission 
01/13/2015 

Page 2 of 4 

 
 

2.  Parks Division Report for December 2014 

 

E. Nelson stated that they didn’t have much snow removal.  He stated that they were able to seal the 

courthouse windows and that they had painting projects at the Library and City Hall.  He added that they also 

put together a Building Maintenance Crew Leader position.  M. McCleary asked if there were any Rotary 

sign updates.  E. Nelson replied that he’s had no contact with them.  M. McCleary stated that maintaining the 

Rotary sign has been a time consuming task for a long time, and that updating that technology would be nice.  

M. McCleary asked if there were any questions for E. Nelson.  No questions. 

 

F. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

1.  None 

 

 

G. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

1.  Interaction with WHS EDD Students for the Design of Elevated Path over Wetlands in City Owned 

Parks 

 

Jeff Van Landuyt, Assistant Director of Public Works City of Woodstock and Staff Liaison for the 

Woodstock Transportation Commission, of 326 Washington Street, accompanied by Andrew Celentano, 

Chairman of the Woodstock Transportation Commission of 2116 Greenview Drive, approached the podium 

to discuss the WHS EDD project.  J. Van Landuyt stated that the Woodstock Transportation Commission 

had worked on projects with the WHS EDD class for a number of years on transportation related issues.  He 

stated that Steve Thompson, WHS Project Lead the Way Coordinator, asked for another project for the next 

semester.  He stated that the students designed a roundabout as an alternative to the 5-way intersection at 

Lake Street, Madison Street, and South Street the previous semester and S. Thompson is asking for another 

project that the students can design and build.  He stated that the William C. Donado Conservation Area has 

a walk-way through the wetlands that is hazardous, has broken skids with rusty nails sticking out of them, 

and not currently maintained by Woodstock Public Works.  He stated that this would be a good project for S. 

Thompson and the students who were already given the design to build a prototype.  J. Van Landuyt invited 

the Commission to meet with the students at their next meeting.  He stated that they will bring in 

professionals to meet with the students, such as the McHenry Conservation District and the Soil and Water 

District.  He stated that this would be a good project and the students would gain valuable experience putting 

in a walk-way through one of their own parks.  He also added that the Woodstock Grant Writer Terri Wilcox 

is looking to get a $10,000 grant and $10,000 matching funds to help fund the project.  He asked the 

Commission if they would want to work with students to review and approve their project.  He stated that he 

and A Celentano can continue to work with the students up until February 10, 2015.  He then introduced A. 

Celentano to discuss the background of their involvement with the WHS Project Lead the Way EDD 

students. 

 

A.  Celentano stated that he is there to give his own opinions and was not speaking on behalf of the 

Woodstock Transportation Commission.  He stated that in 2010, a group of high school students did a 

presentation on the overpass on Calhoun Street, at one of the McHenry Transportation Commission 

meetings, and he asked the students to perform the same presentation at the Woodstock Transportation 

Commission.   After that presentation, he asked the teacher and students to put together another presentation 

for the Woodstock Transportation Commission, and they did.   He stated that two years later, after several 

projects and presentations, these projects are now part of a graded class and part of the student’s curriculum.  

He stated that this project has helped students attain scholarships and internships.  One student was awarded 

a $15,000 scholarship to Bradley University and another student was accepted into Perdue University and 

received a one-year internship in Berlin, Germany.   He described several other projects that WHS EDD 

students have done including a bike path and a 5-way roundabout. He stated that J. Van Landuyt brought in 



Parks & Recreation Commission 
01/13/2015 

Page 3 of 4 

 
several other professionals to talk to the students and give them input on their projects.  He stated that after 

the roundabout presentation, all five students involved were offered an internship with an engineering 

company.  He stated, that in his opinion, this project should be expanded to include colleges and universities 

for future engineers and planners.  He then asked the commission if they had any questions. 

 

M. McCleary asked if the water table fluctuations were causing the movement of the skids in the William C. 

Donado Conservation area.  J. Van Lanudyt responded that they are moving because there is no base, they 

are just laid on top of the ground.   M. McCleary asked if this is going to be a permanent structure.  J. Van 

Landuyt replied that it will be permanent in the sense that it won’t have to be removed every year, and they 

are hoping to get a long life out of it.  He stated that whatever the student’s build will have to be something 

the City will agree to have in their park.  He stated that like other parks the water table does go up and down, 

however they told the students that one of the stipulations for their design is that they cannot block the flow 

of water.  He stated that they will have professionals meet with the students to help them develop their 

design for the walk-way.  He stated that we are trying to educate these students but we are learning things as 

well.   

 

S. Erwin stated that none of the projects the students have presented in the past have been built but this one 

will.  J. Van Landuyt stated that is correct and the William C. Donato walk-way is an existing problem in the  

City.  A. Celentano stated that none of the projects that the students have proposed have been implemented 

in the City.   He stated that they don’t guarantee the students anything because a lot of things have to go on 

before anything gets done and he is hoping that, at some point, they will see their ideas implemented.  J. Van 

Landuyt added that so far they haven’t found any projects that the students could actually build until now, 

though he’s hoping there will be more future opportunities for hands-on building projects in the City.   

 

N. Kearfott asked what the initial funds were that they have to start with to get a matching grant and what 

does the students need to start the project.   J. Van Landuyt replied that the City of Woodstock and the Public 

Works Department will give them everything they need to build the prototype after the design is approved, 

then the City can come up with $10,000 to match the $10,000 grant to build it.   He stated that the reason 

they are bringing the project to this Commission is because it’s not a transportation project and we are asking 

you to approve it is because it’s a park wetland walk issue.   M. McCleary asked that if it were constructed 

than it would be constructed by the Public Works Department.  J. Van Landuyt replied yes.  S. Erwin asked 

for details on the class.  J. Van Landuyt replied that the name of the class is Engineering Design and 

Development Project Lead the Way class and they meet from 1:25 PM to 2:20 PM.  He stated that if Park & 

Recreation Commission wants to be involved they will bring the project to the February 10, 2015 Park & 

Recreation Meeting.  He added that the Commission can decide on how many meetings to grant the students.  

 

M. McCleary asked who the grant was through.  J. Van Landuyt stated that it’s an Open Lands grant.  M. 

McCleary asked what the current length of walkway was.  J. Van Landuyt referred to picture of the area and 

said that the students will go out this Friday to map out the project.  A. Celentano stated that the Parks & 

Recreation Commission will have a better feel about how this will work than the Transportation Commission 

regarding materials. He also stated that he hopes the Commission will go along with the idea of having the 

two Commissions working together.    

 

M. McCleary stated that it sounded like an excellent project, and they were honored that it was brought to 

them.  

 

L. Sheahan stated that this project is a good idea.   

 

S. Erwin stated that they are more than willing to work with the Transportation Commission and is looking 

forward to working with the students.   

 



Parks & Recreation Commission 
01/13/2015 

Page 4 of 4 

 
M. McCleary asked if they will be working with the students on a weekly or monthly basis.  J. Van Landuyt 

replied that initially it will be weekly at the LRC learning center until they can bring in other people to help 

advise them.   

 

2.  Request by Woodstock Girls Softball to Construct Scoreboards at Bates Park 

 

Eric Thoreau, Woodstock Girls Softball Coordinator, stated that they wanted to propose putting in 

scoreboards in Rosky Park.  He stated that they want to build a scoreboard with a deck for kids to 

sit and watch the game while putting up numbers for the scores.  He stated that the project would 

cost $1,000.  He stated that the only thing not accounted for in the cost to build were the hole 

diggers needed to dig post holes.  He added that they will be responsible for maintaining the 

scoreboards.  He stated that they have 5 softball fields and want to put up a scoreboard in 1-3 of 

them depending on how the first scoreboard construction goes. He stated that they are planning on 

putting up advertising banners to help defray costs. 

 

N. Kearfott asked what the scoreboards would be made of.  E. Thoreau replied that it would be 

some type of painted plywood.  He added that they want something solid that will withstand 

weather.  S. Erwin stated that they might want to look into something more weather proof.  E. 

Thoreau stated that is why they want to start by building only 1 or 2 scoreboard to see how it works 

out.  M. McCleary asked when they plan to build them.  E. Thoreau replied that they want to start 

this spring, depending on how many volunteers he can get to help, and he hopes to have them 

completed by March or April.  E. Nelson stated that he has equipment for digging the holes that 

they could use.  S. Erwin asked what was going to go underneath the scoreboards.  E. Nelson stated 

that they would work with them on that.  M. McCleary stated that he would like to see what the 

final materials for the scoreboard are going to be.  M. McCleary stated that painted plywood is high 

maintenance and that other materials for the scoreboards, as well as location of the scoreboards, 

must be considered and approved by E. Nelson prior to construction. 

 

Motion by S. Erwin, second by L. Sheahan to approve the request by Woodstock Girls Softball to 

construct scoreboards at Bates Park with the stipulation that scoreboard materials and location be 

approved by E. Nelson.  Ayes: N. Kearfott, L. Sheahan, S. Erwin, M. McCleary. Nays: None. 

Absentees: None. 

Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

 
 

H. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS         

1.  Woodstock high school update 

2.  Woodstock materials update 

3.  Report on success with the Woodstock City Council. 

 

I. ADJOURN:   

S. Erwin made a motion to adjourn, Laurel Sheahan seconding. The motion carried unanimously 

and the meeting adjourned at 8:00 pm to a Regular Meeting February 10, 2015 @ 7:00 PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Amy Weber – Deputy City Clerk 
 



Transportation Commission 
01/21/15 

Page 1 of 4 

 
CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 

January 21, 2015 
City Council Chambers 

 
The regular meeting of the Woodstock Transportation Commission was called to order at 7:04 PM by Chairman 

Andrew Celentano on Wednesday, January 21, 2015 in Council Chambers at City Hall.  
 
A roll call was taken. 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Andrew Celentano, Caron Wenzel, Mark Indyke, Jason 

Osborn (arrived at 8:09), Susan Hudson 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Assistant Director of Public Works Jeff Van Landuyt 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Amy Weber 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   
Motion by Mark Indyke, second by Caron Wenzel to accept the December 17, 2014 Special Meeting minutes as 

presented. Ayes: Caron Wenzel, Mark Indyke, Jason Osborn, Susan Hudson, Chairman Andrew Celentano.  
Nays: None. Absentees: None  Abstentions: None Motion carried. 
 
FLOOR DISCUSSION:   
A. Celentano suggested that the roundabout project should be put into the Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  J. 

Van Landuyt stated that it is in the CIP as a TIF district request.  

 

A. Celentano stated that Lake County is building a two-lane roundabout on a marsh with pylons and the project is 

estimated to cost $6.5 million.   Woodstock’s proposed roundabout has an estimated construction cost of 1.6 

million dollars.     

 

TRANSMITTALS:  (No discussion or action requested) 

1.  November 2014 Pace Ridership Report 

A. Celentano read over the report.  M. Indyke stated that, per the Ridership Report, the maximum 

subsidy recommended is covered.    
 

OLD BUSINESS: 

1.  Suggestions for Future Student Projects/Presentations 

A. Celentano stated that next year, Woodstock North High School may participate in the Project Lead 

the Way program however they can’t do the same projects unless that is what we want. They do have a 

full machine shop and carpentry room.  He stated that doing the roundabout presentation was a fantastic 

exercise for their age group.  M. Indyke stated that he would like to see a frontage road project 

connecting the Walgreens to the Burger King.  A. Celentano stated that the Commission tabled the 

frontage road discussions until they begin work on Route 47.  The commission discussed possible 

options for frontage roads.   A. Celentano stated that one project could be to design a frontage road on 

the east side of Rt. 47 from McConnell Road to Country Club Road.  And a separate project could 

include the west side.  Susan Hudson stated that it could be split into two projects.   S. Hudson stated 

that one side would be enough for a project of this scope.   A. Celentano stated that the project design 

would be specific to the transportation arena.  M. Indyke added that they would want them to build 



Transportation Commission 
01/21/15 

Page 2 of 4 

 

something safe and handicap accessible.  J. Osborn stated that the students have already done a lot of 

sidewalk projects and asked if they could take the projects to a different level.  The commission 

discussed different project options.  C. Wenzel suggested that they build circuit boards that do different 

things with switches or design a sensor for streetlights.  A. Celentano suggested designing an 

application using a sensor to open a door rather than push a button.  C. Wenzel stated that they can do 

an app on a phone or research apps to do something with an automatic door.  M. Indyke suggested they 

design an app to find out where the bus is.  J. Osborn stated that they design a bus tracker.  S. Hudson 

stated that designing apps might be a little too much to ask of them.  C. Wenzel stated that they could 

just ask them. S. Hudson stated that the app would have to function.  M. Indyke added that they don’t 

know what the students’ skill level is.  A. Celentano asked how the students would go about building a 

bus tracker.  S. Hudson stated that first, they could purchase an app that exists, or they could evaluate 

the best packages out there for Woodstock to buy because they wouldn’t have enough time to write 

software.    

 

J. Osborn stated that they could work on optimizing school bus routes.  M. Indyke stated that he would 

like to know when the bus is to arrive within a specific amount of time, especially with the cold 

temperatures.  S. Hudson stated that she would like to know how they did the bus routes now.  She 

stated that she is sure there must be software packages out there for this and it could be a fun project.  

District 200 Transportation would need to be contacted to ask how they go about the optimization 

process.     

 

S. Hudson stated that she is interested in snow removal on sidewalks.  She stated that there is a terrible 

foot bridge that goes over a certain marsh that’s steep with bare wood and as soon as the lightest frost 

settles on it you can’t walk on it. She stated that the students could work on making the existing bridge 

usable.  A. Celentano stated that they would also have to make it ADA compliant.  C. Wenzel stated 

that it is a bridge built by a private owner that was then donated to Woodstock and needs to be 

upgraded. 

 

A. Celentano suggested that the students may be able to study the impact of the Route 47 expansion on 

small business and find out what the short and long term implications might be.  M. Indyke stated that 

it would be difficult to project the implications, however they could go to other communities and gather 

information.   S. Hudson stated that they could gather statistics on it.  She stated that they could find out 

what types of businesses closed and what ones survived.  J. Osborn stated that they could do a case 

study project and look at, for example, Crystal Lake or Huntley and gather historical sales tax and 

property tax data.  S. Hudson stated that they could find out what tactics the businesses used to survive.    

S. Hudson stated that they could look into what could’ve been done differently to save businesses.  J. 

Osborn stated that the students could hypothesize and talk with those businesses that fared better and 

find out what helped the business survive, for example; was it access, or a unique draw; did they have a 

bigger customer base, could people easily walk there?  M. Indyke stated that they could present their 

findings to the local business community stating measures that could be used to help them survive the 

improvement project.  A. Celentano stated that they will have to see if any of these suggestions will fit 

with the Project Lead the Way program. 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1.  Review of new project w/ WHS EDD Students 

A. Celentano stated that he and J. Van Landuyt attended the January 13 meeting of the Parks and 

Recreation Commission to present the students wetland walkway project and to ask them to participate 

in the civic process with these students and their Project Lead the Way program.   A. Celentano stated 

that the Woodstock grant writer is working on getting a grant to pay for materials to build a better  



Transportation Commission 
01/21/15 

Page 3 of 4 

 

walkway.  M. Indyke stated that the project is worthwhile and if they can get funding for it than that’s 

even better.  

 

A. Celentano stated that Mary Donner, from PACE, wants to see the report the students did on a bus 

system for Woodstock.  J. Van Landuyt followed up and e-mailed the project in early February.   

 

The commission discussed having a railroad coach yard in Woodstock and how it would allow 

additional services.   J. Osborn stated that there is a coach yard in Barrington and Crystal Lake.  A 

coach yard beyond Woodstock would bring Crystal Lake service level to Woodstock. 

 
2.  Plan for Commission’s Sidewalk Presentation to City Council – February 2015 

No comments 

 

3.  Review of updates to Chapter 7 – 2005 Transportation Plan – January 2015 

A. Celentano asked the commission if there were any comments about the body of the report.  M. Indyke asked if 

they are still including the widening of the bridge over Route 47.  A. Celentano stated that if roundabouts were 

installed they won’t need to replace the bridge.   He stated that at some point in time they will widen the bridge 

and possibly do it sooner if the bridge fails. 

 

J. Osborn questioned whether there was a section in the 2005 Transportation Plan dedicated to parking? He 

stated that when planners started implementing parking ordinances, they went to a minimal requirement attitude 

amply applied over 50 years that you can’t have too much parking.  He also stated that today the question is; how 

can you do minimal parking.   He stated that a lot of parking issues are still there.  He stated that if we didn’t 

have a section on parking, maybe we can look at parking ordinances to see what the minimums and maximums 

are based on. A. Celentano stated that the parking requirements are based on the number of building occupants.  

He stated that parking requirements should reflect the type of business that is operating in the building.  J. 

Osborn stated that the parking ordinances are based on old studies and lead to the inability to repurpose sites 

today.  

 

S. Hudson asked what the City’s philosophy is on parking.  She stated that they’ve done a lot of parking studies 

on the square so they must have a philosophy.   M. Indyke asked if Harley Davidson needs that much parking.  

C. Wenzel replied that yes they do because they have huge events; helicopter rides, wall to wall bikers and 

bands.  M. Indyke referred to the Farm & Fleet parking lot and how large it is.  C. Wenzel stated that Farm &  

Fleet got a variance on parking because they threatened to leave.  She stated that beyond the lot is a paved space 

that could be a multipurpose space or maybe even a floodplain.  S. Hudson stated that parking on the Square is 

adequate as stated in the report.  J. Osborn stated that they need to summarize the City’s attitude toward parking 

and go from there.  He asked the commission if that is a good suggestion, the commission agreed.   

 

A. Celentano referred to the first page, fourth paragraph, and last sentence of Chapter Seven and asked whether 

the City has any idea how much the local share for this project might be.  J. Van Landuyt replied that the City 

had to pay a portion of the costs associated with improvements to U.S. Rt. 14 such as utility relocation and traffic 

signalization.  A. Celentano asked that this cost or percentage be identified in the chapter.   

 

A. Celentano referred to page two, first paragraph that states “Phase 1 (preliminary design & environmental 

study) and Phase II (preparation of final design and construction bid documents) have been funded through the 

State of Illinois.” and asked about the status of it.  He asked if land acquisitions have not been appropriated.  M. 

Indyke replies that land has not been appropriated and according to IDOT, the project has been funded through 

the State of Illinois. 

 

A. Celentano then referred to the third paragraph, fourth sentence and asked if the ten foot shared path on the 

East side and the five foot path on the West side of 47 could be switched because there are more businesses on 

the West side of Route 47.  Jeff Van Landuyt replied that there is not enough right-of-way to do a ten foot path 



Transportation Commission 
01/21/15 

Page 4 of 4 

 
on the West side.  S. Hudson stated that this is a just a report on what IDOT plans to do.  S. Hudson stated that 

they could make it a student project and have them analyze how large a path it should be and where it should be 

laid.   

 

A. Celentano referred to the bridge on Route 47 and stated that we don’t know how long the bridge is supposed 

to last and he would like to find out when it needs to be redone.  M. Indyke stated that Nationwide 60 percent of 

our bridges are endangered.    

 

A. Celentano discussed collector streets and asked if any street classifications will change when Route 47 is 

widened.  J. Van Landuyt replied no, but growth and the need for additional capacity  may change designations 

in the future.    

 

A. Celentano referred to page five, second paragraph, third sentence and asked what SRA stood for.  He stated 

that SRA should be spelled out in the body of the report.    

 

Other goals identified by A. Celentano include:  Support efforts to reduce at grade railroad crossings caused by 

developments and expansions and develop partnerships with local businesses that may be affected by the Route 

47 expansion. 

 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS   

1.  Continued Review/Update of 2005 Transportation Plan 

 

2.  Plan for Commission’s Sidewalk Presentation to City Council – February 2015 

 

3.  Presentation on Enterprise Zone Ordinance – February 2015 

 

4.  Railroad Freight Traffic vs. Passenger Traffic – February 2015 

 

5.  Street Cars Discussion – March 2015 

 

6.  County Fair Transit Bus – March 2015      

 

7.  City Policy regarding Parking   

 

ADJOURN:   
Motion by M. Indyke, second by S. Hudson to adjourn the regular meeting of the Woodstock Transportation 

Commission to the Special Meeting February 18, 2015 @ 7:00 PM.  Ayes:  Chairman A. Celentano, C. Wenzel, 

M. Indyke, J. Osborn, S. Hudson.  Nays:  None.  Absentees:  None.  Abstentions:  None.  Motion Carried 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:35 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Amy Weber – Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

       City of    

               
 

Offi ce  of  the May or                                                            815 .338 .4302  

Dr .  Br ian  Sager ,  Mayo r                                                            815 .334 .2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                                                              mayo r@woods tocki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                            www.woodsto cki l . go v  

 

 

DATE:  April 13, 2015 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

     

FROM: Cindy Smiley, Executive Assistant 

 

RE:  Liquor License Requests: 

 

Request for Class A-6 Liquor License 

LIO Investments d/b/a Porkies 

2245 South Eastwood Drive 

 

Request for Class E-3 Liquor License 

Mixin Mingle 

124 Cass Street 

 

 

LIO Investments d/b/a Porkies 
Jamie Dioguardi will appear before the City Council on Tuesday, April 21, 2015, to request 

creation of a Class A-6 (Restaurant/Caterer) liquor license for his new restaurant, LIO 

Investments, LLC d/b/a Porkies, to be located at 2245 S. Eastwood Drive in Woodstock.  This is 

the location of his Pigpen drive-thru establishment which he is in the process of renovating into a 

sit-down restaurant with outdoor patio seating and an event space.  Mr. Dioguardi’s request is for 

the service and consumption of alcohol in the outdoor and event spaces as well as within the 

restaurant.  A Class A-6 license permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use 

on the premises of a restaurant, the retail sale of beer and wine by package and the service of 

alcoholic liquors as an incidental part of food services either on or off the licensed premises.  In 

addition to food and alcohol service in the restaurant and event space, it is Mr. Dioguardi’s plan 

to operate his catering business out of the S. Eastwood Drive location also.  

 

Mayor Sager has met with Mr. Dioguardi to discuss the rules and regulations applicable to a 

Class A-6 liquor license. 

 

Attached for your information is a copy of Mr. Dioguardi’s application.  He has submitted all 

necessary documentation and will complete the fingerprinting process prior to issuance of the 

license, if approved. 

 

After meeting with Mr. Dioguardi and review of his submittal, it is Mayor Sager’s 

recommendation that Council approve a Class A-6 liquor license for LIO Investments, LLC d/b/a 

Porkies to be located at 2245 South Eastwood Drive. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44a



 

 

 

 

Mixin Mingle, Inc. 

Nate Grindeland will be appearing before the City Council on Tuesday, April 21 to request 

creation of a Class E-3 (No Restaurant/No Bar/Consumption of Beer & Wine Only) liquor 

license for her business, Mixin Mingle, Inc., located at 124 Cass Street on the Woodstock 

Square.  A Class E-3 liquor license permits the licensee to serve beer and wine for consumption 

or use on the licensed premises maintaining no barroom, tavern, lounge, or other area reserved 

exclusively for the retail sale of beer and wine on said premises. 

 

Mixin Mingle is an event venue which has been located on the Square for some time, hosting a 

variety of public and private events, such as fundraisers, wedding receptions, etc.  In response to 

clients’ requests, it is Miss Grindeland’s wish to obtain a liquor license so that alcohol may be 

sold and served at these events.    

 

Mayor Sager has met with Miss Grindeland to discuss the rules and regulations applicable to a 

Class E-3 liquor license. 

 

Attached for your information is a copy of the liquor license application for Mixin Mingle, Inc. 

The applicant has submitted all necessary documents and will complete the fingerprinting 

process prior to issuance of the license, if approved. 

 

After meeting with Ms. Grindeland and review of her submittal, it is Mayor Sager’s 

recommendation that Council approve a Class E-3 liquor license for Mixin Mingle, Inc., located 

at 124 Cass Street. 

 

If Council is supportive of these requests, approval is recommended for the attached 

ordinance, identified as Document No. ______________, An Ordinance Amending Section 

3.3.6, Classification of Licenses; Number and Fees of the Woodstock City Code which would 

increase the number of Class A-6 liquor licenses by one for LIO Investments LLC d/b/a 

Porkies and the number of Class E-3 liquor licenses by one for Mixin Mingle, Inc. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
1













  

 

 

Liquor Control Amendments, Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-O-_________ 

 

An Ordinance Amending Title 3,  

Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the Woodstock City Code 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the CITY COUNCIL of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE: That Section 3.3.6, Classification of Licenses; Number and 

Fees, of the Woodstock City Code shall be amended to increase the number of Class E-3 liquor 

licenses by one (Mixin Mingle) and the number of Class A-6 liquor licenses by one (LIO 

Investments LLC d/b/a Porkies) so that the total authorized number of liquor licenses in the City 

shall be as follows: 

 

C. Number and Fees:  The following number of licenses and license fees shall be charged 

for each liquor license classification: 

 

Class Number 

Available 

Fee Effective 

May 1, 2011 

A-1 6 $2,000.00 

A-2 11 $1,500.00 

A-4 1 $1,500.00 

A-5 0 $1,000.00 

A-6 5 $1,600.00 

A-7 0 $1,800.00 

B-1 2 $2,000.00 

B-2 4 $1,200.00 

B-3 5 $1,500.00 

B-4a 0 $1,100.00 

B-4b 0 $1,200.00 

B-4c 1 $1,300.00 

B-5 0 $1,500.00 

B-6 1 $1,200.00 

B-7 0 $1,200.00 

B-8 1 $   600.00 

B-9 0 $   600.00 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.1



  

 

 

Liquor Control Amendments, Page 2 

C-1 1 $1,200.00 

C-2 1 $   800.00 

D 4 $1,200.00 

E-1 5 $   600.00 

E-2 0 $   700.00 

E-3 3 $   500.00 

E-4 1 $1,200.00 

H 0 $1,600.00 

I 0 $   800.00 

J 0 $   800.00 

K   

KK 0 $   800.00 

L  $   800.00 

M-1  $   150.00 per day 

M-2  $    50.00 one day 

$  100.00 2-29 days 

$  150.00 30-60 days 

N  $    50.00 per day 

 

 

 SECTION TWO: If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of 

this Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgment shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which remainder 

shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

 SECTION THREE: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

 SECTION FOUR: This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance     and 

shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form 

(which publication is hereby authorized) as provided by law. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 APPROVED: 

      

 Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST:      

Arleen Quinn, City Clerk 

 

Passed:      

Approved:      

Published:      



  

 

 

Liquor Control Amendments, Page 3 

 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 
 

 I, ARLEEN QUINN, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, acting and qualified 

Clerk of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such Clerk, I am the 

keeper of the records and minutes and proceedings of the Mayor and Council members of said 

City. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council, held 

on the    day of     , 2015, the foregoing Ordinance entitled An 

Ordinance Amending Title 3, Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the Woodstock City Code, was 

duly passed by said City Council. 

 

 The pamphlet form of Ordinance No. 15-O-____, including the Ordinance and a cover 

sheet thereof, was prepared, and a copy of such Ordinance was posted in the City Hall, 

commencing on the _______ day of ____________, 2015, and continuing for at least 10 days 

thereafter. Copies of such Ordinance were also available for public inspection upon request in 

the office of the City Clerk. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct copy, is 

entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful custodian and 

keeper of the same. 

 

 GIVEN under my hand and corporate seal of the City of Woodstock this    day of 

    , 2015. 

 

 

     

Arleen Quinn, City Clerk 

City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

       City of    

               
 

Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  

Rosco e C.  S te l ford ,  I I I ,  C i ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 .2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

  Roscoe C. Stelford III, City Manager 

 

FROM: Cindy Smiley, Executive Assistant 

 

DATE:  April 16, 2015 

 

RE:  Tequilaville Cantina and Grill Requests 

 

 

Representatives from Tequilaville Cantina and Grill will be appearing before the City Council on 

Tuesday, April 21, 2015 to request permission to hold a Grand Opening/Cinco de Mayo party on 

Saturday, May 2, 2015 in their parking lot at 135 W. Washington.  If successful, the owners 

intend on this becoming an annual event at their establishment. 

 

Grand Opening/Cinco de Mayo Celebration: 

As you can see from the attached request, it is the organizer’s wish to have a Mariachi Band 

from 1:00 PM until 4:00 PM and possibly a DJ from 4:00 PM to 7:00 PM.  They will provide 

beer-keg service in the parking lot and food and liquor inside the restaurant.  The parking lot will 

be fenced off with only one entrance/exit.  Staff will be present at the sole entrance/exit point to 

ensure that alcohol does not leave the designated event area.  In addition, event staff will be 

present within the event area to monitor alcohol consumption.  Since their request does not 

include serving alcohol in the public way, the City Administration does not believe a dedicated 

police presence will be required.  A diagram of the proposed event area has been attached for 

your review. 

 

It is recommended that the event organizers be responsible for cleaning the event area, including 

sidewalks, and surrounding area at the end of the event.  Furthermore, as with all events, 

approval remains contingent on the organizer agreeing and abiding to all City Ordinances and 

Regulations, including compliance with any requests that may be made by the City 

Administration and/or the Police Department either prior to or the day of the event, to include 

but not exclusive of the reduction of the sound coming from the event. 

 

Outdoor Patio/Dining & Alcohol: 

The City has also received a request from the owners to allow the sale and service of alcohol in 

an approved outdoor patio on the west side of their building.  The patio will be closed off and the 

only entrance will be from the main door of the building.  They will have security cameras in 

place to monitor the area.  Monitoring will be required at all times while alcohol is available in 

the patio area to oversee alcohol consumption.  This request is similar to the outdoor dining 

allowed by other restaurants within the community. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44b



 

 

After meeting with the petitioner and reviewing his submittal, it is Mayor Sager’s 

recommendation that Council approve alcohol consumption in the patio area. 

 

If Council is supportive of these requests the following is recommended: 

1) Approval to hold a Grand Opening/ Cinco de Mayo Party on Saturday, May 2 

between the hours of 1:00PM and 9:00PM in the parking lot of the Tequilaville 

Cantina & Grill, which includes permission to serve alcohol within the fenced in 

area based on the conditions identified above. 

2) Approval of outdoor dining and alcohol consumption on the patio on the west 

side of the building contingent on appropriate monitoring while alcohol is 

present in the area. 

 

rstelford
Approved





















mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44c



rstelford
Approved



  

 

Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-O-____ 
 

An Ordinance Amending Chapter 3, Liquor Control, 

of the City of Woodstock  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, is a non-home rule 

municipality with authority under the provisions of the Illinois Municipal Code and related 

statutes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has established a set of ordinances governing the sale of alcoholic 

beverages in the City and the sale and licensing of alcoholic beverages; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in order to ensure that the City’s regulations governing liquor control are 

maintained and remain consistent with the laws of the State of Illinois where such laws apply to 

liquor control;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the CITY COUNCIL of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1: That the current Chapter 3 Liquor Control Ordinance of the City of 

Woodstock Code of Ordinances is hereby amended in the manner indicated on the redlined 

version of that Chapter 3 attached hereto as Exhibit A.   

 

 SECTION 2: If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of this 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment 

shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which remainder shall remain 

and continue in full force and effect. 

 

 SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.2



  

 

Page 2 

 SECTION 4: This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance 15-O-___ and shall be in full 

force and effect upon its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form (which publication 

is hereby authorized) as provided by law. 

 

Ayes: 

 

Nays: 

 

Abstentions: 

 

Absentees: 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

     

Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST:      

City Clerk Arleen Quinn 

 

Passed:      

 

Approved:      

 

Published:      
Z:\W\WOODSTOCK\ORDINANCES\LIQUOR CONTROL.CHAPTER 3 UPDATE .ORDINANCE.DOC 



Exhibit A 

ATTACHMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 15-O-____ 
(An Ordinance Amending Chapter 3, Liquor Control, 

of the City of Woodstock) 

 

 

Chapter 3 
LIQUOR CONTROL 

3.3.1: DEFINITIONS:  

Terms used in this chapter have the following meanings: 
 
ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR: Any spirits, wine, beer, ale or other liquid containing more than one-half of 
one percent (0.5%) of alcohol by volume which is fit for beverage purposes. 
 
BANQUET HALL: Any public place kept, used, maintained, advertised and held out to the public 
where meals and/or beverages are served to a group or groups of people not less than twenty five 
(25) persons, without sleeping accommodations, such place being provided with adequate sanitary 
kitchen and dining room equipment and capacity. 
 
BEER: A beverage containing more than 3.2 percent alcohol by weight, obtained by alcoholic 
fermentation of an infusion or concoction of barley, or other grain, malt and hops in water and 
includes among other things beer, ale, stout, lager beer, porter and similar beverages having such 
alcoholic content. 
 
BOWLING LANE BUSINESS: A business in which the principal income therefrom is derived from the 
operation of bowling lanes open to the public and which is advertised to the public as a bowling lane. 
 
BREWPUB: A person who manufactures beer only at a designated premises to make sales to 
importing distributors, distributors and to nonlicensees for use and consumption only, who stores 
beer at the designated premises and who is allowed to sell it retail from the licensed premises, 
provided that the licensee shall not sell for off premises consumption more than 50,000 gallons per 
year. 
 
CATERER RETAILER: A person who serves alcoholic liquor for consumption, either on site or off 
site, whether the location is licensed or unlicensed, as an incidental part of food service. Prepared 
meals and alcoholic liquors are sold at a package price agreed upon under contract. 
 
CLUB: A corporation organized under the laws of this state, not for pecuniary profit, solely for the 
promotion of some common object other than the sale or consumption of alcoholic liquors, kept, 
used and maintained by its members through the payment of annual dues, and owning, hiring or 
leasing a building or space in a building, of such extent and character as may be suitable and 
adequate for the reasonable and comfortable use and accommodation of its members and their 



guests and provided with suitable and adequate kitchen and dining room space and equipment and 
maintaining a sufficient number of servants and employees for cooking, preparing and serving food 
and meals for its members and their guests; provided, that such club files with the commissioner at 
the time of its application for a license under this chapter two (2) copies of a list of names and 
residences of its members, and similarly files within ten (10) days of the election of any additional 
member his name and address; and, provided further, that its affairs and management are 
conducted by a board of directors, executive committee, or similar body chosen by the members at 
their annual meeting and that no member or any officer, agent, or employee of the club is paid, or 
directly or indirectly receives, in the form of salary or other compensation any profits from the 
distribution or sale of alcoholic liquor to the club or the members of the club or its guests introduced 
by members beyond the amount of such salary as may be fixed and voted at any annual meeting by 
the members or by its board of directors or other governing body out of the general revenue of the 
club

1
. 

 
COMMISSIONER: The mayor of the city who is charged with the administration of this chapter in the 
city. 
 
CRIMINAL CODE: The Illinois criminal code of 1961, 730 Illinois Compiled Statutes 5/1-1 et seq., as 
amended. 
 
GOLF CLUB: Any place kept, used, maintained, either privately or advertised and held out to the 
public as a place where golf is played on an established and maintained golf course and containing 
a clubroom or clubhouse containing locker rooms, and a restaurant either for the public or for its 
members. 
 
HOTEL: Every building or other structure kept, used, maintained, advertised and held out to the 
public to be a place where food is actually served and consumed and sleeping accommodations are 
offered for adequate pay to travelers and guests, whether transient, permanent or residential, in 
which twenty five (25) or more rooms are used for the sleeping accommodations of such guests and 
having one or more public dining rooms where meals are served to such guests, such sleeping 
accommodations and dining rooms being conducted in the same building or buildings in connection 
therewith and such building, buildings, structure or structures being provided with adequate and 
sanitary kitchen and dining room equipment and capacity

2
. 

 
LIQUOR CONTROL ACT: The liquor control act of 1934, 235 Illinois Compiled Statutes 5/1-1 et 
seq., as amended. 
 
ORIGINAL PACKAGE: Any bottle, flask, jug, can, cask, barrel, keg, hogshead or other receptacle or 
container, whatsoever, used, corked or capped, sealed and labeled by the manufacturer of alcoholic 
liquor, to contain and to convey any alcoholic liquor

3
. 

 
RESTAURANT: Any place kept, used, maintained, advertised and held out to the public as a place 
where meals are served, and where meals are actually and regularly served, without sleeping 
accommodations, such space being provided with adequate and sanitary kitchen and dining room 
equipment and capacity and having employed therein a sufficient number and kind of employees to 
prepare, cook and serve suitable food for its guests. 
 
RETAIL SALE: Any transfer, exchange or barter in any manner or by any means whatsoever, for a 
consideration, made by any person, whether principal, proprietor, agent, servant or employee; and 
shall include to solicit or receive an order for, or to deliver, or to accept payment for. 
 
RETAILER: A person who sells, or offers for sale, alcoholic liquor for use or consumption and not for 
resale in any form

4
. 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote1
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote2
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote3


 
SELL AT RETAIL AND SALE AT RETAIL: Refers to and means sales for use or consumption and 
not for resale in any form

5
. 

 
SPECIAL USE LICENSE: A license for use by a retailer to allow the transfer of alcoholic beverages 
from an existing licensed retail premises to a designated site for a special event. 
 
SPIRITS: Any beverage which contains alcohol obtained by distillation, mixed with water or other 
substance in solution, and includes brandy, rum, whiskey, gin, or other spirituous liquors, and such 
liquors when rectified, blended or otherwise mixed with alcohol or other substances

6
. 

 
TAVERN: An establishment where liquors are sold to be consumed on the premises but not 
including restaurants where the principal business is the serving of food. 
 
TO SELL: Includes to keep or expose for sale and to keep with intent to sell

7
. 

 
WINE: Any alcoholic beverage obtained by the fermentation of the natural contents of fruits or 
vegetables, containing sugar, including such beverages, when fortified by the addition of alcohol or 
"spirits", as defined herein

8
. (1963 Code, §46.01; amd. Ord. 738, 4-19-1967; Ord. 1345, 2-15-1977; 

Ord. 2196, 6-20-1989; Ord. 2249, 12-7-1993; Ord. 2550, 5-2-1995; Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998; Ord. 
04-O-43, 5-4-2004; Ord. 10-O-02, 1-19-2010; Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 
 
In addition to the definitions in this section 3.3.1, definitions found in the Illinois Liquor Control Act 
and the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Liquor Control Commission are incorporated herein as 
applicable. 
 

3.3.2: LICENSE REQUIRED: 
 
No person shall sell or offer for sale at retail in the city any alcoholic liquor without having a retail 
liquor dealer's license, or in violation of the terms of such license or any statute, law or this code. 
(1963 Code, §46.02) 

 
3.3.3: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS:  

 

A. Completion Of Application; Filing: Application for a liquor license shall be filed with the 
commissioner, in writing, signed by the applicant if an individual, or by a duly authorized agent 
thereof, if a club or corporation, verified by oath or affidavit, and shall contain full and complete 
responses to the requested statements and information which shall be immediately updated if 
any of said statements or information changes during the term of any license. When any 
applicant for a liquor license is a corporation, said application shall be signed by the president 
and secretary thereof.  , and shouldIf the applicant be is a partnership, then each and every 
member of the partnership (including a silent partner if any) shall sign such application.  If the 
applicant is a limited liability company (LLC), then an authorized member or manager of the LLC 
shall sign the application.  Each applicant for a liquor license must submit a copy of a fully 
executed lease of premises whenever the applicant is not the property owner of the premises for 
which he or she is seeking a license and such lease must have coverage period equal to, or 
longer than, the duration of the applicant's liquor license. Said lease must name the applicant as 
lessee. Applications shall contain the following information and statements: 

1. The name, birth date, social security number and address of the applicant in the case of an 
individual; in the case of copartnership, name, birth date and social security number of each 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote5
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote6
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote7
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote8


partner; in the case of a limited liability company, the name, birthdate, social security number 
and address of each member of the limited liability company, and, in the case of a 
corporation, the objects for which organized, the names, birth dates, social security numbers 
and addresses of the officers and directors and if a majority interest of the stock of such 
corporation is owned by one person or his or her nominee, the name, address, birth date and 
social security number of such person. 

2. The citizenship of the applicant, his or her place of birth, and if a naturalized citizen, the time 
and place of his or her naturalization. 

3. The character of business of the applicant, and in the case of a corporation, the objects for 
which it was formed. 

4. The length of time said applicant has been in business of that character, or in the case of a 
corporation, the date when its charter was issued. 

5. The amount of goods, wares and merchandise on hand at the time application is made. 

6. The location and legal description of the premises or place of business which is to be 
operated under such license. Each application shall contain a diagram of the premises which 
depicts the location of any service bars and the location of one designated dancing area. 

7. A statement whether applicant has made application for a similar or other license on premises 
other than described in this application, and the disposition of such application. 

8. A statement that applicant has never been convicted of a gambling offense or a felony and 
and the specifics of such conviction along with a statement that the applicant is not 
disqualified to receive a license by reason of any matter or thing contained in this section, 
laws of this state or the ordinances, rules or resolutions of the city. 

9. Whether a previous license by any state or subdivision thereof, or by the federal government 
has been revoked, and the reasons thereof. 

10. A statement that the applicant will not violate any of the laws of the state, or of the United 
States, or any ordinance, rule or resolution of the city in the conduct of his or her place of 
business. (Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998) 

 

B. Investigation Of Applicant: No license shall be issued hereunder until the applicant shall have 
been investigated by the commissioner and a report filed in the records of said commissioner 
approving the issuance of such license. As a part of this investigation, the commissioner shall 
require all new applicants and shall have the right to require fingerprints of any applicant for 
renewal thereof. For purposes of obtaining fingerprints under this section, the commissioner shall 
collect a fee and forward the fee to the Illinois department of state police, bureau of identification. 
A copy of fingerprints shall be held on record by the chief of police or his or her designee. 

 

C. Conditions: Any and all licenses issued pursuant to this chapter shall be subject to any and all 
changes or amendments which may be hereafter made, and any and all rules adopted by the 



commissioner. Any and all licenses shall be subject to any restrictions or conditions deemed 
desirable by the commissioner. (Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998; amd. Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 

 

D. Insurance Requirements: No license shall be issued to any person or entity that cannot produce a 
policy of insurance by a solvent and responsible company authorized to do business in the state 
insuring said person or entity against liability for any injury or death which said parties may incur 
while operating under the provisions of the liquor control act as follows: 

1. The amount of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00) per person and one million dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury liability; one hundred thousand dollars 
($100,000.00) for loss of means of support; one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) for 
property damage liability; or 

2. A one million dollar ($1,000,000.00) single limit dramshop policy. 

3. No license shall be issued to any person or entity that cannot produce a policy of insurance by 
a solvent and responsible company authorized to do business in the state insuring said 
person or entity against general liability in the amount of five hundred thousand dollars 
($500,000.00). (Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998) 

 

E. Proof Of Insurance: Each applicant shall show by evidence satisfactory to the commissioner, the 
issuance of a policy of liquor liability insurance, and in the event he or she is not the owner of the 
premises described in said application, that he or she has a lawful right to possession of the 
same until the expiration of the term of license for which application is made. In the event of 
cancellation, the commissioner shall be notified immediately of such cancellation. (Ord. 98-O-52, 
10-20-1998; amd. Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 

 

F. Application Fee: A nonrefundable application fee in the amount of five hundred dollars ($500.00) 
shall be payable upon initial application, which shall be applied to the license upon approval 
pursuant to this chapter. (Ord. 07-O-22, 2-20-2007) 

 
 
3.3.4: PERSONS INELIGIBLE TO LICENSE:  

 

A. Except as otherwise provided in subsection (b) of this section 3.3.4 and in paragraph (1) of 
subsection (a) of Section 3-12 of the Illinois Liquor Control Act (the “Act”) [235 ILCS 5/3-12], the 
City  shall not issue any license to: 

A1. A person who is not a resident of the city in which the premises covered by the license is 
locatedexcept in case of railroad or boat licenses. 

 



B2. A person who is not of good character and reputation in the Citycommunity in which he 
resides. 

 

C3. A person who is not a citizen of the United States. 

 

D4. A person who has been convicted of a felony under any federal or state law, unless the 
commissioner if the commissioner determines, after investigation, that such person has not 
been sufficiently rehabilitated to warrant the public trust after considering matters set forth in 
such person’s application and the commissioner’s investigation.  The burden of proof of 
sufficient rehabilitation shall be on the applicant. 

 

E5. A person who has been convicted of keeping a place of prostitution or keeping a place of 
juvenile prostitution, promoting prostitution that involves keeping a place of prostitution, or 
promoting juvenile prostitution that involves keeping a place of juvenile prostitutionA person 
who has been convicted of being the keeper or is keeping a house of ill fame. 

 

F6. A person who has been convicted of pandering or other crime or misdemeanor opposed to 
decency and morality. 

 

G7. A person whose license issued under the Act has been revoked for cause. 

 

H8. A person who, at the time of application for renewal of any license issued hereunder, would 
not be eligible for such license upon a first application. 

 

I9. A copartnership, if any general partnership thereof, or any limited partnership thereof, owning 
more than 5% of the aggregate limited partner interest in such copartnership would not be 
eligible to receive a license hereunder.A copartnership, unless all of the members of such 
copartnership shall be qualified to obtain a license. 

 

J10. A corporation or limited liability company, if any member, officer, manager or director 
thereof, or any stockholder or stockholders owning in the aggregate more than five percent 
(5%) of the stock of such corporation, would not be eligible to receive a license hereunder for 
any reason other than citizenship and residence within the political subdivisionCity. 



 

K11. A corporation or limited liability company unless it is incorporated or organized in Illinois, or 
unless it is a foreign corporation or foreign limited liability company which is qualified under 
the Business Corporation Act of 1983 [805 ILCS 5/1.01 et seq.] or the Limited Liability 
Company Act [805 ILCS 180/1-1 et seq.] to transact business in Illinois. The commissioner 
shall permit and accept from an applicant for a license under this Act proof prepared from the 
Secretary of State's website that the corporation or limited liability company is in good 
standing and is qualified under the Business Corporation Act of 1983 or the Limited Liability 
Company Act to transact business in Illinois.A corporation, unless it is incorporated in Illinois, 
or unless it is a foreign corporation which is qualified under the Illinois business corporation 
act

9
 to transact business in Illinois. 

 

L12. A person, copartnership or corporation whose place of business is conducted by a manager 
or agent unless the manager or agent possesses the same qualifications required of an 
individualby the licensee. 

 

M13. A person who has been convicted of a violation of any federal or state law concerning the 
manufacture, possession or sale of alcoholic liquor, subsequent to the passage of this 
chapter and the Illinois Liquor Control Act, or has forfeited his bond to appear in court to 
answer charges for any such violation. 

 

N14. A person who does not beneficially own the premises for which a license is sought, or does 
not have a lease thereon for the full period for which the license is to be issued. 

 

O15. Any law enforcing public official, including the mayor, or member of the City Council, and 
no such official shall have a direct interest in the manufacture, sale, or distribution of 
alcoholic liquor, except that a license may be granted to such official in relation to premises 
that are not located within the City if the issuance of such license is approved by the State 
Liquor Commission and except that a license may be granted, to any member of City 
Council, so long as the population of the City is 55,000 or less in relation to premises that are 
located within the City if (i) the sale of alcoholic liquor pursuant to the license is incidental to 
the selling of food, (ii) the issuance of the license is approved by the State Commission, (iii) 
the issuance of the license is in accordance with all City ordinances in effect, and (iv) the 
official granted a license does not vote on alcoholic liquor issues pending before the City 
Council.  Notwithstanding any provision of this paragraph (15) to the contrary; a member of 
City Council may have a direct interest in the manufacture, sale, or distribution of alcoholic 
liquor as long as he or she is not a law enforcing public official or the mayor.  To prevent any 
conflict of interest, the member of City Council with the direct interest in the manufacture, 
sale, or distribution of alcoholic liquor shall not participate in any meetings, hearings, or 
decisions on matters impacting the manufacture, sale, or distribution of alcoholic liquor.  
Furthermore, the mayor, so long as the City has a population of 55,000 or less, may have an 
interest in the  manufacture, sale, or distribution of alcoholic liquor as long as the City 
Council has made a local liquor control commissioner appointment that complies with the 



requirements of Section 4-2 of the Illinois Liquor Control Act.Any law enforcing public official, 
any mayor, alderman or member of a city council or commission, any president of a village 
board of trustees, any member of a village board of trustees, or any president or member of 
a county board; and no such official shall be interested in any way, either directly or 
indirectly, in the manufacture, sale or distribution of alcoholic liquor. 

 

P16. A person who is not a beneficial owner of the business to be operated by the licensee. 

 

Q17. A person who has been convicted of a gambling offense as proscribed by any of 
subsections (a) (3) through (a) (11) of Section 28-1 of, or as proscribed by Section 28-1.1 or 
28-3 of, the Criminal Code of 1961 or the Criminal Code of 2012 [720 ILCS 5/28-1, 720 ILCS 
5/28-1.1 or 720 ILCS 5/28-3], or as proscribed by a statute replaced by any of the aforesaid 
statutory provisions.Federal gaming stamps. 

1. A person who has been convicted of a gambling offense as prescribed by any of the 
subsections (a)(3) through (a)(10) of section 28-1 of, or as proscribed by section 28-3 of, the 
"criminal code of 1961" approved July 28, 1961, as heretofore or hereafter amended, or as 
proscribed by a statute replaced by any of the aforesaid statutory provisions

10
. 

2. A person to whom a federal gaming device stamp or a federal wagering stamp has been 
issued by the federal government for the current tax period. 

3. A copartnership to which a federal gaming device stamp or a federal wagering stamp has 
been issued by the federal government for the current tax period, or if any of the partners 
have been issued a federal gaming device stamp or federal wagering stamp by the federal 
government for the current tax period. 

4. A corporation, if any officer, manager or director thereof, or any stockholder owning in the 
aggregate more than twenty percent (20%) of the stock of such corporation has been issued 
a federal gaming device stamp or a federal wagering stamp for the current tax period. 

5. Any premises for which a federal gaming device stamp or a federal wagering stamp has been 
issued by the federal government for the current tax period. (Ord. 1113, 9-17-1974) 

 

R. Any person, firm or corporation whose application for a liquor license has not been reviewed 
and approved by the commissioner. (Ord. 1566, 2-5-1980; amd. Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 

18.  A person or entity to whom a federal wagering stamp has been issued by the federal 
government, unless the person or entity is eligible to be issued a license under the Raffles 
and Poker Runs Act [230 ILCS 15/0.01 et seq.] or the Illinois Pull Tabs and Jar Games Act 
[230 ILCS 20/1 et seq.]. 

19.  A person who intends to sell alcoholic liquors for use or consumption on his or her licensed 
retail premises who does not have liquor liability insurance coverage for that premises in an 



amount that is at least equal to the maximum liability amounts set out in section 3.3.3D of 
this chapter. 

20.  A person who is licensed by any licensing authority as a manufacturer of beer, or any 
partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or trust or any subsidiary, affiliate, or agent 
thereof, or any other form of business enterprise licensed as a manufacturer of beer, having 
any legal, equitable, or beneficial interest, directly or indirectly, in a person licensed in this 
State as a distributor or importing distributor. For purposes of this paragraph (20), a person 
who is licensed by any licensing authority as a "manufacturer of beer" shall also mean a 
brewer and a non-resident dealer who is also a manufacturer of beer, including a 
partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or trust or any subsidiary, affiliate, or agent 
thereof, or any other form of business enterprise licensed as a manufacturer of beer. 

21.  A person who is licensed in Illinois as a distributor or importing distributor, or any 
partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or trust or any subsidiary, affiliate, or agent 
thereof, or any other form of business enterprise licensed in Illinois as a distributor or 
importing distributor having any legal, equitable, or beneficial interest, directly or indirectly, in 
a person licensed as a manufacturer of beer by any licensing authority, or any partnership, 
corporation, limited liability company, or trust or any subsidiary, affiliate, or agent thereof, or 
any other form of business enterprise, except for a person who owns, on or after June 13, 
2013, no more than 5% of the outstanding shares of a manufacturer of beer whose shares 
are publicly traded on an exchange within the meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 [15 U.S.C. § 78a et seq.]. For the purposes of this paragraph (21), a person who is 
licensed by any licensing authority as a "manufacturer of beer" shall also mean a brewer and 
a non-resident dealer who is also a manufacturer of beer, including a partnership, 
corporation, limited liability company, or trust or any subsidiary, affiliate, or agent thereof, or 
any other form of business enterprise licensed as a manufacturer of beer. 

B.  A criminal conviction of a corporation is not grounds for the denial, suspension, or revocation of a 
license applied for or held by the corporation if the criminal conviction was not the result of a 
violation of any federal or State law concerning the manufacture, possession or sale of alcoholic 
liquor, the offense that led to the conviction did not result in any financial gain to the corporation 
and the corporation has terminated its relationship with each director, officer, employee, or 
controlling shareholder whose actions directly contributed to the conviction of the corporation. 
The commissioner shall determine if all provisions of this subsection B have been met before 
any action on the corporation's license is initiated.  

 
 
3.3.5: VIDEO GAMING TERMINALS:  

 

A. Gambling Prohibited: No gambling of any sort shall be permitted in the city except as authorized 
by this section. 

 

B. Gaming Terminals: Video gaming terminals shall be permitted in and upon the premises used or 
occupied as a place holding a valid city issued liquor license if each of the following conditions is 
first met: 



1. The use and placement thereof is in compliance with the provisions of the video gaming act
11

, 
as amended; and 

2. The use and placement thereof is in compliance with the provisions of all rules promulgated by 
the Illinois gaming board pursuant to the Illinois administrative procedures act; and 

3. The licensee or agent of the licensee: 

a. Files with the city clerk a copy of the licensee's written use agreement with the terminal 
operator for placement of the video gaming terminals and a copy of the license issued by the 
Illinois gaming board as well as, to the extent possible, a copy of a diagram or verbal 
description approved by the Illinois gaming board that shows the authorized location of the 
terminals; and 

b. Pays to the city an annual fee of twenty five dollars ($25.00) for each video gaming terminal 
upon the premises. The annual fee shall be due and payable upon application for issuance 
or renewal. Licenses shall be for not longer than a one year period from May 1 of each year 
to April 30 of each following year, unless sooner revoked or suspended. All licenses, 
regardless of date of issuance, shall terminate on April 30 of each year following the date of 
issuance. This fee is not in lieu of any fee or payment payable to the state or the Illinois 
gaming board. 

 

C. Hours Of Operation: No video gaming terminal that is permitted under the provisions of this 
section may be played except during the legal hours of operation allowed for the consumption of 
alcoholic beverages on the licensed premises. 

 

D. Inspection: The city may inspect or cause the inspection of any place or building in which any 
such terminal is operated or set up for operation to ensure that the facilities are operated in a 
manner consistent with the public health, safety and welfare and in a manner consistent with 
both state law and regulations and city ordinances. 

 

E. Violation And Revocation: If a licensee violates any provision of the video gaming act or any 
provision related to video gaming terminals contained in this section, such violation shall be 
deemed a violation of the licensee's liquor license. In addition, the commissioner may revoke the 
city's video gaming terminal license for any violation of this section or of any ordinance pertaining 
to the conduct of such business and may report any violations to the Illinois state gaming board 
or other appropriate regulatory agency. (Ord. 12-O-47, 10-2-2012) 

The section below has been affected by a recently passed ordinance, 14-65 - LIQUOR CONTROL. 
Go to new ordinance. 

 
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote11


3.3.6: CLASSIFICATION OF LICENSES; NUMBER AND FEES:  

 

A. Classes Created: There are hereby created the following classes of retailers' licenses in the city, 
which shall be divided into the following types: 

1. A retailer's on premises consumption license which shall allow the licensee to sell and offer for 
sale at retail, only on the premises specified in the license, alcoholic liquor for use or 
consumption on the premises or on and off the premises, but not for resale in any form. 

2. An off premises sale license which shall allow the licensee to sell, offer for sale at retail, 
alcoholic liquor intended only for off premises consumption and not for resale in any form. 

3. It is acknowledged that the business of selling alcoholic liquors at retail is a privilege, not a 
right. It is also acknowledged that when not properly done, it is a business fraught with 
danger to the community which raises peculiarly local problems pertaining to the public 
health, safety and morals of the community. By establishing a maximum number of liquor 
licenses in any particular classification, any license not yet created by the city council shall 
not be deemed to exist until such time as the city, by legislative action of the city council, has 
in fact created such a license. Accordingly, the city council hereby reserves the right in its 
sole discretion to create additional licenses within any classification as it deems appropriate. 
Moreover, it is hereby affirmed that the city, in its sole discretion, may determine from time to 
time whether a moratorium in the creation of any new licenses shall be imposed to promote, 
permit and regulate the orderly growth of liquor establishments in the city. 

 

B. Classifications: Liquor licenses shall be divided into the following classifications.  There shall be 
an indefinite moratorium on the acceptance of all liquor license applications, except for Class K, 
KK, M1, M2, N1 and N2 licenses.: 

 

Class       

A    Permits the sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use on the 
licensed premises and the retail sale of beer and wine by package. Class 
A licenses shall be divided into the following subdivisions:    

   A-1    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use on 
licensed premises including a bar, but not incidental to the service 
of food and the retail sale of beer and wine by package. (Tavern)    

      In no case shall the number of class A-1 licenses exceed one 
license per three thousand (3,000) population as determined by 
the official census population of the city of Woodstock.    

      There shall be a moratorium on the acceptance of A-1 license 
applications for time indefinite.    

   A-2    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use on 



the premises of a restaurant, as well as the retail sale of beer and 
wine by package. For the purposes of this class A-2, a restaurant 
must derive more than forty percent (40%) of its gross revenue (on 
an annual basis) from the sale of food. The determination of 
whether the forty percent (40%) gross revenue standard has been 
met shall be made at the time of license renewal for the year just 
ended. In the event a licensee has not possessed a class A-2 
license for a full year, the determination of whether the forty 
percent (40%) standard has been met shall be deferred until the 
next license renewal period. The records used to determine 
whether said forty percent (40%) standard has been met shall 
include, but not be limited to, audited financial statements, 
corporate financial reports, tax return information, state liquor 
license reports, or any other form of information deemed 
acceptable by the city. (Restaurant)    

   A-4    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use on 
the premises of a golf club and the retail sale of beer and wine by 
package. (Golf club)    

   A-5    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use on 
the premises of a banquet hall or event venue for public or private 
events held or sponsored by the licensee or his client and the retail 
sale of beer and wine by package. (Banquet hall/event venue)    

   A-6    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use on 
the premises of a restaurant as well as the retail sale of beer and 
wine by package; and permits the restaurant to also serve 
alcoholic liquors as an incidental part of food service that serves 
prepared meals, either on or off the licensed restaurant premises. 
For the purposes of this class A-6, a restaurant must derive more 
than forty percent (40%) of its gross revenue (on an annual basis) 
from the sale of food. The determination of whether the forty 
percent (40%) gross revenue standard has been met shall be 
made at the time of license renewal for the year just ended. In the 
event a licensee has not possessed a class A-6 license for a full 
year, the determination of whether the forty percent (40%) 
standard has been met shall be deferred until the next license 
renewal period. The records used to determine whether said forty 
percent (40%) standard has been met shall include, but not be 
limited to, audited financial statements, corporate financial reports, 
tax return information, state liquor license reports, or any other 
form of information deemed acceptable by the city. 
(Restaurant/caterer)    

   A-7    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use on 
the premises of a restaurant/brewpub, the retail sale of beer and 



wine by package, and the service of alcoholic liquors as an 
incidental part of food services either on or off the licensed 
restaurant/brewpub premises. Also permits the manufacture of 
beer, only on the premises specified in the license; the sale of beer 
manufactured on the premises to importing distributors, distributors 
and to nonlicensees for use and consumption; the storage of 
manufactured beer upon the premises; and retail sale of the beer 
manufactured on the premises of a restaurant/brewpub. 
(Restaurant/caterer/brewpub)    

B    Permits the retail sale by package only.    

   B-1    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor by package only, but not 
for consumption or use on the licensed premises, where more than 
thirty percent (30%) of the public sales area is devoted to alcoholic 
liquor. (Liquor store)    

      In no case shall the number of class B-1 licenses exceed one 
license per twelve thousand (12,000) population as determined by 
the official census population of the city of Woodstock.    

      There shall be a moratorium on the acceptance of class B-1 
license applications for time indefinite.    

   B-2    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor by package only, but not 
for consumption or use on the licensed premises, where no more 
than thirty percent (30%) of public sales area is devoted to 
alcoholic liquor. (Convenience store)    

      In no case shall the number of class B-2 licenses exceed one 
license per six thousand (6,000) population as determined by the 
official census population of the city of Woodstock.    

      In no case shall the number of class B-2 licenses exceed two (2) 
per identified sector. (Per liquor license sector map approved and 
dated March 4, 2008)    

      In no case shall a class B-2 license be extended to a convenience 
store associated with the distribution and sales of gasoline.    

      There shall be a moratorium on the acceptance of class B-2 
license applications for time indefinite.    

   B-3    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor by package only, but not 
for consumption or use on the licensed premises, where no more 
than ten percent (10%) of the public sales area is devoted to 
alcoholic liquor. (Major retail/grocery stores)    

   B- Permits the retail sale of beer and wine by package, the retail sale 



4a    of wine for consumption or use on the premises, and the sampling 
of beer and wine, with or without the service of food, on premises 
maintaining no bar for the sale of alcoholic liquor. 
(Nonconvenience specialty store with consumption of wine only)    

   B-
4b    

Permits the retail sale of beer and wine by package, the retail sale 
of beer and wine for consumption or use on the premises, and the 
sampling of beer and wine, with or without the service of food, on 
premises maintaining no bar for the sale of alcoholic liquor. 
(Nonconvenience specialty store with consumption of beer and 
wine only)    

   B-
4c    

Permits the retail sale of beer and wine by package, the retail sale 
of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use on the premises, and the 
sampling of beer and wine, with or without the service of food, on 
premises maintaining no bar for the sale of alcoholic liquor. 
(Nonconvenience specialty store with consumption of alcohol)    

   B-5    Permits the retail sale of beer and wine by package only, but not 
for consumption or use on the licensed premises, and the 
sampling of beer and wine on premises maintaining no bar or area 
reserved exclusively for the sale of alcoholic liquor. 
(Nonconvenience specialty store)    

   B-6    Permits the retail sale of beer and wine by package only in a 
convenience store associated with the distribution and sales of 
gasoline and where no more than thirty percent (30%) of the public 
sales area is devoted to beer and wine. (Gas station/convenience 
store)    

      In no case shall the number of B-6 licenses exceed one.    

      There shall be a moratorium on the acceptance of class B-6 
license applications for time indefinite.    

   B-7    Permits the retail sale of beer and wine by package only, but not 
for consumption or use on the licensed premises, where no more 
than ten percent (10%) of the public sales area is devoted to 
alcoholic liquor. (Major retail/grocery stores - beer and wine only)    

   B-8    Permits the low volume retail sale of beer and wine by package 
only, but not for consumption or use on the licensed premises, and 
the sampling of beer and wine on premises maintaining no bar or 
area reserved exclusively for the sale of alcoholic liquor where no 
more than twenty five percent (25%) of the public sales area is 
devoted to alcoholic liquor and where the annual sales for 
alcoholic liquor totals seventy five thousand dollars ($75,000.00) or 
less. The determination that the sales restriction has not been 



exceeded shall be made at the time of license renewal for the year 
just ended and records used to make this determination shall be in 
any form deemed acceptable by the city. This license also allows 
the transfer of a portion of beer and wine inventory from the 
licensed premises to the premises of a special event for sales or 
sampling but not for consumption. (Nonconvenience specialty 
store with low volume sales)    

   B-9    Permits the retail sale of beer and wine by package only, but not 
for consumption or use on the licensed premises, and the 
sampling of beer and wine on the premises of a small satellite 
business location of a brewpub, vintner, or winery selling their own 
product. This license also allows the transfer of a portion of beer 
and wine inventory from the licensed premises to the premises of a 
special event or the Woodstock Farmers' Market. (Satellite location 
of brewpub, vintner, or winery)    

C    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor by a club licensed for 
consumption or use on the licensed premises only.    

   C-
1    

Organizations with more than one thousand (1,000) members. 
(Club)    

   C-
2    

Organizations with less than one thousand (1,000) members. 
(Club)    

D    Permits the retail sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption or use on the 
licensed premises, incidental to the sale of food in premises maintaining 
no barroom, tavern, lounge, or other area reserved exclusively for the 
sale of alcoholic liquor. (Restaurant with no bar)    

E-1    Permits the retail sale of beer and wine only for consumption or use on 
the licensed premises, incidental to the sale of food, on premises 
maintaining no barroom, tavern, lounge or other area reserved 
exclusively for the retail sale of beer and wine on said premises. 
(Restaurant with no bar/beer and wine only)    

E-2    Permits the licensee to serve beer and wine as an incidental part of food 
service that serves prepared meals, either on or off the licensed 
premises. (Restaurant/caterer with no bar/beer and wine only)    

E-3    Permits the licensee to serve beer and wine for consumption or use on 
the licensed premises maintaining no barroom, tavern, lounge, or other 
area reserved exclusively for the retail sale of beer and wine on said 
premises. (No restaurant/no bar/consumption beer and wine only)    

E-4    Permits the retail sale of beer and wine only for consumption or use on 
the licensed premises, incidental to the sale of food, on premises of a 



specialty restaurant maintaining a small bar with eight (8) or fewer seats 
and the retail sale of beer and wine by package with no individual units 
sold. A single unit shall be defined as less than a six-pack of beer or a 
750 ml bottle of wine. (Specialty Restaurant with Small Bar/Beer and 
Wine Only) 

F    Repealed.    

G    Repealed.    

H    Wholesale delivery license permits the retail sale of beer and wine only, 
but not for consumption or use on the licensed premises and where 
delivery to the customer is in the original package container by mail or by 
common carrier, upon the following conditions (Wholesaler):    

   1.    There shall be no bar, lounge, taproom or other sales floor on the 
licensed premises;    

   2.    There shall be no outdoor advertising of the licensed premises; and    

   3.    There shall be no mandatory closing time.    

I    Permits the manufacturer of beer only on the premises specified in the 
license to make sales of the beer manufactured on the premises to 
importing distributors, distributors and to nonlicensees for use and 
consumption, to store the beer upon the premises and to sell and offer for 
sale the beer manufactured at retail on the premises of a brewpub. 
(Brewpub)    

J    Permits the holder to serve alcoholic liquors as an incidental part of a 
food services that serves prepared meals which excludes the serving of 
snacks as the primary meal either on or off site whether licensed or 
unlicensed by a caterer retailer. (Caterer)    

K    A special use license permits a licensed Illinois retailer to transfer a 
portion of its alcoholic liquor inventory from the retail licensed premises to 
the premises specified in the special use license, and to sell or offer for 
sale at retail, only on the premises specified in the special use license, 
the transferred alcoholic liquor for use or consumption, but not for resale 
in any form. A special use license may be granted for the following time 
periods: One day to a maximum of fifteen (15) days per special use 
location in any calendar year period. Special use licenses may only be 
issued to premises owned or occupied by not for profit, church, civic, or 
fraternal organizations. An applicant for a special use permit license must 
submit with the application satisfactory proof of dramshop liability 
insurance to the maximum statutory limits. (Retailer not for profit event)    

KK    Subject to city council approval, the liquor commissioner may issue a 
chamber of commerce business mixer license permit to the chamber of 



commerce, which will allow the host business to purchase alcoholic 
liquors to sell, offer for sale or deliver at business mixers sponsored by 
the chamber, but not for resale in any form. This permit also allows a 
licensed Illinois retailer to transfer a portion of its alcoholic inventory from 
its retail licensed premises and to offer for sale such transferred alcoholic 
liquor for use or consumption but not for resale. Upon issuance of the 
chamber of commerce business mixer permit, the chamber of commerce 
assumes responsibility for ensuring that proper security is utilized at each 
mixer to ensure that only those age twenty one (21) years and older are 
served, to ensure that no one is overserved, and to ensure that no 
alcohol is allowed to be consumed on any public way or property. 
Utilizing the chamber of commerce business permit, a total of up to 
twenty six (26) business mixers may be held in any one calendar year, 
only at or by businesses approved by the Woodstock chamber of 
commerce. The chamber of commerce shall submit with the application 
satisfactory proof of dramshop liability insurance to the maximum 
statutory limits covering all such mixers. (Chamber of commerce)    

L    Permits the sale of alcoholic liquors at retail in any building used as an 
Illinois state armory upon the following conditions (Armory):    

   1.    The adjutant general has consented in writing to the issuance of a 
liquor license to sell alcoholic liquor in such building, which written 
permission is on file in the office of the local liquor commissioner and 
the Illinois state liquor commission;    

   2.    Alcoholic liquor is sold or dispensed only in connection with 
organized functions held on special occasions;    

   3.    The organized function is one for which planned attendance is 
twenty five (25) or more persons; and    

   4.    The person selling or dispensing alcoholic liquors has provided 
dramshop liability insurance in the maximum limits provided by law 
so as to save harmless the facility, the state and the city from all 
financial loss, damage, or harm.    

M    1.    Subject to liquor commissioner approval and at the sole discretion of 
the liquor commissioner regarding its application in all or in part, a 
special use permit license allows an Illinois licensed retailer to 
transfer a portion of its alcoholic liquor inventory from its retail 
licensed premises to a designated site for a special event license for 
the consumption or use on the event premises. A special use permit 
shall only be granted for the following time periods: One day to a 
maximum of five (5) days per location in any twelve (12) month 
period. An applicant for a special use permit license must submit 
with the application satisfactory proof of dramshop liability insurance 



to the maximum statutory limits and obtain and/or possess a state 
special use permit license. (Retailers special event including 
consumption)    

   2.    Subject to liquor commissioner approval, and at the sole discretion 
of the liquor commissioner regarding its application in all or in part, a 
special use permit license allows an Illinois licensed retailer to 
transfer a portion of its beer and wine inventory from its retail 
licensed premises to a designated site for a special event for the 
retail sale of beer and wine by package, but not for consumption on 
premises. A special use permit shall only be granted for the following 
time periods: Event duration must be one day or less; event duration 
cannot exceed thirty (30) days annually; or event duration cannot 
exceed sixty (60) days annually. An applicant for a special use 
permit license must submit with the application satisfactory proof of 
dramshop liability insurance to the maximum statutory limits and 
obtain and/or possess a state special use permit license. (Retailers 
special event beer and wine only/no consumption)    

N    1.    Event Permit: Subject to city council approval, the liquor 
commissioner may issue an event permit to any licensee, as defined 
herein, to any nonprofit organization or club located within the city, 
such as a church, order or lodge, veterans' organization, civic 
organization or other similar organization, authorizing the sale of 
beer and wine at any picnic, club, or similar function sponsored by 
such organization or club. The permit fee shall be payable upon 
issuance of the event permit. The following restrictions are 
applicable for event permits (not for profit event permit):    

      a. No more than two (2) event permits shall be issued to any one 
such organization or club during a one year period. An event shall 
be limited to no more than four (4) consecutive days.    

      b. All sales and consumption pursuant to an event permit shall be 
conducted within an enclosed area and such area shall have a 
separate dedicated entrance, a separate dedicated exit and shall be 
adequately lighted.    

      c. Any beer or wine sold pursuant to an event permit must be 
consumed within the area described in the permit.    

      d. All sales and consumption pursuant to the event permit shall be 
conducted only during the hours specified on the permit.    

      e. Unless specifically provided otherwise, all requirements of this 
chapter including, but not limited to, a policy of insurance pursuant to 
subsection 3.3.3D of this chapter, shall apply to event permits 
granted under this subsection.    

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=3.3.3


      f. Each application for an event permit shall include information 
about the activity(ies) associated with the permit including, but not 
limited to, a drawing showing the premises where the beer and wine 
will be sold and consumed, ingress/egress and security. Said 
security plan shall be approved by the city.    

      g. If the beer and wine sold pursuant to this event permit is provided 
by a licensed Illinois retailer, the event permit allows the licensed 
Illinois retailer to transfer a portion of its beer and wine inventory 
from the licensed premises to the premises specified in the event 
permit and to sell or offer for sale at retail only on the premises 
specified in the event permit the transferred beer and wine for use or 
consumption, but not for resale in any form.    

   2.    Daily Permit: Subject to city council approval, the liquor 
commissioner may grant a daily permit to any nonprofit organization 
or club located within the city, such as a church, order or lodge, 
veterans' organization, civic organization or other similar 
organization authorizing the sale of beer and wine at any picnic, club 
or similar function sponsored by such organization or club. The 
restrictions applicable to event permits shall also be applicable to 
daily permits except that no more than five (5) such daily permits 
shall be issued to any one educational, fraternal, political, civic, 
religious or nonprofit organization during a one year period and the 
permit shall be valid for only one day. The permit fee shall be 
payable upon issuance of the daily permit.    

      Each application for a daily permit shall include information about 
the activity(ies) associated with the permit including, but not limited 
to, a drawing showing the premises where the beer and wine will be 
sold and consumed, ingress/egress and security. Said security plan 
shall be approved by the city. (Not for profit daily event permit)    

BYOB    1.    Permit Required: No person shall allow alcohol to be carried in for 
consumption on the premises of a public accommodation without 
having a BYOB permit which is hereby created.    

   2.    Application Requirements:    

      a. Applicant must show proof of ownership or present a fully 
executed lease for the period for which the permit is to be issued for 
the premises for which the permit is sought.    

      b. If applicant is not the property owner, proof must be provided of 
consent of property owner to obtain BYOB permit for the premises.    

      c. Applicant must be the beneficial owner of the business to be 
permitted.    



      d. Applicant must provide a certificate of insurance reflecting general 
liability in the amount of two hundred fifty thousand dollars 
($250,000.00), naming the city of Woodstock as certificate holder 
and additional insured.    

      e. Applicant must agree in writing to save and hold harmless the city 
of Woodstock from any and all claims arising out of consumption of 
alcoholic liquor on the premises.    

      f. Applicant must agree to abide by the city of Woodstock liquor 
code, including the prohibition of allowing minors to consume and 
the observance of the hours of consumption.    

   3.    Terms And Conditions: All BYOB permits shall be subject to the 
following terms and conditions. Violation of these terms and 
conditions may be cause for revocation of permit at the discretion of 
the liquor commissioner.    

      a. Term: A permit is purely a personal privilege, good for not to 
exceed one year from the date of issuance. The one year period 
shall be from May 1 of each year to April 30 of each following year, 
unless sooner revoked or suspended.    

      b. Expiration: All permits, regardless of the date of issuance, shall 
terminate on April 30 of each year following the date of issuance.    

      c. Hours: No holder of a BYOB permit shall allow service or 
consumption of any alcoholic liquor on the premises between the 
hours of one o'clock (1:00) A.M. and six o'clock (6:00) A.M. on any 
day, with the exception of Friday night, Saturday night, and nights 
prior to holidays. "Holidays" are New Year's Day, Memorial Day, 
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas 
Day in the city of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, and the 
closing hours on those nights shall be two o'clock (2:00) A.M.    

      The hours mentioned herein shall be Central Standard Time except 
when daylight saving time is in effect, and then said hours shall be 
Central Daylight Saving Time.    

      d. Serving Or Furnishing Alcohol: No permit holder under this 
section shall serve or allow beer or wine to be consumed by any 
person under the age of twenty one (21), or to any intoxicated 
person, or to any person known by him or her to be under legal 
disability or in need of mental treatment, or harbor or permit any 
intoxicated persons to loiter on the premises described in the permit 
or allow any conduct which shall tend to disturb the peace and quiet 
of the neighborhood, or the premises.    



      e. Service By Minors: No holder of a BYOB permit shall suffer or 
permit any person under the age of twenty one (21) to open, 
dispense, pour, or serve any beer or wine, or in any way tend bar as 
an employee of any permitted premises. This shall not prevent 
persons eighteen (18) years of age and over, as employees of 
permitted premises, from delivering beer and wine for consumption 
on the premises if allowed by the specific permit classification.    

   4.    Classes Created: There are hereby created the following classes:    

      a. BYOB-Corkage: Permits customer to bring beer or wine only into 
the permitted premises of a restaurant to be consumed on premises 
only as a complement to food. For the purposes of this BYOB-
corkage permit, a restaurant must derive more than forty percent 
(40%) of its gross revenue (on an annual basis) from the sale of 
food. The determination of whether the forty percent (40%) gross 
revenue standard has been met shall be made at the time of permit 
renewal for the year just ended. In the event a permit holder has not 
possessed a BYOB-corkage permit for a full year, the determination 
of whether the forty percent (40%) standard has been met shall be 
deferred until the next permit renewal period. The records used to 
determine whether said forty percent (40%) standard has been met 
shall include, but not be limited to, audited financial statements, 
corporate financial reports, tax return information, or any other form 
of information deemed acceptable by the city.    

      The following terms and conditions shall apply to a BYOB-corkage 
permit:    

      (1) The permit holder is permitted to provide glasses and other 
amenities for the consumption of beer and wine only on premises.    

      (2) The permit holder and employees over the age of twenty one 
(21) are permitted to open and pour the wine or beer.    

      (3) The permit holder is permitted to provide storage for the beer or 
wine as allowed by all applicable laws.    

      (4) The permit holder may charge a corkage fee for these services.    

      (5) An opened bottle of wine may be removed from the restaurant 
provided staff seals the container in a tamperproof bag as provided 
by law.    

      (6) In addition to general liability insurance, licensee must provide a 
certificate of insurance naming the city of Woodstock certificate 
holder and additional insured in the amount of two hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($250,000.00) per person and five hundred 



thousand dollars ($500,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury 
liability; fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) for loss of means of 
support; fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) for property damage 
liability, or a five hundred thousand dollar ($500,000.00) single limit 
dramshop policy.    

      (7) The annual fee for a BYOB-corkage permit is as listed in 
subsection C of this section.    

      b. BYOB Permit: Permits customer to bring beer or wine only into the 
permitted premises of a restaurant to be consumed on premises 
only as a complement to food. For the purposes of this BYOB 
permit, a restaurant must derive more than forty percent (40%) of its 
gross revenue (on an annual basis) from the sale of food. The 
determination of whether the forty percent (40%) gross revenue 
standard has been met shall be made at the time of permit renewal 
for the year just ended. In the event a permit holder has not 
possessed a BYOB permit for a full year, the determination of 
whether the forty percent (40%) standard has been met shall be 
deferred until the next permit renewal period. The records used to 
determine whether said forty percent (40%) standard has been met 
shall include, but not be limited to, audited financial statements, 
corporate financial reports, tax return information, or any other form 
of information deemed acceptable by the city.    

      

      The following terms and conditions shall apply to a BYOB permit:    

      (1) The permit holder is permitted to provide glasses and other 
amenities for the consumption of beer and wine only on premises.    

      (2) No permit holder, nor any employee or staff member are 
permitted to open and pour the wine or beer.    

      (3) No storage of beer or wine is permitted.    

      (4) No corkage fee may be charged.    

      (5) An opened bottle of wine may not be removed from the 
restaurant but must be disposed of before the customer leaves the 
premises.    

      (6) In addition to general liability insurance, licensee must provide a 
certificate of insurance naming the city of Woodstock certificate 
holder and additional insured in the amount of two hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($250,000.00) per person and five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury 
liability; fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) for loss of means of 
support; fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) for property damage 



liability, or a five hundred thousand dollar ($500,000.00) single limit 
dramshop policy.    

      (7) The fee for a BYOB permit shall be as listed in subsection C of 
this section.    

      c. BYOB - Nonrestaurant: Permits customer to bring beer or wine 
into the permitted premises of a retail establishment to be consumed 
on premises only at a special event.    

      The following terms and conditions shall apply to a BYOB-
nonrestaurant permit:    

      (1) The permit holder is permitted to provide glasses and other 
amenities for the consumption of beer and wine only on premises.    

      (2) No permit holder, nor any employee or staff member are 
permitted to open and pour the wine or beer.    

      (3) No storage of beer or wine is permitted.    

      (4) An opened bottle of wine or beer may not be removed from the 
premises but must be disposed of before the customer leaves the 
premises.    

      (5) In addition to general liability insurance, licensee must provide a 
certificate of insurance naming the city of Woodstock certificate 
holder and additional insured in the amount of two hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($250,000.00) per person and five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury 
liability; fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) for loss of means of 
support; fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) for property damage 
liability, or a five hundred thousand dollar ($500,000.00) single limit 
dramshop policy.    

      (6) The annual fee for a BYOB-nonrestaurant permit shall be as 
listed in subsection C of this section.    

 
(Ord. 2550, 5-2-1995; amd. Ord. 2596, 10-17-1995; Ord. 2620, 4-2-1996; Ord. 2631, 5-21-1996; 
Ord. 2644, 9-3-1996; Ord. 2653, 10-15-1996; Ord. 2673, 4-15-1997; Ord. 98-O-23, 5-5-1998; 
Ord. 99-O-4, 1-5-1999; Ord. 99-O-24, 5-4-1999; Ord. 00-O-34, 7-5-2000; Ord. 00-O-56, 11-7-
2000; Ord. 01-O-27, 7-3-2001; Ord. 01-O-35, 10-2-2001; Ord. 01-O-45, 12-4-2001; Ord. 02-O-
36, 6-4-2002; Ord. 02-O-62, 9-3-2002; Ord. 02-O-76, 10-1-2002; Ord. 03-O-21, 3-18-2003; Ord. 
04-O-43, 5-4-2004; Ord. 04-O-64, 8-3-2004; Ord. 04-O-107, 12-7-2004; Ord. 05-O-59, 6-21-
2005; Ord. 05-O-106, 11-1-2005; Ord. 06-O-23, 3-21-2006; Ord. 07-O-22, 2-20-2007; Ord. 07-O-
89, 10-2-2007; Ord. 08-O-11, 3-4-2008; Ord. 10-O-16, 4-6-2010; Ord. 11-O-04, 2-15-2011; Ord. 
12-O-19, 3-6-2012; Ord. 12-O-20, 3-20-2012; Ord. 12-O-28, 5-1-2012; Ord. 12-O-48, 10-16-
2012; Ord. 13-O-27, 5-21-2013; Ord. 14-O-19, 3-4-2014) 



 

C. Number And Fees: The following number of licenses and license fees shall be charged for each 
liquor license classification: 

Class       
Number 

Available       Fee    

               

A-1       6       $2,000.00    

A-2       11       1,500.00    

A-4       1       1,500.00    

A-5       0       1,000.00    

A-6       4      1,600.00    

A-7       0       1,800.00    

B-1       2       2,000.00    

B-2       4       1,200.00    

B-3       5       1,500.00    

B-4a       0       1,100.00    

B-4b       0       1,200.00    

B-4c       1       1,300.00    

B-5       0       1,500.00    

B-6       1       1,200.00    

B-7       0       1,200.00    

B-8       1       600.00    

B-9       0       600.00    

C-1       1       1,200.00    

C-2       1       800.00    

D       4       1,200.00    

E-1       5       600.00    

E-2       0       700.00    

E-3       2     500.00    



E-4       1       1,200.00    

H       0       1,600.00    

I       0       800.00    

J       0       800.00    

K                

KK       0       800.00    

L             800.00    

M-1             $150.00 per day    

M-2             $50.00 1 day    

$100.00 2 - 29 days    

$150.00 30 - 60 days    

N             $50.00 per day    

BYOB-corkage    0       $400 .00    

BYOB       0       200 .00    

BYOB-nonrestaurant       0       200 .00    

 
(Ord. 14-O-60, 10-7-2014) 

 

D. Outstanding Debts:  An applicant or holder of a liquor license shall not be indebted to the city. Any 
indebtedness in excess of thirty (30) days shall constitute the basis for the denial and/or 
revocation of a liquor license. (Ord. 03-O-21, 3-18-2003)If an applicant seeking issuance of a 
liquor license or a current licensee seeking renewal of said license is indebted to the City for any 
amount in excess of thirty (30) days, such indebtedness shall be deemed a surcharge of any 
applicable license fee under section 3.3.6C and the applicant or licensee shall pay off the 
indebtedness.  Failure to pay the surcharge as required under this subsection D shall constitute 
a basis for denial and/or revocation of a liquor license. 

 

E. Midyear License Applicants: Any applicant seeking a license under this chapter between May 1 
and August 31 of the same year shall pay the required license fee in subsection C of this 
section. Any applicant seeking a license between September 1 and December 31 of the same 
year shall pay the equivalent of two-thirds (

2
/3) of the applicable license fee in subsection C of 

this section. Any applicant seeking a license between February 1 and April 30 of the same year 



shall pay the equivalent of one-third (
1
/3) of the applicant license fee in subsection C of this 

section. 

 

F. Late Filing Penalty: Liquor license annual renewal application packets shall be submitted to the 
office of the mayor by April 4 of each year. A penalty of ten percent (10%) of the license fee shall 
be assessed to any licensee not submitting a renewal application packet with all the required 
documentation by April 17. In the event April 4 or 17 falls on a weekend, the deadline shall be 
the next business day. (Ord. 06-O-23, 3-21-2006) 

 
 
3.3.7: PRIVILEGE GRANTED BY LICENSE:  

 
A license issued under this chapter shall be purely a personal privilege good for not to exceed one 
year after issuance, unless sooner revoked, as in this chapter provided, and shall not constitute 
property, nor shall it be subject to attachment, garnishment or execution, nor shall it be alienable or 
transferable, voluntarily or involuntarily, or subject to being encumbered or hypothecated. Such 
license shall not descend by laws of testate or intestate devolution, but it shall cease upon the death 
of the licensee; provided, that executors or administrators of the estate of any deceased licensee, 
and the trustee of any insolvent or bankrupt licensee, when such estate consists in part of alcoholic 
liquor, may continue the business of the sale of alcoholic liquor under the order of the court having 
jurisdiction of the estate and may exercise the privileges of the deceased or insolvent or bankrupt 
licensee after the death of such decedent, or such insolvency or bankruptcy, until the expiration of 
such license but not longer than six (6) months after the death, bankruptcy or insolvency of such 
licensee. A refund shall be made of that portion of the license fees paid for any period in which the 
licensee shall be prevented from operating under such license in accordance with the provisions of 
this section. (1963 Code, §46.09) 
 

 

3.3.8: TERM OF LICENSES:  

 

A. A license is purely a personal privilege, good for not to exceed one year from the date of 
issuance. The one year period shall be from May 1 of each year to April 30 of each following 
year, unless sooner revoked or suspended or unless installment payments are not received as 
provided for in subsection C of this section. Licenses issued after May 1 of any year shall pay the 
prorated fee as provided for in subsection 3.3.6E of this chapter. (Ord. 11-O-04, 2-15-2011) 

 

B. All licenses, regardless of the date of issuance, shall terminate on April 30 of each year following 
the date of issuance. (Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998) 

 

C. Licensees for whom the annual license fee is one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or more may pay 
for the license in two (2) installments. First installment is due with the application for renewal; 
second installment is due no later than November 1. If the second installment is received in a 
timely manner, license in question will automatically continue. If second installment is not 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=3.3.6


received by November 15, license in question will be suspended as of twelve o'clock (12:00) 
midnight on that date. Reinstatement of said license is subject to reapplication, approval, 
payment of the second installment, and payment of a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars 
($500.00) as determined by and at the sole discretion of the liquor commissioner. (Ord. 11-O-04, 
2-15-2011) 

 
 
3.3.9: RENEWAL OF LICENSE:  

 

A. Provisions: Any licensee may renew his license at the expiration thereof, provided he is then 
qualified to receive a license and the premises for which such renewal license is sought is 
suitable for such purpose, and provided further, that the renewal privilege herein provided for 
shall not be construed as a vested right which shall in any case prevent the city council from 
decreasing the number of licenses to be issued within its jurisdiction. (Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 

 

B. Mandatory Educational Seminar: As a condition of license renewal, the manager of each licensed 
premises shall be required to attend a city sponsored licensee educational seminar. The 
educational seminar shall be conducted by the city prior to the beginning of a new license year. 
(Ord. 07-O-22, 2-20-2007) 

 
3.3.10: CLOSING HOURS:  

 

A. No person shall sell or offer for sale any alcoholic liquor in the city between the hours of one 
o'clock (1:00) A.M. and six o'clock (6:00) A.M. on any day, with the exception of Friday night, 
Saturday night, and nights prior to holidays. "Holidays" are New Year's Day, Memorial Day, 
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day in the city of Woodstock, 
McHenry County, Illinois, and the closing hours on those nights shall be two o'clock (2:00) A.M. 
(Ord. 1595, 7-1-1980; amd. Ord. 00-O-54, 11-7-2000) 

 

B. It shall be unlawful to keep open for business, or to admit persons to any premises licensed under 
these rules for the retail sale of alcoholic liquors during the hours within which the sale of 
alcoholic liquors is prohibited or to permit or allow persons to remain in or about the licensed 
premises either before or after the hours designated within which the sale and consumption of 
alcoholic liquor is prohibited on the licensed premises; provided, however, that restaurants, 
clubs, drugstores, retail grocery stores and hotels may keep their place of business open, 
subject only to the provisions that no sale at retail of alcoholic liquors or the consumption by 
persons of alcoholic liquors shall be permitted or allowed on said licensed premises during the 
hours prohibited. 

 

C. The hours mentioned herein shall be Central Standard Time except when daylight saving time is 
in effect, and then said hours shall be Central Daylight Saving Time. (Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998) 



 

3.3.11: LOCATION RESTRICTIONS:  
 

A. No license shall be issued for the sale at retail of any alcoholic liquor within one hundred feet 
(100') of any church, school, hospital, home for aged or indigent persons or for veterans, their 
wives or children or any military or naval station; provided, that this prohibition shall not apply to 
hotels offering restaurant service, regularly organized clubs, or to restaurants, food shops or 
places where sale of alcoholic liquors is not the principal business carried on, if such place of 
business so exempted shall have been established for such purposes prior to April 6, 1954. No 
person shall engage in business as a retailer of alcoholic liquor within one hundred feet (100') of 
any undertaking establishment or mortuary after April 6, 1954. (1963 Code, §46.16) 

 

B. (Rep. by Ord. 2436, 8-17-1993) 

 

C. Licenses issued hereunder apply only to the premises described in the application and in the 
license issued thereon, and only one location shall be so described in each license. After a 
license has been granted for particular premises, the local liquor commissioner, upon proper 
showing, may endorse upon said license permission to abandon the premises therein described 
and remove therefrom to other premises approved by the commissioner, but in order to obtain 
such approval, the licensee shall file with the commissioner a request in writing and a statement 
under oath which shall show that the premises to which removal is to be made comply in all 
respects with the requirements of this chapter

12
. 

 
There shall be a fifty dollar ($50.00) fee for transfer of said license. (1986 Code) 

3.3.12: BUILDING REGULATIONS: 

 

A. In premises upon which the sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption upon the premises is 
licensed, other than as a restaurant, hotel or club, no screen, blind, curtain, partition, opaque 
glass, article or thing shall be permitted in the windows or upon the doors of such licensed 
premises nor inside such premises, which shall prevent a clear view into the interior of such 
licensed premises from the street or sidewalk at all times, and no booth, screen, partition or other 
obstruction nor any arrangement of lights or lighting shall be permitted in or about the interior of 
such premises which prevents full view of the entire interior of such premises from the street or 
sidewalk, and the premises must be located so that there shall be full view of the entire interior of 
such premises from the street or sidewalk. To the extent that the rules and regulations governing 
the video gaming act, including, but not limited to, the provisions of the Illinois administrative 
code title 11, chapter 1, section 1800.810(c) (requiring restricted visibility for video gaming 
locations from areas outside of the business) provide that video gaming areas must have 
restricted visibility from outside the business then these licensed premises should comply with 
this subsection to the maximum extent possible in a manner consistent with the video gaming 
regulations and the public health, safety and welfare. 
 
City license approval will be contingent upon proper placement of video gaming terminals in 
accordance with the video gaming act and local city ordinances, the location of which must be 
approved by the city. (Ord. 12-O-47, 10-2-2012) 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote12


 

B. All rooms where liquor is sold for consumption upon the premises shall be continuously lighted 
during business hours by natural light or artificial white light so that all parts of the interior of the 
premises shall be clearly visible. 

 

C. In case the view into any such licensed premises required by the foregoing provisions shall be 
willfully obscured by the licensee or by him willfully suffered to be obscured or in any manner 
obstructed, then such license shall be subject to revocation as provided in section 3.3.17. (1963 
Code, §46.20) 

 

D. On premises upon which the sale of alcoholic liquor by package only is licensed as a class B-2 
(convenience store), class B-3 (major retail/grocery stores) or class B-6 (gas station/convenience 
store), no more than twenty percent (20%) of the establishment's total window and door area 
facing the public way shall be devoted to alcoholic liquor or tobacco advertising in the form of 
posters, paper signage, fliers, neon signage, banners or any other form of advertisement, 
oriented either to the interior or to the exterior. Furthermore, within the twenty percent (20%) 
allowable area for advertising, there shall be no more than three (3) neon signs, each limited to 
displaying or advertising one product unit of liquor or tobacco. The relative size of a given 
window or door sign shall be determined by measuring a box around the entire group of words, 
letters and symbols. (Ord. 10-O-02, 1-19-2010) 

 

E. In order to enforce the provisions of this section, the commissioner shall have the right to require 
the filing with him of plans, drawings and photographs showing the clearance of the view as 
above required. (1963 Code, §46.20; amd. Ord. 10-O-02, 1-19-2010; Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 

3.3.13: SANITARY REQUIREMENTS:  

 

A. All premises used for the retail sale of alcoholic liquor, or for the storage of such liquor for such 
sale shall be kept in a clean and sanitary condition, and shall be kept in full compliance with the 
laws of Illinois and the ordinances regulating the condition of premises used for the storage or 
sale of food for human consumption. (1963 Code, §46.14) 

 

B. It shall be unlawful to employ in any premises used for the retail sale of alcoholic liquor any 
person who is afflicted with, or who is a carrier of, any contagious, infectious or venereal 
disease; and it shall be unlawful for any person who is afflicted with or a carrier of any such 
disease to work in or about any premises or to engage in any way in handling, preparation or 
distribution of such liquor. (1963 Code, §46.15) 

 
3.3.14: PROHIBITED ACTS AND CONDITIONS:  

 



A. Peddling: No person shall peddle alcoholic liquor in the city. (1963 Code, §46.13) 

 

B. Sales: No licensee under this chapter shall sell alcoholic liquor to any person under the age of 
twenty one (21), or to any intoxicated person, or to any person known by him or her to be under 
legal disability or in need of mental treatment, or harbor or permit any intoxicated persons to 
loiter on the premises described in the license or permit any conduct which shall tend to disturb 
the peace and quiet of the neighborhood, or the premises. No holder of a retail liquor dealer's 
license or his agent or employee shall deliver any beer, wine or other alcoholic liquor to any 
place off the premises of the licensee unless an adult shall sign the delivery receipt and receive 
the beer, wine or other alcoholic beverage personally from the delivery man. (1963 Code, 
§46.17; amd. 1986 Code) 

 

C. Public Consumption: It shall be unlawful for any person to consume any "alcoholic liquor", as 
defined by this chapter, or any beer upon or about the following places: 1) any street, sidewalk or 
public thoroughfare within any area zoned in a business district as defined by the zoning 
ordinance within the city limits, except to the extent the city waives the enforcement of this 
section pursuant to a request by a licensee to sell or offer for sale alcoholic beverages at an 
outdoor dining cafe. As a condition of being granted this waiver, the licensee shall comply with 
all requirements imposed by the city regarding screening, sound amplification and location. The 
licensee shall also comply with all insurance requirements pursuant to subsection 3.3.3D of this 
chapter and shall make the city an additional insured party under the licensee's certificate of 
insurance. This exception shall only be available to retailers that derive their principal business 
from the sale of services or commodities other than alcoholic beverages. (Ord. 05-O-59, 6-21-
2005) 

 

D. Prohibitions: 

1. It shall be unlawful for any person maintaining, owning or operating a commercial 
establishment located within the city, at which alcoholic beverages are offered for sale for 
consumption on the premises, to permit or allow the following activity to be conducted on the 
premises of such a commercial establishment, all of which activity is defined in section 
3.13.1 of this title: "adult business"; "adult entertainment center"; adults only activity, 
bookstore, motion picture theater, nightclub, sauna; "nudity"; obscene activity; "rap parlor"; 
"sadomasochistic activity"; or sexual conduct activity. 

2. It shall be unlawful for any establishment defined as an adult business pursuant to the 
Woodstock zoning ordinance to sell, distribute or permit beer or alcoholic beverages on the 
premises. (Ord. 98-O-15, 4-7-1998) 

3. Employees shall not have bodily contact with patrons and patrons shall not be permitted to 
purchase beverages for employees. For purposes of this subsection D, the term "employees" 
shall include independent contractors performing services on the licensed premises and 
employees of any independent contractors performing services on the licensed premises. 

 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=3.3.3
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=3.13.1


E. Prohibition Of Disturbance Of The Peace: It shall be unlawful for any licensee, individually or 
through his or her agents or employees, to allow intoxicated persons to loiter on or about that 
part of the premises described in the license which part is in use by or in view of the general 
public, or permit any conduct which shall tend to disturb the people or quiet of the neighborhood 
or the premises. (Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998) 

 

F. Prohibition Of Gambling: It shall be unlawful for any licensee hereunder to permit or allow any 
gambling or betting of any money in or about the licensed premises except in a manner 
consistent with all federal law and with the Illinois video gaming act

13
 and any rules or 

regulations enacted thereunder. (Ord. 12-O-47, 10-2-2012) 

 

G. Restrictions Upon Sound Amplification: It shall be unlawful for any licensee to permit or allow any 
noise or sound to be amplified outside the bounds of a structure on the premises if a residence is 
within five hundred feet (500') of the premises. (Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998) 

3.3.15: MINORS:  
 

A. Selling Or Furnishing Liquor: No person, either directly or indirectly by himself, bartender, clerk, 
agent or service or employee, shall at any time sell, furnish, give or deliver any alcoholic liquor to 
any person under the age of twenty one (21) years. No person under the age of twenty one (21) 
years shall be permitted in any place where beer and wine or other alcoholic liquors are sold for 
consumption on the premises, except places in which the principal business is the sale of 
services or commodities other than alcoholic liquors. (Ord. 1041, 10-2-1973; amd. 1986 Code) 

 

B. Premises Restrictions: 

1. No holder of a retail liquor dealer's license or his bartender, agent or employee shall suffer or 
permit any person under the age of twenty one (21) to be in or remain in any room or 
compartment adjoining or adjacent to or situated in the room or place in which such licensed 
premises is located unless such person is accompanied by his/her parent or guardian; 
provided, that this shall not apply to any licensed premises or portion thereof which derives 
its principal business from the sale of services or commodities other than alcoholic liquor. 

2. No holder of a retail liquor dealer's license or his bartender, agent or employee shall suffer or 
permit any person under the age of twenty one (21) to be in or remain in any room or 
compartment adjoining or adjacent to or situated in the room or place in which such licensed 
premises is located after the hour of nine o'clock (9:00) P.M. on any night, regardless of 
whether that person is accompanied by a parent or guardian; provided, that this shall not 
apply to any licensed premises or portion thereof which derives its principal business from 
the sale of services or commodities other than alcoholic liquor. 

3. No holder of a retail liquor dealer's license shall suffer or permit any person under the age of 
twenty one (21) to dispense, draw, pour, or mix any alcoholic liquor, or in any way tend bar 
as an employee of any licensed premises for consumption on or off said premises. This shall 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote13


not prevent persons eighteen (18) years of age and over, as employees of licensed 
premises, from delivering alcoholic liquor for consumption on the premises. (Ord. 2575, 8-1-
1995) 

 

C. Warning: Every tavern, drugstore or other place in the city where alcoholic liquor is sold for 
beverage purposes shall display at all times in a prominent place in the entrance to the room or 
section in which liquor is sold a printed card which shall be issued by the commissioner and 
which shall read substantially as follows: 
 
WARNING TO MINORS. In accordance with Title 3, Chapter 3 of the Municipal Code of the City 
of Woodstock regulating the sale of alcoholic liquor, MINORS are not permitted on these 
premises. 
(1963 Code, §46.22; amd. Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 

 

D. Religious Ceremonies: No person, after purchasing or otherwise obtaining alcoholic liquor, shall 
sell, give or deliver such alcoholic liquor to another person under the age of twenty one (21) 
years, except in the performance of a religious ceremony or service. 

 

E. Written Evidence Of Age: Any licensee, or his agent or employee, may refuse to sell or serve 
alcoholic beverages to any person who is unable to produce adequate written evidence of 
identity and of the fact that he or she is over the age of twenty one (21) years. Adequate written 
evidence of age and identity of the person is a document issued by a federal, state, county or 
municipal government, including, but not limited to, a motor vehicle operator's license, a 
registration certificate issued under the federal selective service act, or an identification card 
issued to a member of the armed forces. Proof that the defendant licensee, or his employee or 
agent, demanded, was shown and reasonably relied upon such written evidence in any 
transaction, forbidden by this section is competent evidence and may be considered in any 
criminal prosecution therefor or to any proceedings for the suspension or revocation of any 
license based thereon. 

 

F. False Identification: Any person who sells, gives or furnishes to any person under the age of 
twenty one (21) years any false or fraudulent written, printed, or photostatic evidence of the age 
and identity of such person or who sells, gives or furnishes to any person under the age of 
twenty one (21) years evidence of age and identification of any other person is guilty of a class B 
misdemeanor. (1986 Code) 

 

G. Gatherings: 

1. It is unlawful for any parent or guardian to knowingly permit his or her residence to be used by 
an invitee of the parent's child or the guardian's ward, if the invitee is under the age of twenty 
one (21), in a manner that constitutes a violation of this section. A parent or guardian is 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=4&find=3-3


deemed to have knowingly permitted his or her residence to be used in violation of this 
section if he or she knowingly authorizes, enables or permits consumption of alcoholic liquor 
by underage invitees. Any person who violates this subsection G1 is guilty of a class A 
misdemeanor and the person's sentence shall include, but shall not be limited to, a fine of 
not less than five hundred dollars ($500.00). Where a violation of this subsection G1 directly 
or indirectly results in great bodily harm or death to any person, the person violating this 
subsection G1 shall be guilty of a class 4 felony as provided for in 235 Illinois Compiled 
Statutes 5/6-16(a)(1). Nothing in this subsection G1 shall be construed to prohibit the giving 
of alcoholic liquor to a person under the age of twenty one (21) years in the performance of a 
religious ceremony or service in observation of a religious holiday. 

2. Except as otherwise provided in this section, whoever violates this section shall, in addition to 
other penalties provided for in this chapter, be guilty of a class A misdemeanor. 

3. Any person shall be guilty of a class A misdemeanor where he or she knowingly permits a 
gathering at a residence which he or she occupies, of two (2) or more persons where any 
one or more of the persons is under twenty one (21) years of age and either of the following 
factors apply: 

a. The person occupying the residence knows that any such person under the age of twenty one 
(21) is in possession of or is consuming any alcoholic beverage and the possession or 
consumption of the alcohol by the person under twenty one (21) is not otherwise permitted in 
this chapter; or 

b. The person occupying the residence knows that the person under the age of twenty one (21) 
leaves the residence in an intoxicated condition. 
 
For purposes of this subsection G, where the residence has an owner and a tenant or 
lessee, there is a rebuttable presumption that the residence is occupied only by the tenant or 
lessee. (Ord. 07-O-89, 10-2-2007) 

 

HG. Purchase Or Acceptance By Persons Of Nonage: 

1. Any person under the age of twenty one (21) years shall not purchase or accept a gift of 
alcoholic liquor or have alcoholic liquor in his possession. 

2. The consumption of alcoholic liquor by any person under the age of twenty one (21) years is 
forbidden. 

3. Any person under the age of twenty one (21) years who presents or offers to any licensee, his 
agent or employee, any written, printed or photostatic evidence of age and identity which is 
false, fraudulent, or not actually his own for the purpose of ordering, purchasing, attempting 
to purchase or otherwise procuring or attempting to procure, the serving of any alcoholic 
beverage or who has in his possession any false or fraudulent written, printed, or photostatic 
evidence of age and identity, is guilty of a class B misdemeanor.  

4. Any person under the age of twenty one (21) years who has any alcoholic beverage in his 
possession on any street or highway or in any public place or in any place open to the public 
is guilty of a class B misdemeanor. This subsection H4 does not apply to possession by a 



person under the age of twenty one (21) years making a delivery of any alcoholic beverage 
in pursuance of the order of his or her parent or in pursuance of his or her employment. 

5. The possession and dispensing or consumption by a person under the age of twenty one (21) 
years of alcoholic liquor in the performance of a religious service or ceremony, or the 
consumption by any person under the age of twenty one (21) years under the direct 
supervision and approval of the parents or parent of any person under the age of twenty one 
(21) years in the privacy of a home is not prohibited by this subsection. (Ord. 875, 6-2-1970; 
amd. 1986 Code) 

3.3.16: KEG TAGGING:  

 

A. Definitions: In addition to those terms defined in title 1, chapter 3 of this code and section 3.3.1 of 
this chapter, the following words shall have the following meanings unless the context otherwise 
requires: 
 
KEG: A reusable container designed and capable of holding four (4) or more gallons of beer or 
malt beverage. 
 
PERSON: Any natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust or 
association. 
 
RETAILER: A person who sells, offers for sale, or does or offers to exchange for any form of 
consideration, any keg. 

 

B. Retailer Duties: All retailers and their employees and agents shall be required to: 

1. Affix or cause to be affixed to any keg sold a keg identification tag ("KIT"). A KIT shall consist 
of a uniquely numbered and coded tag furnished by the city. A KIT shall be used for a single 
sale and affixed by the retailer prior to sale and removed only by the retailer upon return of 
the keg. 

2. Require the purchaser of a keg to exhibit proper proof of identification and retain a copy of the 
purchaser's identification. If the purchaser fails to provide proof of identification, the retailer 
shall refuse to sell the keg. 

3. Require the purchaser to complete and sign a keg registration form, furnished and prescribed 
by the city, disclosing the purchaser's name, address, telephone number and driver's license 
or other state identification number. The form shall contain and acknowledge that the 
purchaser understands that no person under the age of twenty one (21) years will be allowed 
to possess or consume beer or malt beverage from the keg. The form shall also inform the 
purchaser that any deposit paid by the purchaser for the keg shall be forfeited if the keg is 
returned without the KIT. 

4. Furnish a copy of the keg registration paperwork to the purchaser. 

5. Retain copies of all keg registration forms, along with a copy of the purchaser's identification 
for at least one year from the date of purchase. 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=4&find=1-3
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=3.3.1


6. Report and forward a copy of the keg registration paperwork to the city manager if a keg is 
returned without the KIT, or with a damaged or a defaced KIT, or if the keg is not returned 
within ten (10) days of the due date. 

 

C. Purchaser Requirements: Any person who purchases a keg shall: 

1. Furnish proper identification to the retailer and complete and sign the keg registration form 
described in subsection B3 of this section; 

2. Not allow any person under the age of twenty one (21) years to possess or consume beer or 
malt beverage from the keg, except as otherwise allowed by state law or local ordinance; 

3. Not remove, damage or deface the KIT; 

4. Retain a copy of the keg registration form in a location that is readily accessible from the 
location of the keg at all times. 

 

D. Violations: 

1. It shall be unlawful for purchasers to: 

a. Remove, damage or deface all or part of a KIT; 

b. Fail to return a keg within ten (10) days of the due date; 

c. Fail to maintain the keg registration form in a readily accessible location from the keg; 

d. Allow any person under the age of twenty one (21) years to consume beer or malt beverage 
from the keg, except in accordance with state law or as otherwise allowed by local 
ordinance. 

2. It shall be unlawful for retailers to: 

a. Sell or offer for sale a keg without a KIT; 

b. Fail to maintain purchaser identification and keg registration paperwork for one year following 
the date of purchase of the keg; 

c. Fail to report and forward paperwork to the city manager if a keg is returned without the KIT or 
with a damaged or a defaced KIT or if the keg is not returned within ten (10) days of the due 
date; 

d. The provisions of this section shall not apply to a manufacturer or wholesale distributor of 
kegs. 

 



E. Penalty: Any person, firm or corporation who violates any provision of this section shall, upon a 
finding that a violation occurred, be assessed a penalty of not less than two hundred fifty dollars 
($250.00) and not more than one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500.00). 

 

F. Revocation, Suspension Or Fine: In addition to the penalty noted above, a liquor license may be 
revoked or suspended or a fine imposed by the liquor commissioner for a violation by a retailer of 
any part or portion of this section pursuant to the provisions of section 3.3.17. (Ord. 12-O-55, 12-
18-2012) 

 

3.3.17: REVOCATION, SUSPENSION OR FINE:  

 

A. Revocation: Licenses granted hereunder may be revoked by the commissioner for the violation of 
any part or portion of this chapter (including violations related to the video gaming act), or of the 
liquor control act, or of any valid resolution or ordinance enacted by the city, or of any applicable 
rule or regulation established by the commissioner or any violation of the criminal code which 
occurs on the licensed premises or any violation of the criminal code which occurs off the 
licensed premises where said violation involves or relates to the sale or consumption of alcoholic 
beverages on the licensed premises. Licenses granted hereunder may be revoked upon the 
conviction of licensee under the criminal code. Should any applicant for license make a false or 
fraudulent statement in such application, the same shall be cause for revocation by the 
commissioner of such license. 

 

B. Suspension: Licenses granted hereunder may be suspended by the commissioner for a period of 
not exceeding thirty (30) days for the violation of any part or portion of this chapter (including 
violations related to the video gaming act), or of the liquor control act, or of any valid resolution or 
ordinance enacted by the city, or of any applicable rule or regulation established by the 
commissioner or by the state liquor control commission or any violation of the criminal code 
which occurs on the licensed premises or any violation of the criminal code which occurs off the 
licensed premises where said violation involves or relates to the sale or consumption of alcoholic 
beverages on the licensed premises. During such period of suspension, no alcoholic liquor shall 
be sold on said licensed premises. 

 

C. Fine: In addition to revocation or suspension of the liquor license by the commissioner, the 
commissioner may fine any licensee up to one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), plus the city's cost 
of prosecution including reasonable attorney fees, for each violation of any part or portion of this 
chapter (including violations related to the video gaming act), or of the liquor control act, or of 
any valid resolution or ordinance enacted by the city, or of any applicable rule or regulation 
established by the commissioner or by the state liquor control commission or any violation of the 
criminal code which occurs on the licensed premises or any violation of the criminal code which 
occurs off the licensed premises where said violation involves or relates to the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverages on the licensed premises. 

 



D. Proof Establishing Violation: Proof before the commissioner of the facts establishing a violation of 
any federal law, state statute or regulation, city ordinance or resolution or rule of the Illinois liquor 
control commission or the Illinois gaming board shall be sufficient cause for a revocation, 
suspension or fine of any license, whether or not a conviction has been obtained in any court. 
(Ord. 12-O-47, 10-2-2012) 

3.3.18: HEARINGS BEFORE THE COMMISSIONER:  

 

A. Notice Of Hearing: Whenever this chapter requires a hearing before the commissioner or the 
commissioner acts affirmatively concerning a license or licensee, the licensee shall be afforded 
reasonable notice of such hearingno less than three (3) days’ notice of such hearing. Such 
notice shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or personal delivery to the address 
of the licensee contained on the liquor license application and shall state: 

1. The time, place, and nature of the hearing. 

2. A statement of the legal authority and jurisdiction under which the hearing is to be held. 

3. A reference to the particular sections of the ordinances or statute(s) involved. 

4. A statement informing the licensee of his or her ability to respond by presenting evidence and 
argument. 

 

B. If the commissioner has reason to believe that any continued operation of a particular licensed 
premises will immediately threaten the welfare of the City, he may, upon the issuance of a 
written order stating the reason for such conclusion and without notice or hearing order the 
licensed premises closed for not more than seven (7) days, giving the licensee the opportunity to 
be heard during that period, except that if such licensee shall also be engaged in the conduct of 
other business or businesses on the licensed premises such order shall not be applicable to 
such other business or businesses. 

 

BC. Conduct Of Hearings: 

1. A hearing required under this chapter shall be held in accordance with the following rules: 

a. The hearing shall be held at a reasonable time, date and place. 

b. The hearing shall be open to the public.No cause shall be heard earlier than three (3) days 
after receipt by a licensee of the notice required under this chapter. 

c. A licensee may present evidence and argument. 

d. The commissioner may limit, but not prohibit, the presentation of evidence and argument. 
Evidence not admissible under the rules of evidence and privilege as applied in civil cases in 
the circuit courts of this state may be admitted if it is of a type commonly relied upon by 
reasonably prudent men in the conduct of their affairs. 



e. The commissioner shall maintain an official record of the proceedings for purposes of section 
3.3.18F. 

2. Where a licensee has received the requisite notice under this chapter and fails to appear at a 
hearing, the commissioner may act ex parte. The commissioner may also have an informal 
hearing where the liquor license will not be affirmatively acted on at such hearing. 

 

C. Decisions Of The Commissioner: Any decision, order or determination rendered by the 
commissioner which affects the rights, duties or privileges of a licensee, shall be in writing and 
shall notify the licensee personally or by certified mail of the decision within five (5) days of the 
hearing. Any such decision, order or determination may include assessment of all costs, fees 
and expenses as determined by the commissioner. 

 

D. Waiver: Compliance with any or all of the provisions of this chapter concerning procedure may be 
waived by written stipulation of all parties except for the five (5) day notification and delivery of a 
decision of the commissioner. 

 

E. Continuances For Hearings: 

1. A request for a continuance of any hearing in any matter before the commissioner will not be 
allowed unless for good and valid reason in writing and unless made at least two (2) days 
prior to the date set for hearing. 

2. The commissioner may, in his discretion, grant a continuance if extenuating and unusual 
circumstances are presented in support of the request for continuance. 

3. Any continuances requested by the licensee shall be contingent upon payment by the 
licensee of all costs, fees, and expenses as determined by the commissioner. 

 

F. Appeal On The Record: Any appeal taken from a decision of the commissioner shall be reviewed 
on the official record taken by and prepared by a certified court reporter or certified shorthand 
reporter. (Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 

 
 
3.3.19: GENERAL PROVISIONS:  

 

A. Display Of Liquor License: The city certificate of license issued in conformity with the provisions of 
this act shall be displayed at all times in a prominent place in the said licensed establishment. 
(Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998; amd. Ord. 10-O-02, 1-19-2010) 



 

B. Nondiscrimination In The Issuance/Renewal Of Liquor License: The commissioner shall not issue 
nor renew a liquor license of any category to any person which discriminates in its service to 
individuals on the basis of race, color, gender, ethnic origin, national origin or ancestry. Except, 
bona fide "club(s)" as defined in the liquor control law are exempt from this provision. (Ord. 98-O-
52, 10-20-1998; amd. Ord. 10-O-02, 1-19-2010; Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 

 

C. Change Of Location: A liquor license shall permit the sale of alcoholic liquor only in the premises 
described in the application and license. Such location may be changed only upon the receipt of 
written permission from the commissioner. No change of location shall be permitted unless the 
proposed new location is in compliance with the provisions and regulations of this chapter. 

 

DC. Abandonment: If the licensee to which a license has been issued discontinues operations at the 
premises described in the application and license for ninety (90) consecutive days, or whenever 
there is evidence of a clear intent of the licensee to abandon the premises, said license shall be 
subject to revocation. 

 

ED. Books And Records Of Licensee: It shall be the duty of every retail licensee to make books and 
records available upon reasonable notice for the purpose of investigation and control by the 
Illinois liquor control commission or the commissioner. Such books and records need not be 
maintained on the licensed premises, but must be maintained in the state. However, all original 
invoices covering purchases of alcoholic liquor must be retained on the licensed premises for a 
period of ninety (90) days after such purchase. (Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998; amd. Ord. 10-O-02, 
1-19-2010) 

3.3.20: INSPECTIONS AND ENFORCEMENT:  

 

A. A licensee or his agent or employee may sell, give or deliver alcoholic liquor to a person under the 
age of twenty one (21) years or authorize the sale, gift or delivery of alcoholic liquor to a person 
under the age of twenty one (21) years pursuant to a plan or action to investigate, patrol or 
otherwise conduct a "sting operation" or enforcement action against a person employed by the 
licensee or on any licensed premises if the licensee, agent or employee of the licensee provides 
written notice, at least fourteen (14) days before the "sting operation" or enforcement action. 
Notice provided under this section shall be valid for a "sting operation" or enforcement action 
conducted within sixty (60) days of the provision of that notice. (Ord. 02-O-99, 11-19-2002; amd. 
Ord. 10-O-02, 1-19-2010) 

 

B. The commissioner, through the police department that conducts alcohol and tobacco compliance 
operations, shall establish a policy and standards for alcohol and tobacco compliance operations 
to investigate whether a licensee is furnishing: 1) alcoholic liquor to persons under twenty one 
(21) years of age in violation of this chapter or 2) tobacco, or alternative nicotine products such 



as e-cigarettes, to persons in violation of the sale of tobacco to minors act
14

. (Ord. 14-O-16, 2-4-
2014) 

 

C. Any city law enforcement officer may at any time enter upon any licensed premises to determine 
whether any of the provisions of this chapter or whether any of the rules or regulations adopted 
by the city council or by the state of Illinois have been or are being violated and at such time may 
examine the licensed premises in connection therewith. 

 

D. Any city law enforcement officer may receive a complaint from any citizen that any of the 
provisions of this chapter or any rules or regulations adopted by the city council or by the state 
have been or are being violated, and may act upon such complaints in the manner provided. 
(Ord. 02-O-99, 11-19-2002; amd. Ord. 10-O-02, 1-19-2010) 

 

E. The commissioner shall have the authority to make and establish rules and regulations of 
procedure concerning notice of hearings and all such other matters as may from time to time be 
necessary, and to appoint a person or persons to assist him in the exercise of the powers and 
the performance of the duties herein. (Ord. 11-O-17, 2-15-2011) 

 

F. It shall be a violation of this chapter to refuse to grant admittance to a licensed premises at any 
time upon the verbal request of any police officer or any other legally authorized person. (Ord. 
02-O-99, 11-19-2002; amd. Ord. 10-O-02, 1-19-2010) 

3.3.21: SOCIAL HOSTING:  

 

A. Definitions: In addition to those terms defined in title 1, chapter 3 of this code and section 3.3.1 of 
this chapter, the following words shall have the following meanings unless the context otherwise 
requires: 

ALCOHOL: Ethyl alcohol, hydrated oxide of ethyl, or spirits of wine, whiskey, rum, brandy, gin, or 
any other distilled spirits including dilutions and mixtures thereof from whatever source or by 
whatever process produced. 
 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE: Alcohol, spirits, liquor, wine, beer, and every liquid or solid containing 
alcohol, spirits, wine, beer, and which contains one-half of one percent or more of alcohol by 
volume and which is fit for beverage purposes either alone or when diluted, mixed, or combined 
with other substances. 
 
EVENT OR GATHERING: Any group of two (2) or more persons who have assembled or 
gathered together for a social occasion or other activity. 
 
HOST: To overtly aid, conduct, allow, entertain, organize, supervise, control, or permit a 
gathering or event. 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?book_id=562&section_id=954108&keywords=#Footnote14
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=4&find=1-3
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=3.3.1


 
ILLICIT DRUGS: Any drug, substance, or compound prohibited by law, as defined in the Illinois 
controlled substance act, 720 Illinois Compiled Statutes 570/100 et seq., or the Illinois cannabis 
control act, 720 Illinois Compiled Statutes 550/1 et seq., including drugs prescribed by a 
physician which are in the possession of or used by someone other than the person to whom the 
drug was prescribed. 
 
RESPONSE COSTS: The costs associated with responses by law enforcement, fire, and other 
emergency response providers to an event or gathering, including, but not limited to: 

1. Salaries and benefits of law enforcement, code enforcement, fire, or other emergency 
response personnel for the amount of time spent responding to, remaining at, or otherwise 
dealing with an event or gathering, and the administrative costs attributable to such 
response(s); 

2. The cost of any medical treatment for any law enforcement, code enforcement, fire, or other 
emergency response personnel injured responding to, remaining at, or leaving the scene of 
an event or gathering; and 

3. The cost of repairing any city equipment or property damaged, and the cost of the use of any 
such equipment, in responding to, remaining at, or leaving the scene of an event or 
gathering. 

UNDERAGE PERSON: Any individual under the age of twenty one (21) years. 

 

B. Violations: Except as permitted by state law, it shall be unlawful for any person to permit, allow, or 
host an event or gathering at his or her place of residence or other private property, public place, 
any other premises under his or her control where alcohol, or alcoholic beverages, or illicit drugs 
are consumed by an underage person at the event or gathering, if such person either knows or 
reasonably should know that an underage person is consuming any alcohol, or alcoholic 
beverages, or illicit drugs at the event or gathering. 

 

C. Rebuttable Presumption Of Knowledge: It is the duty of any person who permits, allows, or hosts 
an event or gathering at his or her place of residence or other private property, public place, any 
vehicle, conveyance, watercraft, or any other premises under his or her control, where underage 
persons will be present, to take all reasonable steps to prevent the consumption of alcohol, 
alcoholic beverages, or illicit drugs by any underage person at the event or gathering. As such, a 
rebuttal presumption that a person knows or reasonably should know that an underage person is 
consuming any alcohol, alcoholic beverages, or illicit drugs shall exist when: 

1. A person permits, allows, or hosts an event or gathering in which an underage person has 
consumed alcohol, alcoholic beverages, or illicit drugs, whether or not the person permitting, 
allowing, or hosting is present, if the person has not taken all reasonable steps to prevent the 
consumption of alcohol, alcoholic beverages, or illicit drugs at the event or gathering by 
underage persons; 



2. A person who permits, allows, or hosts an event or gathering is present at the event or 
gathering at any time an underage person consumes illicit drugs, alcohol, or an alcoholic 
beverage. 

3. This section shall not apply to conduct involving the use of alcoholic beverages that occurs at 
a religious ceremony or exclusively between an underage person and his or her parent or 
legal guardian, as permitted by state law. 

 

D. Exception: A person who hosts an event or gathering shall not be in violation of this section if he 
or she seeks assistance from the police department or other law enforcement agency to 
terminate an event or gathering where underage consumption of alcohol, alcoholic beverage, or 
illicit drugs is occurring, so long as such assistance is sought before any other person makes a 
complaint about the event or gathering. 

 

E. Penalties: Any person who violates or assists in the violations of any provision of this section shall 
be deemed to have committed a petty offense and shall be fined not less than five hundred 
dollars ($500.00) or more than one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500.00). Each day on 
which, or during which, a violation occurs shall constitute a separate offense. In addition, any 
person found to be in violation of this section shall be responsible for any and all response costs 
incurred to investigate the event or gathering. (Ord. 12-O-55, 12-18-2012) 

 

3.3.22: ALCOHOL AND TOBACCO SIGN LIMITATIONS:  

 

A. Definitions: In addition to those terms defined in title 1, chapter 3 of this code and section 3.3.1 of 
this chapter, for purposes of this section the following terms are defined as follows: 
 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE: Alcohol, spirits, liquor, wine, beer, and every liquid or solid containing 
alcohol, spirits, wine, beer, and which contains one-half of one percent or more of alcohol by 
volume and which is fit for beverage purposes either alone or when diluted, mixed, or combined 
with other substances. 
 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE RETAILER: Any person who sells, offers for sale, or does or offers to 
exchange for any form of consideration, alcoholic beverages, or who distributes free or low cost 
samples of alcoholic beverages. This definition applies regardless of the quantity of alcoholic 
beverages sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered for exchange. 
 
ALTERNATIVE NICOTINE PRODUCT: Any product or device not consisting of or containing 
tobacco that provides for the ingestion into the body of nicotine, whether by chewing, smoking, 
absorbing, dissolving, inhaling, snorting, sniffing, or by any other means, including, but not 
limited to, e-cigarettes and nicotine vapor inhalers. 
 
TOBACCO PRODUCT: Any substance containing tobacco leaf, including, but not limited to, 
cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, snuff, chewing tobacco, dipping tobacco, hookah tobacco, bidis, 
or any other preparation of tobacco; and any product or formulation of matter containing 
biologically active amounts of nicotine that is manufactured, sold, offered for sale, or otherwise 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=4&find=1-3
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=3.3.1


distributed with the expectation that the product or matter will be introduced into the human 
body. 
 
TOBACCO PRODUCT RETAILER: Any person who sells, offers for sale, or does or offers to 
exchange for any form of consideration, any tobacco product or alternative nicotine product, or 
who distributes free or low cost samples of tobacco product or alternative nicotine product. This 
definition applies regardless of the quantity of tobacco product or alternative nicotine product 
sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered for exchange. (Ord. 12-O-55, 12-18-2012; amd. Ord. 
14-O-16, 2-4-2014) 

 

B. Alcoholic Beverage And Tobacco Product Sign Restrictions: 

1. No more than twenty percent (20%) of the total window and door area that faces a public way 
of any alcoholic beverage retailer or tobacco product retailer shall display signs or 
advertisements of alcoholic beverage or tobacco products or alternative nicotine products or 
any brand names of such. Signs and advertisements shall include, but not be limited to, 
posters, fliers, banners, paper signage, neon signage, and electronic signage. This limitation 
is regardless of whether the sign or advertisement is oriented to the interior or the exterior of 
the premises. 

2. Within the above described twenty percent (20%) of window and door space that faces a 
public right of way, a retailer of alcoholic beverage or tobacco products or alternative nicotine 
products may not display more than three (3) neon or electronic signs that depict or advertise 
any alcoholic beverage or tobacco products or alternative nicotine products, or any brand 
names of such, each limited to displaying or advertising one brand and/or unit of alcoholic 
beverage or tobacco product or alternative nicotine product. 

3. The size of a door or window sign or advertisement shall be determined by measuring the 
points of greatest height and greatest width of the sign or advertisement and then multiplying 
such to compute the total squared dimension. 

 

C. Penalties: Any person who violates any provision of this section shall be fined not less than five 
hundred dollars ($500.00) or more than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). Each day on which, or 
during which, a violation occurs shall constitute a separate offense. (Ord. 14-O-16, 2-14-2014) 

3.3.23: PENALTY:  

 
Any person, firm or corporation who violates any provision of this chapter shall, upon conviction, be 
subject to a fine of not less than five hundred dollars ($500.00) nor more than two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00) per offense, and be responsible for the city's cost of prosecution including reasonable 
attorney fees, for each offense or the revocation of his or her liquor license, or to both such fine and 
revocation of such license. Each day that a violation continues shall be considered a separate 
offense. (Ord. 98-O-52, 10-20-1998; amd. Ord. 10-O-02, 1-19-2010; Ord. 12-O-55, 12-18-2012) 

 

 

 
Z:\W\WOODSTOCK\Liquor\Chapter 3.Liquor Control.Amendment.docx 



 

 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 
 

 I, Arleen Quinn, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, acting and qualified Clerk 

of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such Clerk, I am the keeper of 

the records and minutes and proceedings of the Mayor and Council members of said City. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council, held 

on the    day of     , 2015, the foregoing Ordinance entitled An 

Ordinance Amending Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the City of Woodstock was duly passed by 

said City Council. 

 

 The pamphlet form of Ordinance No. 15-O-____, including the Ordinance and a cover 

sheet thereof, was prepared, and a copy of such Ordinance was posted in the City Hall, com-

mencing on the   day of      , 2015, and will continue for 

at least 10 days thereafter. Copies of such Ordinance are also available for public inspection upon 

request in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct copy, is 

entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful custodian and 

keeper of the same. 

 

 Given under my hand and corporate seal of the City of Woodstock this    day of 

    , 2015. 

 

 

      

Arleen Quinn, Clerk 

City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois 

(SEAL) 



 

Memo 
 

To: Mr. Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

Honorable Mayor and Council Members 

From: Paul Christensen, Finance Director 

Date: April 14, 2015 

Re: Adoption of the City of Woodstock’s FY15/16 Budget 

At the April 7
th
 City Council Meeting, as required by State Statute, a public hearing was held to 

receive comments on the City’s proposed FY15/16 Budget.  The City Council Meeting was then 

adjourned until the April 13
th
 Budget Workshop.  At the Budget Workshop, the City Council 

completed its review of the City Administration’s proposed budget.   

Attached is the City of Woodstock’s FY15/16 Budget Ordinance, which covers the period of May 

1, 2015 – April 30, 2016.  Requested changes from the Budget Workshop have been incorporated 

into the proposed Budget Ordinance.  As indicated within the Ordinance, the operating budget is 

adopted by department within the General Fund.  For all other funds, the budget is adopted at 

the fund level.  The attached FY15/16 Budget Detail (Exhibit B) provides detailed line-item 

information for each fund.  The FY15/16 Budget Detail is provided as supplemental 

information. 

Therefore, it is recommended that the City Council approve the attached Ordinance 

entitled “An Ordinance Approving the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, 

Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2015 – 2016,” identified as Document Number ______.   

If the City Council is unable to adopt the Budget Ordinance at the April 21
st
 meeting, a special 

meeting will need to be scheduled prior to the end of April to meet the State-imposed 

deadline.  Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 

Finance Department  
       City of   

                

 

121 W. Calhoun Street  
Woodstock, I l l inois   60098  
815/338-4300 
Fax 815/334-2267 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44d

mamraen
Typewritten Text
3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-O-____ 

 

An Ordinance Approving the City of Woodstock, McHenry County,  

Illinois, Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois has adopted 65 ILCS 

5/8-2-9.1 through 8-2-9.10; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Manager, serving as the Budget Officer, has compiled a budget 

that contains estimates of revenues and recommended expenditures for the City of 

Woodstock; and 

 

WHEREAS, on April 7, 2015, the City of Woodstock held a public hearing on the 

tentative annual budget with notice of this hearing being published in the Woodstock 

Independent on March 25, 2015 which was at least one week prior to the hearing in 

compliance with 65 ILCS 5/8-2-9.9; and 

 

WHEREAS, 65 ILCS 5/8-2-9.4 requires that the annual budget shall be adopted by the 

corporate authorities before the beginning of the fiscal year to which it applies; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, McHenry, County, Illinois as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE: That the City of Woodstock’s Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2015 – 

2016, attached as Exhibit A hereto and made a part hereof, is hereby approved. 

 

SECTION TWO: That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

SECTION THREE: If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision 

of this Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 

such judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.3



SECTION FOUR: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, 

approval and publication in pamphlet form (which publication is hereby authorized) as 

provided by law. 

 

SECTION FIVE: That this Ordinance authorizes the City Administration to file a copy 

of the budget with estimated revenues with the County Clerk prior to May 1, 2015. 

 

SECTION SIX: Passed and approved this 21
st
 day of April, 2015. 

 

Ayes: 

 

Nays: 

 

Abstentions: 

 

Absentees: 

 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:___________________________________ 

     City Clerk, Arleen Quinn 

 

Passed: _______________________________ 

 

Approved: _______________________________ 

 

Published: _______________________________ 



City of Woodstock
FY2015/2016 Operating Budget

Exhibit A

Fund Department Operating Transfers Transfers Net
Number Number Fund/Department Revenues Expenditures Income/Loss In Out Income

01 00 General Corporate 9,271,600$         9,271,600$        469,400$         (4,961,100)$         4,779,900$         
01 01 General Government 905,000           (905,000)           (905,000)            
01 02 City Hall 78,900             (78,900)             (78,900)              
01 03 Finance 365,900           (365,900)           (365,900)            
01 04 Human Resources 224,800           (224,800)           (224,800)            
01 05 Community Development 650,100           (650,100)           (650,100)            
01 06 Streets 1,084,700        (1,084,700)        (1,084,700)         
01 07 Fleet Maintenance 196,300           (196,300)           (196,300)            
01 08 Public Works Admin. 431,900           (431,900)           (431,900)            
01 09 Recreation 534,300           (534,300)           (534,300)            
01 Economic Development 205,000           (205,000)           (205,000)            
01 11 Community Events 102,300           (102,300)           (102,300)            
01 00 General Corporate Totals 9,271,600           4,779,200        4,492,400          469,400           (4,961,100)           700                     

02 00 Municipal Audit 38,100                36,000             2,100                 -                  -                       2,100                  
03 00 Police Protection 4,124,300           4,727,300        (603,000)           2,170,300        (1,550,000)           17,300                
04 00 Aquatic Center 277,500              282,800           (5,300)               -                  (17,900)                (23,200)              
05 00 Recreation Center 485,000              399,600           85,400               -                  (72,900)                12,500                
06 00 Public Parks 333,400              875,100           (541,700)           696,000           (154,300)              -                      
07 00 Performing Arts 406,800              732,200           (325,400)           392,000           (66,600)                -                      
08 00 Public Library 1,537,500           1,223,500        314,000             -                  (333,300)              (19,300)              
09 00 Library Building 148,800              188,200           (39,400)             75,000             (46,300)                (10,700)              
10 00 Social Security 500,100              642,200           (142,100)           158,300           -                       16,200                
11 00 IMRF 655,800              924,400           (268,600)           177,000           -                       (91,600)              
12 00 MFT 625,700              677,000           (51,300)             -                  -                       (51,300)              
13 00 Park Development 35,400                -                  35,400               -                  (42,700)                (7,300)                
14 00 Administrative Adjudication 15,700                26,200             (10,500)             10,500             -                       -                      
15 00 Alarm Monitoring 257,400              157,300           100,100             -                  -                       100,100              
16 00 Special Recreation 135,900              134,400           1,500                 -                  (18,000)                (16,500)              
21 00 Liability Insurance 590,400              786,600           (196,200)           125,000           -                       (71,200)              
26 00 Paratransit 200                     35,000             (34,800)             34,800             -                       -                      
30 00 Debt Service 388,900              1,416,900        (1,028,000)        1,028,000        -                       -                      
31 00 Library Debt Service 314,700              361,000           (46,300)             46,300             -                       -                      
41 00 Tax Increment Finance 728,600              967,300           (238,700)           -                  -                       (238,700)            

60 00 Water & Sewer Rev. 4,820,700           4,820,700          9,000               (941,700)              3,888,000           
60 50 Water Treatment 912,300           (912,300)           (912,300)            
60 51 Sewage Treatment 1,005,100        (1,005,100)        (1,005,100)         
60 52 Sewer & Water Maintenance 781,500           (781,500)           (781,500)            
60 53 Administrative & Debt Service 648,300           (648,300)           (648,300)            
60 54 Capital Improvement 452,300           (452,300)           (452,300)            
60 00 Water & Sewer Total 4,820,700           3,799,500        1,021,200          9,000               (941,700)              88,500                

62 00 Water & Sewer Capacity 673,000              722,700           (49,700)             -                  -                       (49,700)              
70 00 Police Pension 1,389,000           1,557,100        (168,100)           950,000           (5,000)                  776,900              
75 00 Employee Health/Life Insurance 496,800              2,414,900        (1,918,100)        1,882,000        -                       (36,100)              
82 00 General Corporate - CIP 1,696,500           1,696,500          821,000           (546,700)              1,970,800           
82 01 General Administration 383,000           (383,000)           (383,000)            
82 02 Public Facilities 175,100           (175,100)           (175,100)            
82 03 Public Safety 99,200             (99,200)             (99,200)              
82 06 Parks 338,000           (338,000)           (338,000)            
82 07 Motor Pool 209,000           (209,000)           (209,000)            
82 08 Streets/Sidewalks/Signals 1,052,000        (1,052,000)        (1,052,000)         
82 09 Stormwater Management 565,000           (565,000)           (565,000)            
82 00 General - CIP Totals 1,696,500           2,821,300        (1,124,800)        821,000           (546,700)              (850,500)            

85 00 Revolving Loan 2,000                  2,500               (500)                  -                  -                       (500)                   
90 00 Environmental Management 1,587,500           1,309,400        278,100             -                  (278,100)              -                      
91 00 Hotel/Motel Tax 72,000                62,000             10,000               20,000             (30,000)                -                      

Totals 31,609,300         32,061,600      (452,300)           9,064,600        (9,064,600)           (452,300)            

May 1, 2015 - April 30, 2016

rstelford
Typewritten Text
12

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text



 
 
 

 

Exhibit B 
 

Annual Budget 
Detail 

 
FY 15/16 

 
 
 



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 4,652,800$      4,658,200$     

TAXES

01-00-1-311 Property Taxes 2,807,593$      2,531,608$      2,330,000$      2,313,700$      1,367,500$     

01-00-1-312 Replacement Taxes 222,058           276,144            244,000           250,000           250,000           

01-00-1-313 Sales Taxes 3,387,911        3,548,055        3,570,000        3,664,000        3,755,600       

01-00-1-314 Illinois Income Taxes 2,641,893        2,856,414        2,863,000        2,860,900        2,932,000       

01-00-1-315 Video Gaming Revenue -                    34,727              50,000              163,000           160,000           

01-00-1-330 Sales Tax Rebates -                    (68,052)             (77,000)            (69,000)            (77,000)            

TOTAL TAXES 9,059,455$      9,178,896$      8,980,000$      9,182,600$      8,388,100$     

LICENSES & PERMITS

01-00-2-322 Liquor & Business Licenses 69,147$           70,854$            70,000$           79,600$           78,000$           

01-00-2-324 Building Permits 112,880           112,894            100,000           130,000           115,000           

01-00-2-326 Stormwater Permits 3,400                3,850                3,000                4,100                3,500               

TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS 185,427$         187,598$         173,000$         213,700$         196,500$         

FINES & FEES

01-00-2-328 Franchise Fees 300,816$         310,442$         309,000$         326,000$         330,000$         

01-00-2-331 Filing Fees 1,320                590                    1,000                800                   1,000               

01-00-2-335 Backflow Inspections 40,200              33,276              40,000              31,500              32,000             

01-00-2-336 Elevator Inspections Revenue -                    9,010                9,000                9,000                9,000               

TOTAL FINES & FEES 342,336$         353,318$         359,000$         367,300$         372,000$         

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

01-00-3-327 Recreation Program Fees 221,994$         233,925$         228,000$         225,500$         225,000$         

01-00-3-328 Recreation Financial Aid -                    -                     (8,000)               (8,000)               (8,000)              

TOTAL SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES 221,994$         233,925$         220,000$         217,500$         217,000$         

INTEREST

01-00-5-381 Interest 33,390$           35,962$            30,400$           31,000$           30,000$           

TOTAL INTEREST 33,390$           35,962$            30,400$           31,000$           30,000$           

OTHER

01-00-5-360 Rental Property Receipts 22,650$           9,300$              11,400$           7,100$              -$                  

01-00-5-378 Sale of Surplus Equipment 38,798              46,643              10,000              19,000              15,000             

01-00-5-379 Intergovernmental Services 5,903                4,113                6,000                10,000              8,000               

01-00-5-380 Miscellaneous Income 36,262              49,300              35,000              35,000              35,000             

01-00-5-385 CDBG Grant-Distressed Housing -                    -                     50,000              -                    -                    

01-00-5-386 Community Event Donations -                    -                     25,000              13,000              10,000             

TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 103,613$         109,356$         137,400$         84,100$           68,000$           

TOTAL REVENUES (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 9,946,215$      10,099,055$    9,899,800$      10,096,200$   9,271,600$     

General Corporate Fund - Revenues

REVENUES



General Corporate Fund - Revenues (Continued)

Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

01-00-9-391 Transfer from Library Fund 11,000$           11,000$            11,000$           11,000$           11,000$           

01-00-9-395 Transfer from Utility Fund 373,397           327,005            355,400           355,400           355,400           

01-00-9-397 Transfer from Special Rec Fund 17,000              18,000              18,000              18,000              18,000             

01-00-9-398 Transfer from Police Pension Fund 5,000                5,000                5,000                5,000                5,000               

01-00-9-399 Transfer from Env. Mgmt. Fund 87,341              80,000              80,000              80,000              80,000             

01-00-9-881 Transfer To Debt Service Fund (190,590)          (148,137)          (159,900)          (168,200)          (176,500)          

01-00-9-889 Transfer To Employee Ins. Fund (616,072)          (717,600)          (726,100)          (658,400)          (670,000)          

01-00-9-894 Transfer To Police Protection Fund (3,574,001)       (3,525,641)       (3,445,400)       (3,426,000)       (2,170,300)      

01-00-9-895 Transfer To Parks Fund (353,429)          (489,320)          (570,700)          (584,400)          (696,000)          

01-00-9-896 Transfer To Hotel/Motel Tax Fund -                    -                     -                    -                    (20,000)            

01-00-9-898 Transfer To Performing Arts Fund (280,802)          (350,246)          (355,400)          (303,800)          (362,000)          

01-00-9-899 Transfer To Paratransit Fund (16,145)            (18,813)             (33,800)            (33,900)            (34,800)            

01-00-9-912 Transfer To MFT Fund (100,000)          (100,000)          -                    -                    -                    

01-00-9-914 Transfer To Admin. Adjudication Fund (7,555)               (11,541)             (6,500)               (5,800)               (10,500)            

01-00-9-982 Transfer To General - CIP Fund (550,000)          (875,000)          (475,000)          (950,000)          (821,000)          

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (5,194,856)$    (5,795,293)$     (5,303,400)$    (5,661,100)$    (4,491,700)$    

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 4,751,359$     4,303,762$      4,596,400$     4,435,100$     4,779,900$     

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

01-01-x-xxx   City Manager's Office 500,461$         418,245$         562,800$         644,200$         905,000$         

01-02-x-xxx   City Hall 101,273           87,235              96,000              91,700              78,900$           

01-03-x-xxx   Finance 418,781           332,264            342,300           341,700           365,900$         

01-04-x-xxx   Human Resources 192,434           205,008            220,800           223,700           224,800$         

01-05-x-xxx   Building and Zoning 576,505           615,704            761,600           723,100           650,100$         

01-12-x-xxx   Economic Development -                    -                     -                    -                    205,000           

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,789,454$      1,658,456$      1,983,500$      2,024,400$      2,429,700$     

PUBLIC WORKS

01-06-x-xxx   Street Maintenance 1,245,053$      1,443,679$      1,297,700$      1,161,300$      1,084,700$     

01-07-x-xxx   Fleet Maintenance 202,488           207,266            248,200           228,900           196,300$         

01-08-x-xxx   DPW Administration 410,270           375,441            411,800           410,800           431,900$         

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 1,857,811$      2,026,386$      1,957,700$      1,801,000$      1,712,900$     

PARKS, RECREATION, & CULTURE

01-09-x-xxx   Recreation 500,821$         487,868$         505,700$         518,300$         534,300$         

01-11-x-xxx   Community Events 48,738              51,175              112,500           86,000              102,300$         

TOTAL PARKS, RECREATION & CULTURE 549,559$         539,043$         618,200$         604,300$         636,600$         

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 4,196,824$     4,223,885$      4,559,400$     4,429,700$     4,779,200$     

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 554,535$         79,877$           37,000$           5,400$             700$                

Ending Fund Balance 4,658,200$      4,658,900$     

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-01-3-401 City Manager 240,341$        143,823$        146,900$        144,800$        152,000$        

01-01-3-403 Assistant City Manager -                   -                   -                   -                   10,000             

01-01-3-405 Executive Assistant 61,505             63,724             62,000             55,300             62,000             

01-01-3-406 Office Assistant 37,432             38,733             40,500             40,300             42,300             

01-01-3-410 Grant Writer -                   15,006             39,200             47,700             62,000             

01-01-3-415 Information Technology Staff -                   -                   83,900             66,600             113,500           

01-01-3-439 City Officials 59,136             59,640             60,000             60,000             63,000             

01-01-3-440 Car Allowance 3,600               -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL SALARIES 402,014$        320,926$        432,500$        414,700$        504,800$        

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-01-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 2,066$             1,941$             6,600$             4,700$             5,500$             

01-01-4-452 Travel & Training 8,163               7,400               6,000               6,000               12,000             

01-01-4-454 Dues & Subscriptions 11,766             14,611             16,000             16,300             16,500             

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 21,995$           23,952$           28,600$           27,000$           34,000$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-01-5-501 Communications 2,076$             789$                3,000$             1,900$             2,000$             

01-01-5-502 Legal Services 41,647             41,629             35,000             48,000             45,000             

01-01-5-505 Appraisal Services 3,850               -                   -                   -                   -                   

01-01-5-508 Special Census -                   -                   -                   -                   60,000             

01-01-5-536 City Scene 15,048             15,563             15,000             14,600             15,000             

01-01-5-537 Printing Services 3,075               4,984               4,000               3,700               4,000               

01-01-5-538 Publishing Services 2,453               3,195               3,000               3,000               3,000               

01-01-5-552 Service To Maintain Equipment 1,226               293                  21,700             21,700             26,700             

01-00-5-556 City Website -                   -                   14,000             23,000             10,000             

01-01-5-558 Marketing Efforts -                   -                   -                   80,000             100,000           

01-01-5-561 Fiber Optic Maintenance -                   -                   -                   -                   33,700             

01-01-5-562 Legistative Advocate -                   -                   -                   -                   60,000             

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 69,375$           66,453$           95,700$           195,900$        359,400$        

COMMODITIES

01-01-6-601 Postage Expense 4,392$             4,329$             4,500$             4,300$             4,500$             

01-01-6-606 Supplies 2,685               2,410               1,500               2,000               2,000               

TOTAL COMMODITIES 7,077$             6,739$             6,000$             6,300$             6,500$             

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-01-7-720 Equipment -$                 175$                -$                 300$                300$                

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                 175$                -$                 300$                300$                

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENSES 500,461$        418,245$        562,800$        644,200$        905,000$        

General Corporate Fund - General Government



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-02-3-415 Custodian 40,104$           39,013$           38,700$           32,400$           -$                  

TOTAL SALARIES 40,104$           39,013$           38,700$           32,400$           -$                  

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-02-4-451 Sick Time Conversion 428$                 432$                 900$                 -$                  -                     

01-02-4-453 Uniform Rental Services 500                    400                    200                    -                     -                     

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 928$                 832$                 1,100$              -$                  -$                  

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-02-5-501 Communications 203$                 135$                 200$                 100$                 -$                  

01-02-5-550 Service To Maintain Building 3,244                3,418                4,500                10,000              25,000              

01-02-5-552 Service To Maintain Equipment 22,865              8,849                9,000                5,000                9,000                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 26,312$           12,402$           13,700$           15,100$           34,000$           

COMMODITIES

01-02-6-603 Fuel - Heating -$                  4,490$              1,300$              5,300$              4,000$              

01-02-6-606 Supplies 1,847                2,629                2,500                2,400                2,500                

01-02-6-613 Water And Sewer 372                    797                    800                    800                    900                    

01-02-6-620 Material To Maintain Building 2,739                2,114                2,500                2,000                2,500                

01-02-6-621 Material To Maintain Equipment 359                    413                    1,000                800                    1,000                

TOTAL COMMODITIES 5,317$              10,443$           8,100$              11,300$           10,900$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-02-7-701 Building 1,526$              -$                  1,300$              6,700$              4,000$              

01-02-7-720 Equipment 31                      -                     1,300                -                     -                     

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,557$              -$                  2,600$              6,700$              4,000$              

OTHER EXPENSES

01-02-8-803 Rental Property Expenditures 24,643$           20,295$           29,800$           25,000$           28,000$           

01-02-8-804 Rental Property Repairs 2,412                4,250                2,000                1,200                2,000                

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 27,055$           24,545$           31,800$           26,200$           30,000$           

TOTAL CITY HALL 101,273$         87,235$           96,000$           91,700$           78,900$           

General Corporate Fund - City Hall



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-03-3-402 Finance Director 121,642$         43,285$           107,600$         107,000$         112,300$         

01-03-3-407 Accounting/Office Personnel 172,312           147,391           160,700           175,000           182,100           

01-03-3-415 Information Technician 58,708              62,341              -                     -                     -                     

01-03-3-431 Part-Time Assistant 17,479              27,525              21,800              17,100              21,800              

01-03-3-445 Overtime 46                      1,787                2,000                -                     500                    

TOTAL SALARIES 370,187$         282,329$         292,100$         299,100$         316,700$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-03-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 2,068$              690$                 1,500$              1,500$              1,600$              

01-03-4-452 Travel & Training -                     737                    2,000                1,500                2,000                

01-03-4-454 Dues & Subscriptions 330                    285                    300                    300                    800                    

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 2,398$              1,712$              3,800$              3,300$              4,400$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-03-5-501 Communications 23,438$           8,600$              4,000$              5,600$              6,000$              

01-03-5-502 Legal Expenses 3,652                626                    1,500                3,800                2,000                

01-03-5-503 Surety Bonds 670                    670                    700                    800                    800                    

01-03-5-537 Printing Services 4,435                5,538                6,000                2,100                3,000                

01-03-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 2,119                19,408              23,200              17,500              22,300              

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 34,314$           34,842$           35,400$           29,800$           34,100$           

COMMODITIES

01-03-6-601 Postage 9,806$              8,402$              8,500$              6,800$              7,500$              

01-03-6-606 Supplies 2,076                2,999                2,500                2,700                2,700                

TOTAL COMMODITIES 11,882$           11,401$           11,000$           9,500$              10,200$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-03-7-720 Equipment -$                  1,980$              -$                  -$                  500$                 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                  1,980$              -$                  -$                  500$                 

TOTAL FINANCE DEPARTMENT 418,781$         332,264$         342,300$         341,700$         365,900$         

General Corporate Fund - Finance Department



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-04-3-401 Human Resources Director 103,427$        107,039$        111,900$        111,700$        117,200$        

01-04-3-402 Human Resources Coordinator 52,458             40,459             36,300             37,800             44,900             

01-04-3-431 Benefits Analyst/Office Assistant 3,022               17,540             27,600             15,600             13,500             

TOTAL SALARIES 158,907$        165,038$        175,800$        165,100$        175,600$        

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-04-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 603$                326$                -$                 -$                 -$                 

01-04-4-452 Travel & Training 2,030 2,789 2,500 2,000 2,500

01-04-4-453 Physical Examinations 1,348 1,345 700 300 700

01-04-4-454 Dues & Subscriptions 1,135 839 1,200 1,000 3,200

01-04-4-455 Employee Training/Events -                   76                     200                  200                  2,500               

01-04-4-456 ADA Services -                   180                  200                  -                   200                  

01-04-4-457 Tuition Reimbursement -                   -                   6,500               6,500               7,500               

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 5,116$             5,555$             11,300$           10,000$           16,600$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-04-5-501 Communications 1,281$             935$                1,400$             1,400$             1,000$             

01-04-5-502 Legal Services 10,519             2,700               4,000               500                  2,000               

01-04-5-503 Labor Relations 196                  15,043             6,000               27,000             8,000               

01-04-5-509 Testing and Background Checks 5,622               2,851               3,800               6,500               2,800               

01-04-5-510 Drug Testing 1,904               5,620               6,000               5,000               6,000               

01-04-5-536 Advertising 2,533               815                  1,000               1,100               1,000               

01-04-5-537 Printing Services 59                     456                  300                  -                   100                  

01-04-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment -                   -                   -                   -                   2,000               

01-04-5-560 Classification Plan Maintenance -                   -                   2,200               500                  2,000               

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 22,114$           28,420$           24,700$           42,000$           24,900$           

COMMODITIES

01-04-6-601 Postage 227$                109$                100$                200$                100$                

01-04-6-606 Supplies 1,480 853 1,300 1,100 1,300

01-04-6-607 AED Supplies -                   -                   -                   -                   1,300             

TOTAL COMMODITIES 1,707$             962$                1,400$             1,300$             2,700$             

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-04-7-720 Equipment -$                 -$                 1,400$             1,300$             -$                 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                 -$                 1,400$             1,300$             -$                 

OTHER EXPENSES

01-04-8-811 Employee Recognition 4,590$             5,033$             6,200$             4,000$             5,000$             

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 4,590$             5,033$             6,200$             4,000$             5,000$             

TOTAL HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 192,434$        205,008$        220,800$        223,700$        224,800$        

General Corporate Fund - Human Resources Department



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-05-3-401 Department Director 79,208$           82,369$           85,700$           84,700$           78,400$           

01-05-3-402 Planning & Zoning Administration 101,458 101,458 103,100 103,100 105,600

01-05-3-404 City Planner 73,660 76,232 79,700 79,600 83,300

01-05-3-405 Economic Development Coordinator -                     -                     62,000 60,300 -                     

01-05-3-406 Office Manager 49,642 51,243 53,700 53,300 56,000

01-05-3-416 Building Inspectors 192,403           198,482           203,800           213,000           226,200           

01-05-3-420 Code Enforcement Officer 50,142              53,711              56,000              40,900              11,200              

TOTAL SALARIES 546,513$         563,495$         644,000$         634,900$         560,700$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-05-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 2,543$              2,397$              7,200$              6,500$              7,700$              

01-05-4-452 Travel & Training 817                    1,680                2,100                1,500                2,000$              

01-05-4-454 Dues/Subscriptions/Books 380                    2,738                2,500                2,000                1,800                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 3,740$              6,815$              11,800$           10,000$           11,500$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-05-5-501 Communications 1,450$              1,452$              1,800$              2,300$              1,700$              

01-05-5-502 Legal Expenses 1,462                6,892                5,000                14,000              6,000                

01-05-5-510 Expansion/Retention Services 245                    -                     -                     -                     -                     

01-05-5-515 Strategic Plan/Marketing Services 500                    4,252                10,000              15,000              -                     

01-05-5-523 Nuisance Abatement Services 524                    2,654                3,000                2,500                2,500                

01-05-5-537 Printing Services 2,400                2,280                2,500                2,500                1,000                

01-05-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 5,331                5,622                6,000                6,000                6,000                

01-05-5-553 Service to Maintain Vehicles -                     -                     500                    500                    500                    

01-05-5-566 Software Support 7,008                9,048                12,000              12,000              14,000              

01-05-5-567 Elevator Inspection Fees -                     5,553                6,500                6,500                6,500                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 18,920$           37,753$           47,300$           61,300$           38,200$           

COMMODITIES

01-05-6-601 Postage 1,517$              1,206$              1,800$              1,400$              1,400$              

01-05-6-602 Gasoline & Oil 3,678 3,325 4,000 3,400 3,600

01-05-6-606 Supplies 2,075 1,356 1,800 1,800 1,600

01-05-6-622 Material to Maintain Vehicles 62                      499                    600                    2,000                600                    

TOTAL COMMODITIES 7,332$              6,386$              8,200$              8,600$              7,200$              

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-05-7-720 Equipment -$                  1,255$              300$                 8,300$              2,500$              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                  1,255$              300$                 8,300$              2,500$              

OTHER EXPENSES

01-05-8-801 Distressed Property Program -$                  -$                  50,000$           -$                  30,000$           

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES -$                  -$                  50,000$           -$                  30,000$           

TOTAL BUILDING AND ZONING 576,505$         615,704$         761,600$         723,100$         650,100$         

General Corporate Fund - Building and Zoning Department



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-06-3-408 Street Supervisor 82,250$           83,594$           87,400$           47,900$           88,900$           

01-06-3-415 Maintenance 387,856 386,880 430,700 386,000 455,000

01-06-3-431 Temporary Labor 17,524              11,766              13,400              13,500              14,000              

01-06-3-445 Overtime 48,139              113,982           95,000              85,000              95,000              

TOTAL SALARIES 535,769$         596,222$         626,500$         532,400$         652,900$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-06-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 1,616$              1,848$              4,800$              1,900$              2,900$              

01-06-4-453 Uniforms 7,143                7,269                7,000                7,000                6,000                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 8,759$              9,117$              11,800$           8,900$              8,900$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-06-5-543 Equipment Rental 83,776$           198,422$         -$                  -$                  -$                  

01-06-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 4,121                2,925                5,000                15,500              5,000                

01-06-5-553 Service to Maintain Vehicles 9,155                7,294                8,000                12,000              9,500                

01-06-5-555 Service to Maintain Pavements 41,702              44,683              50,000              69,000              55,000              

01-06-5-557 Service to Maintain Street Lights 20,011              16,956              18,000              11,000              18,000              

01-06-5-559 Service to Maintain Traffic Controls 20,235              19,317              -                     -                     -                     

01-06-5-560 Service to Maintain Storm Sewers 12,322              40,007              35,000              25,000              35,000              

01-06-5-564 Street Lighting 235,958           200,501           250,000           250,000           -                     

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 427,280$         530,105$         366,000$         382,500$         122,500$         

COMMODITIES

01-06-6-602 Gas & Oil 75,169$           99,978$           75,000$           65,000$           70,000$           

01-06-6-605 Tools 882 1,214 1,400 1,800 1,400

01-06-6-606 Supplies 2,892 7,634 4,000 6,200 5,000

01-06-6-621 Materials to Maintain Equipment 28,623 36,188 24,000 15,000 24,000

01-06-6-622 Materials to Maintain Vehicles 16,940 31,611 23,000 31,000 25,000

01-06-6-625 Materials to Maintain Storm Sewers 26,008 32,653 36,000 20,000 36,000

01-06-6-627 Materials to Maintain Pavements 63,824 55,412 70,000 50,000 85,000

01-06-6-629 Materials to Maintain Traffic Controls 47,140 31,321 40,000 32,000 40,000

01-06-6-630 Materials to Maintain Street Lights 475 1,540 2,000 500 2,000

TOTAL COMMODITIES 261,953$         297,551$         275,400$         221,500$         288,400$         

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-06-7-720 Equipment 11,292$           10,684$           18,000$           16,000$           12,000$           

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 11,292$           10,684$           18,000$           16,000$           12,000$           

TOTAL STREET 1,245,053$     1,443,679$     1,297,700$     1,161,300$     1,084,700$     

General Corporate Fund - Street Department



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-07-3-408 Supervisor 76,354$           78,264$           112,800$         58,100$           -$                  

01-07-3-415 Maintenance 86,931 90,721 95,200 119,900 152,700

01-07-3-445 Overtime 8                        33                      100                    2,200                100                    

TOTAL SALARIES 163,293$         169,018$         208,100$         180,200$         152,800$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-07-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 262$                 331$                 1,200$              -$                  900$                 

01-07-4-453 Uniforms 2,004                2,016                2,100                2,200                2,100                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 2,266$              2,347$              3,300$              2,200$              3,000$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-07-5-550 Service to Maintain Buildings 21,356$           20,134$           18,200$           18,900$           20,000$           

01-07-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 2,676                963                    2,500                1,000                2,500                

01-07-5-553 Service to Maintain Vehicles -                     -                     200                    8,000                200                    

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 24,032$           21,097$           20,900$           27,900$           22,700$           

COMMODITIES

01-07-6-602 Gas & Oil 380$                 800$                 800$                 400$                 600$                 

01-07-6-605 Tools 1,914 1,515 2,000 2,000 3,000

01-07-6-606 Supplies 3,028 3,243 3,200 5,300 3,500

01-07-6-613 Water & Sewer 894 935 900 900 1,000

01-07-6-620 Materials to Maintain Buildings 1,501 3,018 3,000 4,000 3,000

01-07-6-621 Materials to Maintain Equipment 745 1,151 1,200 1,200 1,200

01-07-6-622 Materials to Maintain Vehicles 266                    90                      300                    300                    500                    

TOTAL COMMODITIES 8,728$              10,752$           11,400$           14,100$           12,800$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-07-7-720 Equipment 4,169$              4,052$              4,500$              4,500$              5,000$              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 4,169$              4,052$              4,500$              4,500$              5,000$              

TOTAL FLEET MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 202,488$         207,266$         248,200$         228,900$         196,300$         

General Corporate Fund - Fleet Maintenance Division



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-08-3-402 Public Works Director 132,617$         79,569$           115,000$         114,800$         120,200$         

01-08-3-403 Assistant Public Works Director 103,097 106,530 109,100 108,900 114,400

01-08-3-404 City Engineer 87,237 89,420 93,100 92,600 96,900

01-08-3-406 Office Manager 53,997              49,650              52,000              51,900              54,300              

TOTAL SALARIES 376,948$         325,169$         369,200$         368,200$         385,800$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-08-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 1,156$              1,423$              4,700$              3,900$              4,900$              

01-08-4-452 Travel & Training 2,081 1,328 2,500 4,000 4,000

01-08-4-453 Uniforms 48 0 200 100 200

01-08-4-454 Dues & Subscriptions 1,516                1,981                2,000                1,900                2,000                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 4,801$              4,732$              9,400$              9,900$              11,100$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-08-5-501 Communications 15,111$           14,313$           18,300$           17,300$           17,500$           

01-08-5-502 Legal Expenses 1,125 2,365 500 4,000 2,500

01-08-5-503 Engineering Services 4,891                22,903              4,000                2,000                4,000                

01-08-5-537 Printing Services 1,003                554                    500                    200                    500                    

01-08-5-538 IEPA MS4 Permit Fees -                     -                     -                     1,000                1,000                

01-08-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 774                    1,000                800                    1,000                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 22,904$           40,135$           24,300$           25,300$           26,500$           

COMMODITIES

01-08-6-601 Postage 885$                 919$                 1,100$              1,000$              1,100$              

01-08-6-602 Gasoline & Oil 547 816 1,000 900 900

01-08-6-606 Supplies 3,416 3,093 4,000 3,500 4,000

01-08-6-622 Materials to Maintain Vehicles 769                    -                     300                    1,000                500                    

TOTAL COMMODITIES 5,617$              4,828$              6,400$              6,400$              6,500$              

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-08-7-720 Equipment 577$                 2,500$              1,000$              2,000$              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                  577$                 2,500$              1,000$              2,000$              

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION 410,270$         375,441$         411,800$         410,800$         431,900$         

General Corporate Fund - Public Works Administration Department



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-09-3-402 Recreation Director 93,086$           96,334$           100,000$        100,000$        104,500$        

01-09-3-405 Program Coordinators 109,759 111,554 116,000 116,000 121,300

01-09-3-406 Recreation Center Manager 53,760 55,638 58,000 58,100 60,700

01-09-3-431 Part Time Clerical Support 23,800 24,300 26,000 26,000 26,600

01-09-3-440 Part Time Recreation Aides 61,767             53,433             59,000             60,000             60,600             

TOTAL SALARIES 342,172$        341,259$        359,000$        360,100$        373,700$        

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-09-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 2,286$             2,366$             5,100$             4,800$             5,200$             

01-09-4-452 Travel & Training 976 599 500 200 1,000

01-09-4-454 Dues & Subscriptions 642                  1,006               1,000               1,800               2,300               

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 3,904$             3,971$             6,600$             6,800$             8,500$             

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-09-5-501 Communications 5,212$             2,178$             3,700$             2,400$             2,400$             

01-09-5-502 Professional Services 1,300 6,517 5,000 7,100 4,800

01-09-5-512 Instructor Contracts 46,484 43,686 42,000 48,000 48,000

01-09-5-513 Athletic Officials 21,565 19,224 23,000 19,000 19,000

01-09-5-536 Recreation Supplement to Newsletter (60%) 14,573 4,057 8,000 8,700 9,000

01-09-5-537 Printing Services/Advertising 3,025 2,373 3,000 4,000 3,000

01-09-5-544 Building Rental 4,294               4,684               3,000               4,500               4,500               

01-09-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment -                   -                   500                  500                  2,900               

01-09-5-553 Service to Maintain Vehicles 1,088               120                  500                  500                  500                  

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 97,541$           82,839$           88,700$           94,700$           94,100$           

COMMODITIES

01-09-6-601 Postage 4,751$             5,576$             4,700$             4,000$             5,000$             

01-09-6-602 Gasoline & Oil 941 1,039 1,200 1,200 1,000

01-09-6-606 Office Supplies 3,465 6,015 3,000 4,000 4,500

01-09-6-611 Recreation Equipment 165 763 2,000 2,000 2,000

01-09-6-612 Program Supplies 47,062 45,613 40,000 45,000 45,000

01-09-6-622 Materials to Maintain Vehicles 463                  793                  500                  500                  500                  

TOTAL COMMODITIES 56,847$           59,799$           51,400$           56,700$           58,000$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-09-7-720 Equipment 357$                -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 357$                -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

TOTAL RECREATION 500,821$        487,868$        505,700$        518,300$        534,300$        

General Corporate Fund - Recreation Department



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-11-3-403 Police Services 8,500$              7,268$              12,000$           12,000$           12,300$           

01-11-3-406 Public Works Services 1,071                1,424                2,000                1,100                1,500                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 9,571$              8,692$              14,000$           13,100$           13,800$           

polic

COMMODITIES

01-11-6-600 Fair Diddley 440$                 440$                 500$                 500$                 500$                 

01-11-6-602 4th of July 716                    1,371                1,400                600                    800                    

01-11-6-605 YSB Car Show -                     330                    200                    200                    200                    

01-11-6-607 Harvest Fest 140                    150                    100                    -                     -                     

01-11-6-608 Christmas Lighting 33,861              20,457              37,000              30,300              37,000              

01-11-6-611 Movies in the Park 1,638                1,242                800                    1,200                1,200                

01-11-6-615 Other Community Events 633                    7,592                4,300                1,500                1,500                

01-11-6-617 Sister City Program -                     175                    2,500                -                     10,000              

01-11-6-618 Gavers Barn Dance -                     301                    300                    -                     300                    

01-11-6-620 Seniors @ Stage Left 1,739                1,580                1,400                1,900                2,000                

01-11-6-621 City Community Event -                     8,845                50,000              36,700              35,000              

TOTAL COMMODITIES 39,167$           42,483$           98,500$           72,900$           88,500$           

TOTAL COMMUNITY EVENTS 48,738$           51,175$           112,500$         86,000$           102,300$         

General Corporate Fund - Community Events Department



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

01-12-3-401 Community & Economic Director 88,500$           

01-12-3-405 Economic Development Coordinator 55,000

TOTAL SALARIES -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  143,500$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

01-12-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion -$                  

01-12-4-452 Travel & Training 5,000                

01-12-4-454 Dues/Subscriptions/Books 3,000                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  8,000$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-12-5-501 Communications 500$                 

01-12-5-502 Legal Expenses 3,000                

01-12-5-515 Strategic Plan/Marketing Services 32,500              

01-12-5-536 Expansion/Retention Services 10,000              

01-12-5-537 Printing Services 3,000                

01-12-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 1,000                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  50,000$           

COMMODITIES

01-12-6-601 Postage 500$                 

01-12-6-606 Supplies 1,000

TOTAL COMMODITIES -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  1,500$              

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-12-7-720 Equipment 2,000$              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  2,000$              

TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  205,000$         

General Corporate Fund - Economic Development Department



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 20,300$              20,900$        

TAXES

02-00-1-311 Property Taxes 33,519$           33,906$            35,600$           35,600$                 38,000$           

TOTAL TAXES 33,519              33,906              35,600              35,600                    38,000             

INTEREST

02-00-5-381 Interest Income 142$                 154$                 100$                 200$                       100$                 

TOTAL INTEREST 142$                 154$                 100$                 200$                       100$                 

TOTAL REVENUES 33,661$           34,060$            35,700$           35,800$                 38,100$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

02-00-5-507 Municipal Audit 30,956$           29,565$            32,000$           29,500$                 30,000$           

02-00-5-510 Popular Annual Finance Report (PAFR) 5,406                5,070                6,000                5,700                      6,000               

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 36,362$           34,635$            38,000$           35,200$                 36,000$           

TOTAL AUDIT  FUND EXPENSES 36,362$           34,635$            38,000$           35,200$                 36,000$           

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (2,701)$            (575)$                (2,300)$            600$                       2,100$             

Ending Fund Balance 20,900$              23,000$        

Audit Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 21,400$          34,900$         

TAXES

03-00-1-311 Property Taxes-Police Operations 747,493$           993,701$           1,207,700$       1,205,600$       2,490,000$       

03-00-1-312 Property Taxes-Police Pension 862,721             882,337             932,300             930,600             950,000            

TOTAL TAXES 1,610,214$       1,876,038$        2,140,000$       2,136,200$       3,440,000$       

FEES

03-00-2-321 Police Fines 439,887$           457,333$           410,000$           415,600$           415,000$          

03-00-2-322 Adjudicated Fines 6,651                 8,753                 8,000                 9,000                 8,000                

TOTAL FEES 446,538$           466,086$           418,000$           424,600$           423,000$          

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

03-00-4-339 Fire/Ambulance District Contract 70,000$             75,000$             80,000$             80,000$             84,000$            

03-00-4-344 PTI Reimbursement 9,629                 210                     5,000                 -                     -                    

03-00-4-354 District 200 Reimbursement 45,500               48,000               54,600               54,600               56,000              

03-00-4-448 Police Grant Revenue 27,558               13,523               10,000               28,000               20,000              

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 152,687$           136,733$           149,600$           162,600$           160,000$          

OTHER REVENUE

03-00-5-360 DARE Contributions -$                   4,228$               2,000$               500$                  2,000$              

03-00-5-370 Wireless Alarm Fees 52,362               52,848               54,000               54,000               54,000              

03-00-5-380 Miscellaneous Income 11,773               13,081               10,000               11,700               11,000              

03-00-5-382 Extra Police Duty Charges 8,252                 5,866                 6,500                 7,000                 7,200                

03-00-5-383 Workers' Comp Recapture -                     -                     -                     26,100               -                    

03-00-5-393 Drug Forfeiture Revenue -                     18,535               -                     3,300                 2,500                

03-00-5-394 Explorer Revenue -                     4,000                 4,000                 7,500                 4,000                

03-00-5-395 Emergency 911 Revenue -                     8,569                 -                     8,600                 8,600                

03-00-5-396 DUI Fines -                     -                     -                     12,000               12,000              

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 72,387$             107,127$           76,500$             130,700$           101,300$          

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 2,281,826$       2,585,984$        2,784,100$       2,854,100$       4,124,300$       

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

03-00-9-392 Transfer from General Corporate Fund 3,574,001$       3,525,641$        3,445,400$       3,426,000$       2,170,300$       

03-00-9-888 Transfer to Police Pension Fund (862,721)           (882,336)            (932,300)           (930,600)           (950,000)           

03-00-9-889 Transfer to Employees Insurance Fund (645,275)           (703,332)            (689,800)           (677,400)           (600,000)           

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 2,066,005$       1,939,973$        1,823,300$       1,818,000$       620,300$          

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 4,347,831$       4,525,957$        4,607,400$       4,672,100$       4,744,600$       

Police Protection Fund

REVENUES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

03-00-3-406 Office Manager 47,754$             49,422$             51,200$             51,200$             53,300$            

03-00-3-407 Records/Communications 649,479             631,119             632,900             640,300             659,200            

03-00-3-418 Maintenance Personnel 49,297               47,252               51,200               50,800               53,500              

03-00-3-421 Police Chief 126,862             131,269             136,700             137,200             140,000            

03-00-3-423 Supervisory Officers 804,741             827,343             881,100             880,900             896,700            

03-00-3-424 Police Officers 1,997,043          2,112,376          2,072,900          2,086,700          2,157,000         

03-00-3-425 Community Service Officers 28,055               27,979               43,100               40,500               45,100              

03-00-3-430 Crossing Guards 37,286               36,894               39,300               39,300               40,900              

03-00-3-433 Extra Police Duty 7,699                 5,432                 6,500                 7,000                 7,200                

03-00-3-445 Overtime Dispatchers 44,332               54,635               48,800               48,000               49,200              

03-00-3-447 Overtime Officers 171,237             172,504             181,000             181,000             186,500            

03-00-3-448 Overtime Grant Officers 19,486               12,640               10,000               28,000               20,000              

TOTAL SALARIES 3,983,271$       4,108,865$        4,154,700$       4,190,900$       4,308,600$       

PERSONAL SERVICES

03-00-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 8,618$               10,100$             78,900$             74,600$             31,700$            

03-00-4-452 Travel & Training 20,009               19,147               19,000               19,000               19,500              

03-00-4-453 Uniform Allowance 37,737               42,718               38,000               38,000               38,900              

03-00-4-454 Dues & Subscriptions 2,429                 2,061                 2,600                 2,600                 2,600                

03-00-4-455 Board of Fire & Police Commission 1,505                 375                     2,000                 500                    2,000                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 70,298$             74,401$             140,500$           134,700$           94,700$            

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

03-00-5-501 Communications 40,201$             46,674$             48,500$             48,500$             49,800$            

03-00-5-502 Legal Expenses 59,589               79,581               62,500               85,000               80,000              

03-00-5-543 Leases and Professional Services 4,179                 3,974                 6,000                 4,800                 4,500                

03-00-5-550 Service to Maintain Building 19,480               15,026               15,000               29,400               20,000              

03-00-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 17,167               11,791               15,000               14,000               16,000              

03-00-5-553 Service to Maintain Vehicles 5,661                 3,542                 6,000                 6,000                 6,000                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 146,277$           160,588$           153,000$           187,700$           176,300$          

COMMODITIES

03-00-6-601 Postage 1,635$               693$                  1,500$               1,300$               1,400$              

03-00-6-602 Gasoline & Oil 100,093             89,847               96,900               75,500               80,000              

03-00-6-603 Fuel-Heating -                     -                     600                    1,100                 800                   

03-00-6-606 Supplies 20,829               29,852               21,500               21,500               21,500              

03-00-6-610 DARE -                     2,012                 2,000                 2,000                 2,000                

03-00-6-613 Water & Sewer 1,034                 1,033                 1,200                 1,200                 1,200                

03-00-6-622 Material to Maintain Vehicles 18,307               13,671               20,000               18,000               20,000              

TOTAL COMMODITIES 141,898$           137,108$           143,700$           120,600$           126,900$          

CAPITAL OUTLAY

03-00-7-715 Computer System Upgrades 478$                  3,525$               4,000$               2,000$               4,000$              

03-00-7-720 Equipment 5,109                 6,901                 7,000                 7,500                 7,000                

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 5,587$               10,426$             11,000$             9,500$               11,000$            

OTHER CHARGES

03-00-8-801 Contingencies 500$                  -$                   500$                  -$                   -$                  

03-00-8-823 DUI Fines Expenditures -                     -                     -                     1,400                 2,800                

03-00-8-829 Drug Forfeiture Expenditures -                     12,205               -                     5,000                 1,500                

03-00-8-830 Explorer Expenditures -                     184                     4,000                 4,000                 4,000                

03-00-8-831 Emergency 911 Expenditures -                     762                     3,000                 4,800                 1,500                

TOTAL OTHER CHARGES 500$                  13,151$             7,500$               15,200$             9,800$              

TOTAL POLICE PROTECTION  FUND EXPENSES 4,347,831$       4,504,539$        4,610,400$       4,658,600$       4,727,300$       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) -$                   21,418$             (3,000)$              13,500$             17,300$            

Ending Fund Balance 34,900$          52,200$         

Police Protection Fund (Continued)

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 5,900$            (80,300)$       

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

04-00-3-326 Season Passes 131,451$         80,706$            120,000$         86,300$            110,000$         

04-00-3-328 Rentals/Groups 17,570              16,646               18,000              20,000              21,000              

04-00-3-329 General Admission 127,099            80,426               120,000            104,600            110,000           

04-00-3-332 Swimming Instructions 38,713              35,671               38,000              33,800              34,000              

04-00-3-334 Aquatic Concession Lease 2,400                 2,450                 2,700                 3,500                 2,500                

04-00-3-335 Vending Receipts -                     280                     -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES 317,233$         216,179$          298,700$         248,200$         277,500$         

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 317,233$         216,179$          298,700$         248,200$         277,500$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

04-00-9-901 Transfer to Water & Sewer Fund (9,000)$             (9,000)$             (9,000)$             (9,000)$             (9,000)$            

04-00-9-902 Transfer to Employees Insurance Fund (8,934)               (9,828)                (9,300)               (9,300)               (8,900)               

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)FROM OTHER FUNDS (17,934)$          (18,828)$           (18,300)$          (18,300)$          (17,900)$          

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 299,299$         197,351$          280,400$         229,900$         259,600$         

SALARIES

04-00-3-431 Maintenance 8,002$              8,390$               8,000$              9,800$              9,500$              

04-00-3-433 Management 13,644              12,263               13,500              12,700              13,500              

04-00-3-435 Guards & Attendants 110,895            103,965            110,000            111,500            110,000           

04-00-3-436 Recreation Coordinator 23,834              25,425               27,000              26,600              27,800              

04-00-3-445 Overtime -                     -                      -                     

TOTAL SALARIES 156,375$         150,043$          158,500$         160,600$         160,800$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

04-00-4-452 Training 4,628$              7,288$               6,000$              4,100$              4,500$              

04-00-4-453 Uniforms 5,412                 4,385                 5,000                 3,500                 4,500                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 10,040$            11,673$            11,000$            7,600$              9,000$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

04-00-5-501 Communications 2,712$              2,534$               2,700$              1,200$              1,500$              

04-00-5-504 Professional Services 1,075                 4,913                 1,000                 1,600                 1,500                

04-00-5-537 Printing Services 5,480                 5,040                 5,000                 4,500                 5,000                

04-00-5-550 Service to Maintain Building 4,349                 1,344                 3,000                 1,500                 2,000                

04-00-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 12,903              4,783                 4,800                 5,500                 5,000                

04-00-5-558 Service to Maintain Pool 552                    160                     1,500                 -                     1,500                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 27,071$            18,774$            18,000$            14,300$            16,500$           

Aquatic Center Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Aquatic Center Fund-Continued

Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

COMMODITIES

04-00-6-601 Postage 1,500$              1,500$               1,500$              1,500$              1,500$              

04-00-6-603 Fuel-Heating 12,959              27,866               17,000              32,500              20,000              

04-00-6-604 Electric 17,626              14,802               16,000              18,800              18,000              

04-00-6-606 Office/Janitorial Supplies 2,437                 2,499                 3,000                 3,500                 3,500                

04-00-6-607 Chemicals 16,577              10,495               14,000              12,200              14,000              

04-00-6-610 Safety Equipment 367                    293                     1,000                 400                    1,000                

04-00-6-612 Program Supplies 7,262                 3,248                 5,000                 3,200                 4,000                

04-00-6-620 Material to Maintain Building 3,737                 5,041                 3,500                 3,200                 4,000                

04-00-6-621 Material to Maintain Equipment 3,084                 9,048                 3,500                 2,500                 3,000                

04-00-6-622 Material to Maintain Pool 2,448                 2,187                 3,000                 300                    2,500                

TOTAL COMMODITIES 67,997$            76,979$            67,500$            78,100$            71,500$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

04-00-7-720 Pool Painting/Bathroom Repair 8,220$              27,114$            3,500$              48,500$            5,000$              

04-00-7-721 Rec Pool Boiler Replacement 6,491                 300                     3,000                 7,000                 17,000              

04-00-7-723 Furniture, Fixture & Equipment 16,600              1,245                 3,000                 -                     3,000                

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 31,311$            28,659$            9,500$              55,500$            25,000$           

TOTAL AQUATIC CENTER  FUND EXPENSES 292,794$         286,128$          264,500$         316,100$         282,800$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 6,505$              (88,777)$           15,900$            (86,200)$          (23,200)$          

Ending Fund Balance (80,300)$        (103,500)$     



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 24,500$         36,700$         

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

05-00-3-326 Monthly Memberships 414,841$         338,154$          365,000$         397,000$         400,000$         

05-00-3-327 Short-Term Memberships 28,420              29,978               30,000              27,500              28,000              

05-00-3-328 Facility Rental 11,550              12,142               11,000              13,000              12,000              

05-00-3-329 Miscellaneous Revenues 47,226              48,834               41,000              44,000              45,000              

TOTAL SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES 502,037$         429,108$          447,000$         481,500$         485,000$         

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 502,037$         429,108$          447,000$         481,500$         485,000$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

05-00-9-401 Transfer to Debt Service Fund (67,500)$          (67,700)$           (66,500)$          (66,500)$          (64,000)$          

05-00-9-889 Transfer to Employee Insurance Fund (8,934)               (9,828)                (9,300)               (9,300)               (8,900)               

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (76,434)$          (77,528)$           (75,800)$          (75,800)$          (72,900)$          

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 425,603$         351,580$          371,200$         405,700$         412,100$         

SALARIES

05-00-3-405 Program Coordinator (50%) 23,964$            25,426$            26,500$            26,500$            27,800$           

05-00-3-430 Front Desk 80,663              79,696               83,000              78,000              82,000              

05-00-3-431 Instructors/Personal Trainers 78,642              79,928               79,000              83,800              85,000              

05-00-3-432 Nursery 26,885              28,435               29,000              31,700              31,000              

05-00-3-445 Overtime 23                       -                      -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL SALARIES 210,177$         213,485$          217,500$         220,000$         225,800$         

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

05-00-5-501 Communications 4,372$              4,471$               4,700$              3,800$              4,000$              

05-00-5-504 Professional Services 1,229                 2,185                 1,500                 1,500                 1,500                

05-00-5-537 Printing Services 506                    290                     3,000                 3,000                 3,000                

05-00-5-538 Advertising 2,777                 3,639                 3,500                 5,200                 4,500                

05-00-5-550 Service to Maintain Building 28,734              32,156               28,000              34,900              35,000              

05-00-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 14,009              17,656               14,000              14,600              16,000              

05-00-5-558 Service to Maintain Pool 3,762                 5,407                 3,000                 5,300                 4,500                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 55,389$            65,804$            57,700$            68,300$            68,500$           

COMMODITIES

05-00-6-601 Postage -$                   -$                   1,500$              1,500$              1,500$              

05-00-6-603 Fuel-Heating 9,161                 9,058                 8,000                 10,000              9,000                

05-00-6-604 Electric 28,529              26,842               32,000              23,900              24,000              

05-00-6-606 Office/Janitorial Supplies 8,105                 11,376               8,500                 11,000              11,000              

05-00-6-607 Pool Chemicals 3,094                 8,894                 6,000                 8,000                 8,000                

05-00-6-610 Safety Equipment 20                       215                     100                    600                    300                    

05-00-6-612 Program Supplies 16,396              17,060               12,000              14,000              14,000              

05-00-6-620 Material to Maintain Building 4,149                 6,910                 4,000                 6,000                 6,000                

05-00-6-621 Material to Maintain Equipment 1,919                 3,662                 3,000                 2,500                 3,500                

05-00-6-622 Material to Maintain Pool 1,452                 3,332                 3,000                 3,000                 3,000                

TOTAL COMMODITIES 72,825$            87,349$            78,100$            80,500$            80,300$           

Recreation Center Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Recreation Center Fund-Continued

Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

CAPITAL OUTLAY

05-00-7-720 Equipment 26,158$            42,271$            20,000$            24,700$            25,000$           

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 26,158$            42,271$            20,000$            24,700$            25,000$           

TOTAL RECREATION CENTER  FUND EXPENSES 364,549$         408,909$          373,300$         393,500$         399,600$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 61,054$            (57,329)$           (2,100)$             12,200$            12,500$           

Ending Fund Balance 36,700$         49,200$         



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance -$                -$               

TAXES

06-00-1-311 Property Taxes 409,293$         360,505$          337,700$         325,700$         300,000$         

TOTAL TAXES 409,293$         360,505$          337,700$         325,700$         300,000$         

FEES

06-00-2-360 Facility Rental 22,055$            23,515$            22,000$            15,000$            20,000$           

TOTAL FEES 22,055$            23,515$            22,000$            15,000$            20,000$           

OTHER REVENUES

06-00-5-380 Miscellaneous Revenues -$                   -$                   100$                  -$                   -$                  

06-00-5-381 Snow Removal 12,682              12,212               12,600              13,000              13,400              

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 12,682$            12,212$            12,700$            13,000$            13,400$           

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 444,030$         396,232$          372,400$         353,700$         333,400$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

06-00-9-392 Transfer From General Corporate Fund 353,429$         489,320$          570,700$         584,400$         696,000$         

06-00-9-393 Transfer From Special Recreation Fund -                     -                      -                     -                     -                     

06-00-9-889 Transfer to Employee Insurance Fund (119,783)          (141,603)           (164,800)          (144,900)          (154,300)          

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 233,646$         347,717$          405,900$         439,500$         541,700$         

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 677,676$         743,949$          778,300$         793,200$         875,100$         

SALARIES

06-00-3-408 Parks & Facilities Superintendent 90,642$            93,822$            96,400$            115,300$         86,800$           

06-00-3-415 Maintenance 373,819            397,539            430,600            403,800            489,000           

06-00-3-431 Extra Labor 24,362              17,013               18,500              17,500              20,000              

06-00-3-445 Overtime 10,567              21,393               14,000              14,000              16,000              

TOTAL SALARIES 499,390$         529,767$          559,500$         550,600$         611,800$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

06-00-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 2,266$              2,067$               5,600$              1,000$              3,800$              

06-00-4-453 Uniforms 5,297                 3,261                 3,800                 5,300                 5,000                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 7,563$              5,328$               9,400$              6,300$              8,800$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

06-00-5-540 Electricity 2,326$              7,368$               12,000$            12,500$            13,000$           

06-00-5-543 Equipment Rental 3,674                 2,862                 3,000                 2,500                 3,000                

06-00-5-551 Service to Maintain Grounds 28,873              31,983               30,000              43,000              43,000              

06-00-5-553 Service to Maintain Vehicles 782                    1,033                 800                    1,800                 1,500                

06-00-5-557 Service to Maintain Lights 10,029              5,129                 7,000                 10,000              10,000              

06-00-5-563 Tree Trimming & Removal 6,768                 14,215               12,000              17,000              20,000              

06-00-5-566 Preventive Tree Maintenance 1,977                 -                      1,500                 1,000                 1,500                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 54,429$            62,590$            66,300$            87,800$            92,000$           

Parks Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Parks Fund-Continued

Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

COMMODITIES

06-00-6-602 Gasoline & Oil 29,405$            35,775$            35,000$            23,000$            27,000$           

06-00-6-603 Fuel-Heating 8,187                 13,837               8,500                 7,000                 8,500                

06-00-6-605 Tools 111                    563                     500                    500                    1,000                

06-00-6-606 Supplies 5,960                 6,409                 5,000                 6,000                 6,000                

06-00-6-609 Landscape Materials 839                    2,000                 7,000                 5,000                 27,000              

06-00-6-611 Recreation Supplies 3,893                 5,922                 4,500                 5,000                 5,000                

06-00-6-613 Water and Sewer 335                    -                      800                    5,500                 1,000                

06-00-6-616 Lumber 467                    218                     1,000                 500                    1,000                

06-00-6-620 Material to Maintain Buildings 456                    644                     600                    1,000                 3,500                

06-00-6-621 Material to Maintain Equipment 15,662              21,281               15,000              30,000              20,000              

06-00-6-622 Material to Maintain Vehicles 4,792                 7,490                 6,500                 10,000              8,500                

06-00-6-623 Material to Maintain Grounds 36,470              38,639               50,400              40,000              45,000              

06-00-6-630 Material to Maintain Lights 214                    550                     1,300                 -                     -                     

06-00-6-635 Ice Control 6,088                 10,782               5,000                 7,800                 6,500                

TOTAL COMMODITIES 112,879$         144,110$          141,100$         141,300$         160,000$         

CAPITAL OUTLAY

06-00-7-720 Equipment 3,415$              2,154$               2,000$              7,200$              2,500$              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,415$              2,154$               2,000$              7,200$              2,500$              

TOTAL PARKS FUND EXPENSES 677,676$         743,949$          778,300$         793,200$         875,100$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  

Ending Fund Balance -$                -$               



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance $36,100 $0

TAXES

07-00-1-311 Property Tax 218,293$           192,270$           179,700$           173,700$           160,000$          

TOTAL TAXES 218,293$           192,270$           179,700$           173,700$           160,000$          

FEES

07-00-2-330 Gifts and Donations 2,047$               1,323$                2,000$               1,200$               11,500$            

07-00-2-360 Facility Rental 64,742 63,279 65,000 65,000 67,000

07-00-2-365 Materials and Services 43,191 44,646 45,000 45,000 46,000

07-00-2-366 Program Revenues 37,149               30,695                35,000               21,000               35,000               

07-00-2-367 Ticket Office Services 7,350                  7,575                  8,000                  7,100                  7,500                 

07-00-2-368 Endowment Fund Revenue 36,124               -                      -                      -                      -                     

TOTAL FEES 190,603$           147,518$           155,000$           139,300$           167,000$          

OTHER

07-00-5-380 Miscellaneous Income 13,472$             13,759$             17,000$             17,000$             17,000$            

TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 13,472$             13,759$             17,000$             17,000$             17,000$            

TOTAL REVENUES OPERA HOUSE (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 422,368$           353,547$           351,700$           330,000$           344,000$          

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

07-00-9-392 Transfer From General Corporate Fund 280,802$           350,246$           355,400$           303,800$           362,000$          

07-00-9-393 Transfer From Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 30,000               30,000                30,000               30,000               30,000               

07-00-9-889 Transfer To Employee Insurance Fund (89,340)              (95,004)              (89,800)              (66,800)              (66,600)             

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 221,462$           285,242$           295,600$           267,000$           325,400$          

TOTAL REVENUES OPERA HOUSE (AFTER TRANSFERS) 643,830$           638,789$           647,300$           597,000$           669,400$          

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

07-13-2-330 Concessions 46,970$             44,167$             52,000$             46,000$             48,000$            

07-13-2-360 Café Rental 10,503               10,075                11,000               8,000                  10,000               

07-13-2-365 Labor Reimbursement 173                     626                     300                     200                     300                    

07-13-2-380 TIP Donations 4,318                  4,545                  4,300                  4,500                  4,500                 

TOTAL SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES 61,964$             59,413$             67,600$             58,700$             62,800$            

TOTAL REVENUES CAFE 61,964$             59,413$             67,600$             58,700$             62,800$            

TOTAL REVENUES PERFORMING ARTS FUND (AFTER TRANSFERS) 705,794$           698,202$           714,900$           655,700$           732,200$          

07-11-x-xxx   Opera House 616,351$           680,702$           660,100$           637,900$           680,400$          

07-12-x-xxx   Municipal Band 18,600               20,930                20,000               17,700               20,000               

07-13-x-xxx   Café 34,718               32,695                34,800               36,200               31,800               

TOTAL PERFORMING ARTS FUND EXPENSES 669,669$           734,327$           714,900$           691,800$           732,200$          

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 36,125$             (36,125)$            -$                    (36,100)$            -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                    -$                   

Performing Arts Fund - Revenues

REVENUES OPERA HOUSE

EXPENSES

REVENUES CAFÉ



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

07-11-3-402 Director 100,874$         104,394$          108,700$         108,700$         113,600$         

07-11-3-403 Production Manager 72,796              79,590               59,700              44,500              62,400              

07-11-3-404 Building Manager 72,627              75,163               78,200              78,200              82,100              

07-11-3-407 Box Office Manager 54,707              56,607               58,900              58,900              61,800              

07-11-3-413 Office Manager 31,494              30,627               32,500              32,000              33,300              

07-11-3-436 Box Office Assistant 26,898              27,711               28,700              28,200              29,500              

07-11-3-437 Box Office Workers 19,102              21,651               23,000              22,500              23,200              

07-11-3-441 Facility and Event Workers 69,002              71,916               72,000              72,000              73,800              

07-11-3-445 Overtime 46                       -                      -                     -                     -                     

07-11-3-446 Production Assistant 42,444              43,933               45,700              46,400              42,400              

TOTAL SALARIES 489,990$         511,592$          507,400$         491,400$         522,100$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

07-11-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 3,144$              3,359$               5,600$              4,500$              4,800$              

07-11-4-452 Travel & Training -                     -                      -                     -                     1,500                

07-11-4-454 Dues & Subscription 1,230                 1,291                 1,300                 1,300                 1,300                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 4,374$              4,650$               6,900$              5,800$              7,600$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

07-11-5-501 Communications 8,003$              6,224$               4,500$              4,200$              5,000$              

07-11-5-502 Professional Services 4,175                 4,985                 5,000                 9,500                 5,500                

07-11-5-525 Programming Fund 37,138              42,616               35,000              25,500              35,000              

07-11-5-526 Programming Fund-Advertising 5,956                 5,098                 18,000              17,000              18,000              

07-11-5-537 Printing Services 6,000                 7,311                 8,000                 7,500                 8,000                

07-11-5-550 Service to Maintain Building 37,032              40,982               35,000              36,100              36,200              

07-11-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 1,947                 2,067                 2,400                 1,700                 1,500                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 100,251$         109,283$          107,900$         101,500$         109,200$         

COMMODITIES

07-11-6-601 Postage 10,597$            8,587$               8,000$              9,300$              9,000$              

07-11-6-602 Gas & Oil 317                    345                     400                    400                    400                    

07-11-6-603 Fuel-Heating -                     -                      1,400                 1,800                 1,300                

07-11-6-606 Supplies 1,839                 2,234                 2,500                 2,000                 2,500                

07-11-6-607 Receptions (Entertainment) 240                    219                     1,000                 500                    1,000                

07-11-6-613 Water and Sewer 826                    795                     1,000                 900                    1,000                

07-11-6-620 Material to Maintain Building 6,513                 7,248                 7,000                 7,500                 8,000                

07-11-6-621 Material to Maintain Equipment 1,404                 1,373                 1,500                 1,500                 1,500                

07-11-6-622 Material to Maintain Vehicles -                     89                       100                    300                    300                    

TOTAL COMMODITIES 21,736$            20,890$            22,900$            24,200$            25,000$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

07-11-7-701 Building -$                   -$                   10,000$            10,000$            10,000$           

07-11-7-720 Equipment -                     -                      5,000                 5,000                 6,500                

07-11-7-725 Fire House Doors -                     34,287               -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                   34,287$            15,000$            15,000$            16,500$           

TOTAL OPERA HOUSE DEPARTMENT EXPENSES 616,351$         680,702$          660,100$         637,900$         680,400$         

Performing Arts Fund-Expenses

OPERA HOUSE



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

07-12-3-437 Band Members 14,902$            14,253$            16,000$            13,900$            15,000$           

07-12-3-438 Other Concerts 1,992                 2,100                 2,000                 2,500                 2,500                

TOTAL SALARIES 16,894$            16,353$            18,000$            16,400$            17,500$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

07-12-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment -$                   3,137$               -$                   -$                   1,000$              

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES -$                   3,137$               -$                   -$                   1,000$              

COMMODITIES

07-12-6-606 Supplies 1,706$              1,440$               2,000$              1,300$              1,500$              

TOTAL COMMODITIES 1,706$              1,440$               2,000$              1,300$              1,500$              

TOTAL MUNICIPAL BAND EXPENSES 18,600$            20,930$            20,000$            17,700$            20,000$           

SALARIES

07-13-3-441 Café Staff 14,291$            13,256$            15,000$            13,000$            15,000$           

TOTAL SALARIES 14,291$            13,256$            15,000$            13,000$            15,000$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

07-13-5-504 Insurance & Licensing 3,005$              1,380$               2,800$              2,400$              2,800$              

07-13-5-552 Service to Maintain Café 621                    615                     1,000                 800                    1,000                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 3,626$              1,995$               3,800$              3,200$              3,800$              

COMMODITIES

07-13-6-606 Supplies 16,676$            15,405$            16,000$            16,000$            13,000$           

TOTAL COMMODITIES 16,676$            15,405$            16,000$            16,000$            13,000$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

07-13-7-720 Equipment 125$                  2,039$               -$                   4,000$              -$                  

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 125$                  2,039$               -$                   4,000$              -$                  

TOTAL CAFE EXPENSES 34,718$            32,695$            34,800$            36,200$            31,800$           

CAFÉ

Performing Arts Fund-Expenses (Continued)

MUNICIPAL BAND



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 777,800$       796,300$      

TAXES

08-00-1-311 Property Tax 880,078$         879,585$          911,200$         909,500$         983,200$         

08-00-1-312 Replacement Tax 11,000              11,000               11,000              11,000              11,000              

TOTAL TAXES 891,078$         890,585$          922,200$         920,500$         994,200$         

FEES

08-00-2-330 Fines and Fees 75,613$            84,384$            90,000$            72,000$            80,000$           

08-00-2-331 Gifts & Donations 1,058                 9,091                 18,000              18,000              18,000              

08-00-2-332 Grants 2,500                 6,500                 30,000              23,000              15,000              

TOTAL FEES 79,171$            99,975$            138,000$         113,000$         113,000$         

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

08-00-4-346 Rural District Contract 356,701$         373,617$          386,400$         392,300$         393,300$         

08-00-4-347 Grants in Aid 25,455              30,963               31,000              31,000              31,000              

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 382,156$         404,580$          417,400$         423,300$         424,300$         

OTHER

08-00-5-381 Interest Income 5,215$              5,425$               6,000$              5,800$              6,000$              

TOTAL OTHER 5,215$              5,425$               6,000$              5,800$              6,000$              

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 1,357,620$      1,400,565$      1,483,600$      1,462,600$      1,537,500$     

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

08-00-9-885 Transfer to Library Building Fund -$                   -$                   (15,000)$          (15,000)$          (75,000)$          

08-00-9-889 Transfer to Employee Insurance Fund (97,418)             (125,258)           (121,300)          (121,700)          (122,300)          

08-00-9-893 Transfer to General Corp Fund (11,000)             (11,000)             (11,000)             (11,000)             (11,000)            

08-00-9-896 Transfer to Social Security Fund -                     -                      -                     -                     (70,000)            

08-00-9-897 Transfer to IMRF Fund (100,000)          (100,000)           (100,000)          (100,000)          (30,000)            

08-00-9-898 Transfer to Liability Insurance Fund (25,000)             (25,000)             (25,000)             (25,000)             (25,000)            

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (233,418)$        (261,258)$        (272,300)$        (272,700)$        (333,300)$       

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 1,124,202$      1,139,307$      1,211,300$      1,189,900$      1,204,200$     

SALARIES

08-00-3-402 Director 62,962$            91,950$            95,700$            95,700$            100,000$         

08-00-3-406 Full Time Librarians 403,139            443,245            462,300            462,000            518,600           

08-00-3-407 Part Time Librarians 237,762            209,299            247,400            214,800            217,200           

08-00-3-436 Library Shelvers 49,878              46,687               49,000              45,800              45,000              

TOTAL SALARIES 753,741$         791,181$          854,400$         818,300$         880,800$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

08-00-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 589$                  619$                  3,900$              600$                  2,800$              

08-00-4-452 Travel & Training 1,949                 4,230                 3,000                 3,000                 3,000                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 2,538$              4,849$               6,900$              3,600$              5,800$              

Library Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Library Fund (Continued)

Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

08-00-5-501 Communications 12,283$            11,213$            12,000$            12,000$            7,000$              

08-00-5-502 Legal Services -                     310                     -                     -                     -                     

08-00-5-517 Electronic Access 73,445              92,188               78,000              81,000              72,000              

08-00-5-518 Professional Services 20,393              7,623                 6,000                 5,000                 5,000                

08-00-5-536 Outreach -                     -                      -                     -                     5,000                

08-00-5-543 Equipment Rental 756                    756                     800                    800                    900                    

08-00-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 4,289                 4,038                 3,500                 5,200                 5,000                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 111,166$         116,128$          100,300$         104,000$         94,900$           

COMMODITIES

08-00-6-601 Postage 3,077$              2,116$               2,500$              2,000$              2,500$              

08-00-6-603 Fuel-Heating -                     1,203                 -                     -                     -                     

08-00-6-606 Supplies 39,815              42,856               38,000              38,000              37,000              

TOTAL COMMODITIES 42,892$            46,175$            40,500$            40,000$            39,500$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

08-00-7-740 Books & Other Library Material 156,084$         182,709$          152,000$         150,000$         145,000$         

08-00-7-741 Electronic Format 51,305              35,882               52,200              50,000              52,000              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 207,389$         218,591$          204,200$         200,000$         197,000$         

OTHER

08-00-8-812 Library Programs 5,138$              5,463$               5,000$              5,500$              5,500$              

TOTAL OTHER 5,138$              5,463$               5,000$              5,500$              5,500$              

TOTAL LIBRARY FUND EXPENSES 1,122,864$      1,182,387$      1,211,300$      1,171,400$      1,223,500$     

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 1,338$              (43,080)$           -$                   18,500$            (19,300)$          

Ending Fund Balance 796,300$       777,000$      



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 301,900$       193,500$      

TAXES

09-00-1-311 Property Tax 87,790$            90,328$            96,300$            86,800$            37,000$           

TOTAL TAXES 87,790$            90,328$            96,300$            86,800$            37,000$           

FEES

09-00-2-383 Developer Donations 22,794$            39,984$            40,000$            35,900$            65,000$           

TOTAL FEES 22,794$            39,984$            40,000$            35,900$            65,000$           

OTHER

09-00-5-380 Miscellaneous Income -$                   -$                   5,000$              -$                   -$                  

09-00-5-381 Interest Income 1,813                 1,716                 1,800                 1,500                 1,800                

09-00-5-383 MCCF Grant -                     -                      -                     -                     25,000              

09-00-5-384 Energy Efficiency Grant -                     -                      -                     -                     20,000              

09-00-5-385 CDBG Building Grant -                     -                      65,000              65,000              -                     

TOTAL OTHER 1,813$              1,716$               71,800$            66,500$            46,800$           

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 112,397$         132,028$          208,100$         189,200$         148,800$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

09-00-9-785 Transfer from Library Fund -$                   -$                   15,000$            15,000$            75,000$           

09-00-9-890 Transfer to Library Debt Service (35,000)             (42,400)             (41,800)             (41,800)             (46,300)            

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (35,000)$          (42,400)$           (26,800)$          (26,800)$          28,700$           

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 77,397$            89,628$            181,300$         162,400$         177,500$         

SALARIES

09-00-3-415 Building Cleaning Services 44,880$            49,721$            48,000$            43,000$            40,000$           

TOTAL SALARIES 44,880$            49,721$            48,000$            43,000$            40,000$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

09-00-5-502 Legal Services -$                   -$                   500$                  -$                   500$                 

09-00-5-504 Professional Services 98                       16,269               10,000              12,000              10,000              

09-00-5-530 Water & Sewer 1,218                 1,269                 1,500                 1,200                 1,500                

09-00-5-540 Utilities -                     297                     1,000                 1,600                 1,200                

09-00-5-550 Service to Maintain Building & Grounds 31,288              36,761               36,000              30,000              25,000              

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 32,604$            54,596$            49,000$            44,800$            38,200$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

09-00-7-701 Building Construction -$                   7,651$               105,000$         159,000$         85,000$           

09-00-7-720 Furniture & Equipment 20,287              23,254               21,000              24,000              25,000              

09-00-7-726 Landscaping -                     -                      1,000                 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 20,287$            30,905$            127,000$         183,000$         110,000$         

TOTAL LIBRARY BUILDING FUND EXPENSES 97,771$            135,222$          224,000$         270,800$         188,200$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (20,374)$          (45,594)$           (42,700)$          (108,400)$        (10,700)$          

Ending Fund Balance 193,500$       182,800$      

Library Building Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance -$                -$               

TAXES

10-00-1-311 Property Tax -                     -                      -                     -                     500,000           

TOTAL TAXES -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   500,000$         

OTHER

10-00-5-381 Interest Income -                     -                      -                     -                     100                    

TOTAL OTHER -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   100$                 

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   500,100$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

10-00-9-308 Transfer from Library -                     -                      -                     -                     70,000              

10-00-9-360 Transfer from Utility Fund -                     -                      -                     -                     88,300              

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   158,300$         

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   658,400$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

10-00-4-458 Social Security -                     -                      -                     -                     479,200           

10-00-4-459 Medicare -                     -                      -                     -                     156,700           

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   635,900$         

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

10-00-5-501 Flex Plan Administration -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   6,300$              

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   6,300$              

TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND EXPENSES -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   642,200$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   16,200$           

Ending Fund Balance -$                16,200$         

Social Security Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 1,121,500$       1,211,800$   

TAXES

11-00-1-311 Property Tax 1,224,848$      1,231,283$      1,278,200$      1,275,800$          650,000$         

TOTAL TAXES 1,224,848$      1,231,283$      1,278,200$      1,275,800$          650,000$         

OTHER

11-00-5-381 Interest Income 6,286$              6,906$               5,800$              6,000$                  5,800$              

TOTAL OTHER 6,286$              6,906$               5,800$              6,000$                  5,800$              

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 1,231,134$      1,238,189$      1,284,000$      1,281,800$          655,800$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

11-00-9-308 Transfer from Library 100,000$         100,000$          100,000$         100,000                30,000              

11-00-9-360 Transfer from Utility Fund 212,500            219,000            239,700            224,800                147,000           

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 312,500$         319,000$          339,700$         324,800$             177,000$         

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 1,543,634$      1,557,189$      1,623,700$      1,606,600$          832,800$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

11-00-4-457 IMRF 849,784$         889,493$          927,200$         930,500                924,400           

11-00-4-458 Social Security 411,963            418,408            505,500            431,500                -                     

11-00-4-459 Medicare 141,575            143,023            154,700            148,000                -                     

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 1,403,322$      1,450,924$      1,587,400$      1,510,000$          924,400$         

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

11-00-5-501 Flex Plan Administration 5,110$              4,813$               4,800$              6,300                     -                     

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 5,110$              4,813$               4,800$              6,300$                  -$                  

TOTAL IMRF FUND EXPENSES 1,408,432$      1,455,737$      1,592,200$      1,516,300$          924,400$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 135,202$         101,452$          31,500$            90,300$                (91,600)$          

Ending Fund Balance 1,211,800$       1,120,200$   

IMRF Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 238,100$       96,100$         

TAXES

12-00-1-315 MFT Allotment 613,157$         639,841$          613,000$         643,000$         625,000$         

TOTAL TAXES 613,157$         639,841$          613,000$         643,000$         625,000$         

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

12-00-4-352 State Grants 107,082$         107,082$          107,000$         214,100$         -$                  

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 107,082$         107,082$          107,000$         214,100$         -$                  

OTHER

12-00-5-381 Interest Income 1,295$              717$                  700$                  1,400$              700$                 

TOTAL OTHER 1,295$              717$                  700$                  1,400$              700$                 

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 721,534$         747,640$          720,700$         858,500$         625,700$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

12-00-9-391 Transfer from General Corp Fund 100,000$         100,000$          -$                   -$                   -$                  

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 100,000$         100,000$          -$                   -$                   -$                  

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 821,534$         847,640$          720,700$         858,500$         625,700$         

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

12-00-5-559 Service to Maintain Traffic Control -$                   -$                   27,000$            27,000$            27,000$           

12-00-5-564 Street Lighting 250,000$         

12-00-5-571 Street Resurfacing Program 610,741            535,011            273,000            273,000            -                     

12-00-5-575 Crack Sealing 50,000              -                     50,000              

12-00-5-580 Pavement Marking 55,890              57,306               60,000              64,700              80,000              

12-00-5-587 Engineering 115,728            48,177               -                     -                     -                     

12-00-5-588 Equipment Rental 100,000            75,000              100,000           

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 782,359$         640,494$          510,000$         439,700$         507,000$         

COMMODITIES

12-00-6-572 Ice Control Material 132,714$         203,264$          240,000$         560,800$         170,000$         

TOTAL COMMODITIES 132,714$         203,264$          240,000$         560,800$         170,000$         

TOTAL MFT FUND EXPENSES 915,073$         843,758$          750,000$         1,000,500$      677,000$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (93,539)$          3,882$               (29,300)$          (142,000)$        (51,300)$          

Ending Fund Balance 96,100$         44,800$         

Motor Fuel Tax Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 69,000$         38,500$         

FEES

13-00-2-383 Developer Donations 68,485$            63,529$            60,000$            33,400$            35,000$           

TOTAL FEES 68,485$            63,529$            60,000$            33,400$            35,000$           

OTHER

13-00-5-381 Interest Income 515$                  639$                  500$                  400$                  400$                 

TOTAL OTHER 515$                  639$                  500$                  400$                  400$                 

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 69,000$            64,168$            60,500$            33,800$            35,400$           

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

13-00-9-888 Transfer to General Corporate CIP Fund -$                   (35,000)$           (20,000)$          (20,000)$          -$                  

13-00-9-889 Transfer to Debt Service Fund (45,000)             (45,100)             (44,300)             (44,300)             (42,700)            

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (45,000)$          (80,100)$           (64,300)$          (64,300)$          (42,700)$          

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 24,000$            (15,932)$           (3,800)$             (30,500)$          (7,300)$            

TOTAL PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND EXPENSES -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 24,000$            (15,932)$           (3,800)$             (30,500)$          (7,300)$            

Ending Fund Balance 38,500$         31,200$         

Park Development Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance -$                -$               

FEES

14-00-3-321 Administrative Adjudication Fees 4,955$              5,285$               4,700$              4,800$              4,700$              

14-00-3-325 Processing Fees 8,728                 12,326               11,000              12,000              11,000              

TOTAL FEES 13,683$            17,611$            15,700$            16,800$            15,700$           

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 13,683$            17,611$            15,700$            16,800$            15,700$           

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

14-00-9-396 Transfer from General Corp Fund 7,555$              11,541$            6,500$              5,800$              10,500$           

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 7,555$              11,541$            6,500$              5,800$              10,500$           

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 21,238$            29,152$            22,200$            22,600$            26,200$           

SALARIES

14-00-3-431 Administrative Clerk 5,000$              5,300$               5,500$              5,500$              5,500$              

TOTAL SALARIES 5,000$              5,300$               5,500$              5,500$              5,500$              

PERSONAL SERVICES

14-00-4-450 Administrative Judge 6,260$              6,388$               6,400$              5,900$              7,500$              

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 6,260$              6,388$               6,400$              5,900$              7,500$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

14-00-5-502 Legal Services 9,525$              17,308$            10,000$            11,000$            13,000$           

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 9,525$              17,308$            10,000$            11,000$            13,000$           

COMMODITIES

14-00-6-601 Postage 386$                  61$                     200$                  100$                  100$                 

14-00-6-606 Supplies 67                       95                       100                    100                    100                    

TOTAL COMMODITIES 453$                  156$                  300$                  200$                  200$                 

TOTAL AMINISTRATIVE ADJUDICATION FUND EXPENSES 21,238$            29,152$            22,200$            22,600$            26,200$           

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  

Ending Fund Balance -$                -$               

Administrative Adjudication Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 108,500$       191,200$      

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

15-00-3-301 Alarm Charges 270,858$         255,705$         260,000$         256,000$         256,000$        

15-00-3-330 Late Payment Fees 2,204                390                    1,000                1,000                1,000               

15-00-3-350 New Alarm Connection Fees -                    210                    600                   1,400                400                   

TOTAL FEES 273,062$         256,305$         261,600$         258,400$         257,400$        

TOTAL REVENUES 273,062$         256,305$         261,600$         258,400$         257,400$        

SALARIES

15-00-3-407 Administrative Assistance 12,000$           12,000$            12,500$           12,500$           12,500$           

TOTAL SALARIES 12,000$           12,000$            12,500$           12,500$           12,500$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

15-00-5-501 Communications 153$                 -$                  6,300$              5,400$              -$                 

15-00-5-502 Legal Services -                    -                    -                    2,600                300                   

15-00-5-512 WFRD Administrative Fees 50,760              50,382              52,000              50,500              51,000             

15-00-5-522 WPD Monitoring Fees 52,362              52,848              54,400              52,500              53,000             

15-00-5-550 Service to Maintain Equipment 25,469              24,387              25,000              23,000              24,000             

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 128,744$         127,617$         137,700$         134,000$         128,300$        

COMMODITIES

15-00-6-601 Postage 1,130$              956$                 1,200$              1,000$              1,200$             

15-00-6-606 Supplies 108                   143                    300                   200                   300                   

TOTAL COMMODITIES 1,238$              1,099$              1,500$              1,200$              1,500$             

CAPITAL OUTLAY

15-00-7-720 Equipment 1,688$              2,789$              5,000$              28,000$           15,000$           

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,688$              2,789$              5,000$              28,000$           15,000$           

TOTAL WIRELESS FUND EXPENSES 143,670$         143,505$         156,700$         175,700$         157,300$        

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 129,392$         112,800$         104,900$         82,700$           100,100$        

Ending Fund Balance 191,200$       291,300$      

Wireless Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 66,300$         66,300$         

TAXES

16-00-1-311 Property Taxes 145,653$           146,562$           148,700$           148,500$           135,900$          

TOTAL TAXES 145,653$           146,562$           148,700$           148,500$           135,900$          

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 145,653$           146,562$           148,700$           148,500$           135,900$          

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

16-00-9-401 Transfer to General Corp Fund (17,000)$            (18,000)$            (18,000)$            (18,000)$            (18,000)$           

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (17,000)$            (18,000)$            (18,000)$            (18,000)$            (18,000)$           

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 128,653$           128,562$           130,700$           130,500$           117,900$          

PERSONAL SERVICES

16-00-4-452 Administration & Training 10,244$             10,369$             12,000$             8,900$               10,500$            

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 10,244$             10,369$             12,000$             8,900$               10,500$            

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

16-00-5-536 Rec Supplement to Newsletter 6,000$               6,000$                6,000$               6,000$               6,000$               

16-00-5-544 Building Rental 5,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 11,000$             12,000$             12,000$             12,000$             12,000$            

CAPITAL OUTLAY

16-00-7-720 Equipment 15,279$             11,864$             15,000$             12,700$             15,000$            

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 15,279$             11,864$             15,000$             12,700$             15,000$            

OTHER

16-00-8-870 NISRA Contract 108,140$           96,875$             96,900$             96,900$             96,900$            

TOTAL OTHER 108,140$           96,875$             96,900$             96,900$             96,900$            

TOTAL SPECIAL RECREATION FUND EXPENSES 144,663$           131,108$           135,900$           130,500$           134,400$          

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (16,010)$            (2,546)$              (5,200)$              -$                    (16,500)$           

Ending Fund Balance 66,300$         49,800$         

Special Recreation Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 1,508,600$    1,708,800$   

TAXES

21-00-1-311 Property Tax 685,947$         687,922$          693,200$         691,900$         584,400$         

TOTAL TAXES 685,947$         687,922$          693,200$         691,900$         584,400$         

OTHER

21-00-5-381 Interest Income 6,836$              7,555$               6,100$              6,700$              6,000$              

21-00-5-383 Deductible Reimbursements -                     -                      -                     3,000                 -                     

TOTAL OTHER 6,836$              7,555$               6,100$              9,700$              6,000$              

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 692,783$         695,477$          699,300$         701,600$         590,400$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

21-00-9-308 Transfer from Library Fund 25,000$            25,000$            25,000$            25,000$            25,000$           

21-00-9-360 Transfer from Water/Sewer Fund 100,000            100,000            100,000            100,000            100,000           

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 125,000$         125,000$          125,000$         125,000$         125,000$         

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 817,783$         820,477$          824,300$         826,600$         715,400$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

21-00-4-456 Unemployment Compensation 7,137$              6,884$               25,000$            -$                   100,000$         

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 7,137$              6,884$               25,000$            -$                   100,000$         

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

21-00-5-502 Legal Expenses 11,701$            9,365$               25,000$            -$                   -$                  

21-00-5-503 Professional Services -                     95                       1,000                 -                     -                     

21-00-5-531 Insurance Premiums 253,199            320,758            157,500            148,800            163,600           

21-00-5-532 Workers' Compensation Premiums 253,199            321,817            500,000            472,000            518,000           

21-00-5-533 Deductible Expenses 10,102              4,611                 6,000                 4,000                 5,000                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 528,201$         656,646$          689,500$         624,800$         686,600$         

COMMODITIES

21-00-6-606 Supplies 6,281$              -$                   1,000$              1,600$              -$                  

TOTAL COMMODITIES 6,281$              -$                   1,000$              1,600$              -$                  

TOTAL LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND EXPENSES 541,619$         663,530$          715,500$         626,400$         786,600$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 276,164$         156,947$          108,800$         200,200$         (71,200)$          

Ending Fund Balance 1,708,800$    1,637,600$   

Liability Insurance Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance -$                -$               

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

26-00-3-368 Fares 1,040$              200$                  200$                  100$                  200$                 

TOTAL TAXES 1,040$              200$                  200$                  100$                  200$                 

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 1,040$              200$                  200$                  100$                  200$                 

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

26-00-9-392 Transfer from General Corporate Fund 16,145$            18,813$            33,800$            33,900$            34,800$           

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)FROM OTHER FUNDS 16,145$            18,813$            33,800$            33,900$            34,800$           

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 17,185$            19,013$            34,000$            34,000$            35,000$           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

26-00-5-503 Supplemental Payment 17,185$            19,013$            34,000$            34,000$            35,000$           

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 17,185$            19,013$            34,000$            34,000$            35,000$           

TOTAL PARATRANSIT FUND EXPENSES 17,185$            19,013$            34,000$            34,000$            35,000$           

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  

Ending Fund Balance -$                -$               

Paratransit Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance -$                -$               

TAXES

30-00-1-311 Property Tax 343,168$           339,783$           334,100$           333,500$           330,800$          

TOTAL TAXES 343,168$           339,783$           334,100$           333,500$           330,800$          

OTHER

30-00-5-380 Opera House Surcharge 52,314$             53,969$             54,500$             56,000$             58,000$            

30-00-5-381 Interest Income 49                       113                     100                     100                     100                    

30-00-5-390 Fundraising-Opera House 20,000               10,000                20,000               10,000               -                     

30-00-5-391 Refunding Proceeds -                      (2,648)                -                      2,800                  -                     

TOTAL OTHER 72,363$             61,434$             74,600$             68,900$             58,100$            

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 415,531$           401,217$           408,700$           402,400$           388,900$          

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

30-00-9-390 Transfer from General Corporate Fund 190,590$           148,137$           159,900$           168,200$           176,500$          

30-00-9-391 Transfer from General Corporate - CIP Fund 570,600             567,100             558,700             558,700             546,700            

30-00-9-392 Transfer from Recreation Center Fund 67,500               67,700                66,500               66,500               64,000               

30-00-9-393 Transfer from Park Development Fund 45,000               45,100                44,300               44,300               42,700               

30-00-9-394 Transfer from Environmental Management Fund 219,100             218,900             217,800             217,800             198,100            

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 1,092,790$       1,046,937$        1,047,200$       1,055,500$       1,028,000$       

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 1,508,321$       1,448,154$        1,455,900$       1,457,900$       1,416,900$       

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

30-00-5-516 Agent Expenses 1,359$               1,487$                1,500$               1,500$               1,500$               

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,359$               1,487$                1,500$               1,500$               1,500$               

INTEREST EXPENSE

30-00-8-933 Aquatic Center GO-2013A 83,998$             53,530$             54,200$             54,200$             45,800$            

30-00-8-934 Aquatic Center AR-2010A 7,899                  7,791                  6,800                  6,800                  6,600                 

30-00-8-935 Police Facility AR-2013B 85,780               54,641                55,200               55,200               46,700               

30-00-8-936 Opera House AR-2010A 25,585               23,767                22,600               22,600               20,000               

30-00-8-937 Recreation Center AR-2003/2014 43,485               40,726                37,800               37,800               26,400               

30-00-8-938 Lake Avenue AR-2005B/2014 26,870               25,281                23,500               23,500               15,200               

30-00-8-939 McConnell Rd AR-2005B/2014 29,362               27,723                25,800               25,800               16,900               

30-00-8-940 David Rd Soccer AR-2005B/2014 89,050               83,852                77,800               77,800               49,000               

30-00-8-941 Merryman Fields AR-2005B/2014 60,343               56,769                52,700               52,700               33,800               

TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE 452,372$           374,080$           356,400$           356,400$           260,400$          

OTHER(PRINCIPAL)

30-00-8-911 Aquatic Center AR-2010A 40,000$             35,000$             35,000$             35,000$             35,800$            

30-00-8-912 Police Facility AR-2013B 265,000             290,000             285,000             285,000             295,000            

30-00-8-913 Aquatic Center GO-2013A 260,000             285,000             280,000             280,000             285,000            

30-00-8-914 Opera House AR-2010A 100,000             100,000             105,000             105,000             109,200            

30-00-8-915 Recreation Center AR-2003/2014 69,000               72,000                73,000               75,000               80,300               

30-00-8-916 Lake Avenue AR-2005B/2014 40,000               40,000                40,000               40,000               46,300               

30-00-8-917 McConnell Rd AR-2005B/2014 40,000               45,000                45,000               45,000               51,400               

30-00-8-918 David Rd Soccer AR-2005B/2014 130,000             135,000             140,000             140,000             149,100            

30-00-8-919 Merryman Fields AR-2005B/2014 90,000               90,000                95,000               95,000               102,900            

TOTAL OTHER (PRINCIPAL) 1,034,000$       1,092,000$        1,098,000$       1,100,000$       1,155,000$       

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND EXPENSES 1,487,731$       1,467,567$        1,455,900$       1,457,900$       1,416,900$       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 20,590$             (19,413)$            -$                    -$                    -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                    -$                   

Debt Service Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance -$                (700.00)$       

TAXES

31-00-1-311 Property Tax 327,612$         327,407$          328,000$         327,400$         314,200$         

TOTAL TAXES 327,612$         327,407$          328,000$         327,400$         314,200$         

OTHER

31-00-5-381 Interest Income 320$                  490$                  500$                  500$                  500$                 

TOTAL OTHER 320$                  490$                  500$                  500$                  500$                 

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 327,932$         327,897$          328,500$         327,900$         314,700$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

31-00-9-390 Transfer from Library Building Fund 35,000$            42,400$            41,800$            41,800$            46,300$           

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 35,000$            42,400$            41,800$            41,800$            46,300$           

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 362,932$         370,297$          370,300$         369,700$         361,000$         

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

31-00-5-516 Agent Expense 261$                  556$                  500$                  600$                  600$                 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 261$                  556$                  500$                  600$                  600$                 

INTEREST EXPENSE

31-00-8-934 Library GO-2005A/2014A 78,400$            68,400$            58,000$            58,000$            49,300$           

31-00-8-935 Library AR-2010B 7,899                 7,349                 6,800                 6,800                 6,100                

TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE 86,299$            75,749$            64,800$            64,800$            55,400$           

OTHER(PRINCIPLE)

31-00-8-909 Library GO-2005A/2014A 250,000$         260,000$          270,000$         270,000$         265,000$         

31-00-8-910 Library AR-2010B 40,000              35,000               35,000              35,000              40,000              

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 290,000$         295,000$          305,000$         305,000$         305,000$         

TOTAL LIBRARY DEBT SERVICE FUND EXPENSES 376,560$         371,305$          370,300$         370,400$         361,000$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (13,628)$          (1,008)$             -$                   (700)$                -$                  

Ending Fund Balance (700)$              (700)$             

Library Debt Service Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 907,300$       5,500$           

TAXES

41-00-1-311 Property Tax 604,477$          627,236$          630,000$          602,700$          619,500$         

TOTAL TAXES 604,477$          627,236$          630,000$          602,700$          619,500$         

OTHER

41-00-5-363 TIF Grant Revenue -$                   4,550$               -$                   20,000$            63,000$            

41-00-5-381 Interest Income 8,086                 6,524                 7,100                 3,500                 3,500                

41-00-5-382 Rental Revenues 10,200              8,500                 22,200              1,700                 25,200              

41-00-5-383 Courthouse Donations -                     35,085               15,700              11,700              17,400              

TOTAL OTHER 18,286$            54,659$            45,000$            36,900$            109,100$         

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 622,763$          681,895$          675,000$          639,600$          728,600$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

41-00-9-888 Transfer to General Corporate - CIP Fund (100,000)$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (100,000)$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 522,763$          681,895$          675,000$          639,600$          728,600$         

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

41-00-5-502 Legal Services 12,612$            3,306$               5,000$              4,000$              2,500$              

41-00-5-504 Professional Services -                     2,078                 5,000                 -                     -                    

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 12,612$            5,384$               10,000$            4,000$              2,500$              

CAPITAL OUTLAY

41-00-7-721 Streetscape Improvements -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   50,000$            

41-00-7-723 Façade Improvement Program 2,450                 10,819               15,000              4,000                 66,000              

41-00-7-724 Streetscape Signage 9,379                 9,479                 10,000              9,500                 -                    

41-00-7-725 Downtown Brick Replacement 19,747              20,110               30,000              30,700              20,000              

41-00-7-726 Pedestrian Amenities 4,490                 4,170                 -                     1,900                 5,000                

41-00-7-727 Sidewalk Maintenance & Replace 39,007              45,625               10,000              12,000              10,000              

41-00-7-729 Old Courthouse 100,871            370,562            500,000            1,100,000         250,000            

41-00-7-730 Roundabout-South Street -                     -                     -                     -                     -                    

41-00-7-731 Street & Parking Lot Maintenance 165,134            199,226            200,000            150,100            100,000            

41-00-7-732 Perimeter Street Lighting Replacement -                     4,250                 180,000            12,300              170,000            

41-00-7-735 Main Street Improvements 64,277              151,635            -                     -                     -                    

41-00-7-736 Old Courthouse Study -                     -                     -                     20,000              20,000              

41-00-7-737 Business Incentives -                     -                     -                     -                     70,000              

41-00-7-738 Mural -                     -                     -                     -                     10,000              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 405,355$          815,876$          945,000$          1,340,500$      771,000$         

INTEREST EXPENSE

41-00-8-930 Interest Expense 45,837$            43,775$            41,300$            41,300$            38,200$            

TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE 45,837$            43,775$            41,300$            41,300$            38,200$            

Tax Increment Financing Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Tax Increment Financing Fund (Continued)

Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

OTHER

41-00-8-901 Agent Expenses 522$                  530$                  600$                  600$                  600$                 

41-00-8-905 Principal on AR Bonds 150,000            155,000            155,000            155,000            155,000            

TOTAL OTHER 150,522$          155,530$          155,600$          155,600$          155,600$         

TOTAL TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND EXPENSES 614,326$          1,020,565$       1,151,900$      1,541,400$      967,300$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (91,563)$           (338,670)$         (476,900)$         (901,800)$         (238,700)$        

Ending Fund Balance 5,500$           (233,200)$     



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 516,400$       161,300$      

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

60-00-3-370 Late Fee Charges 77,407$            75,308$            75,000$            79,800$            83,800$           

60-00-3-371 Water & Sewer Sales 4,449,788 4,326,772 4,500,000 4,450,000 4,672,500

60-00-3-373 Meter Charges 16,570              21,580               14,000              16,000              14,000              

TOTAL SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES 4,543,765$      4,423,660$      4,589,000$      4,545,800$      4,770,300$     

OTHER

60-00-5-378 Sale of Surplus Equipment -$                   650$                  -$                   -$                   -$                  

60-00-5-380 Miscellaneous Income 360 6,157 2,000 5,400 24,000

60-00-5-381 Interest Income 4,692                 3,279                 3,700                 2,800                 1,000                

60-00-5-385 Grant Revenue -                     -                      -                     99,200              25,400              

TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 5,052$              10,086$            5,700$              107,400$         50,400$           

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 4,548,817$      4,433,746$      4,594,700$      4,653,200$      4,820,700$     

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

60-00-9-393 Transfer From Aquatic Center 9,000$              9,000$               9,000$              9,000$              9,000$              

60-00-9-889 Transfer To Employee Insurance Fund (289,208)          (303,548)           (341,700)          (284,100)          (251,000)          

60-00-9-950 Transfer To General Corporate Fund (373,397)          (327,005)           (355,400)          (355,400)          (355,400)          

60-00-9-951 Transfer To IMRF Fund (212,500)          (219,000)           (239,700)          (224,800)          (147,000)          

60-00-9-952 Transfer to Social Security Fund -                     -                      -                     -                     (88,300)            

60-00-9-962 Transfer to Water/Sewer Capacity Fund (36,600)             (36,600)             -                     -                     -                     

60-00-9-963 Transfer to Liability Insurance Fund (100,000)          (100,000)           (100,000)          (100,000)          (100,000)          

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (1,002,705)$    (977,153)$        (1,027,800)$    (955,300)$        (932,700)$       

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 3,546,112$      3,456,593$      3,566,900$      3,697,900$      3,888,000$     

60-50-x-xxx   Water Treatment 851,673$         883,781$          936,000$         879,600$         912,300$         

60-51-x-xxx   Sewage Treatment 960,008            938,488            1,008,300        978,000            1,005,100        

60-52-x-xxx   Sewer & Water Maintenance 739,451            749,150            821,100            776,300            781,500           

60-53-x-xxx   Administration & Debt Service 629,522            634,793            643,300            637,900            648,300           

60-54-x-xxx   Capital Improvement 481,471            603,676            681,000            781,200            452,300           

TOTAL WATER & SEWER FUND EXPENSES 3,662,125$      3,809,888$      4,089,700$      4,053,000$      3,799,500$     

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (116,013)$        (353,295)$        (522,800)$        (355,100)$        88,500$           

Ending Fund Balance 161,300$       249,800$      

Water & Sewer Utility Fund - Revenues

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

60-50-3-403 Water Superintendent 79,324$            79,848$            81,300$            80,900$            84,600$           

60-50-3-415 Operators 222,186            218,492            220,400            222,400            213,200           

60-50-3-445 Overtime 7,942                 7,358                 10,000              8,500                 9,000                

TOTAL SALARIES 309,452$         305,698$          311,700$         311,800$         306,800$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

60-50-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion -$                   -$                   1,700$              2,400$              5,000$              

60-50-4-453 Uniforms 1,299                 718                     2,100                 2,000                 2,000                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 1,299$              718$                  3,800$              4,400$              7,000$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

60-50-5-501 Communications 12,289$            22,379$            25,500$            25,500$            31,000$           

60-50-5-509 Laboratory Testing Services 9,310                 11,605               9,500                 8,000                 9,500                

60-50-5-540 Utilities 201,470            197,743            215,000            195,000            200,000           

60-50-5-550 Service to Maintain Buildings 496                    711                     1,000                 500                    1,000                

60-50-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment/Vehicles 8,626                 20,072               15,000              18,000              17,000              

60-50-5-560 Refuse 49                       -                      9,000                 7,000                 4,000                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 232,240$         252,510$          275,000$         254,000$         262,500$         

COMMODITIES

60-50-6-602 Gasoline & Oil 5,074$              5,998$               6,000$              5,000$              5,500$              

60-50-6-603 Fuel-Heating 13,191              24,109               19,000              16,000              18,000              

60-50-6-605 Tools 375                    420                     500                    500                    500                    

60-50-6-606 Supplies 3,088                 2,703                 2,500                 2,200                 2,500                

60-50-6-607 Chemicals 51,769              48,085               55,000              43,000              50,000              

60-50-6-610 Salt 222,473            213,795            225,000            200,000            225,000           

60-50-6-615 Laboratory Chemicals 3,561                 4,527                 4,500                 4,100                 4,500                

60-50-6-620 Material to Maintain Buildings -                     1,360                 500                    500                    500                    

60-50-6-621 Material to Maintain Equipment 7,201                 20,590               28,500              33,500              25,000              

60-50-6-622 Material to Maintain Vehicles 950                    2,010                 1,500                 2,400                 2,000                

TOTAL COMMODITIES 307,682$         323,597$          343,000$         307,200$         333,500$         

CAPITAL OUTLAY

60-50-7-720 Equipment 1,000$              1,258$               2,500$              2,200$              2,500$              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,000$              1,258$               2,500$              2,200$              2,500$              

TOTAL WATER TREATMENT DIVISION EXPENSES 851,673$         883,781$          936,000$         879,600$         912,300$         

Water & Sewer Utility-Expenses

WATER TREATMENT



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

60-51-3-404 Wastewater Treatment Superintendent 82,441$            84,352$            86,500$            86,000$            89,900$           

60-51-3-409 Laboratory Manager 60,099              62,574               65,500              65,200              68,700              

60-51-3-415 Operators 219,922            198,838            217,500            213,900            225,100           

60-51-3-431 Extra Labor 4,625                 3,741                 6,400                 4,500                 6,000                

60-51-3-445 Overtime 2,416                 3,436                 3,500                 2,400                 3,500                

TOTAL SALARIES 369,503$         352,941$          379,400$         372,000$         393,200$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

60-51-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 570$                  502$                  2,900$              600$                  3,100$              

60-51-4-453 Uniforms 2,269                 2,138                 2,500                 2,400                 2,500                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 2,839$              2,640$               5,400$              3,000$              5,600$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

60-51-5-501 Communications 5,856$              7,181$               7,200$              6,300$              7,000$              

60-51-5-509 Laboratory Testing Services 7,815                 10,014               9,400                 11,200              12,000              

60-51-5-540 Utilities 256,728            246,838            280,000            255,000            255,000           

60-51-5-550 Service to Maintain Buildings 1,937                 3,477                 3,000                 6,000                 4,000                

60-51-5-551 Sludge Disposal 91,300              76,653               92,000              89,500              92,000              

60-51-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment/Vehicles 55,108              38,958               55,000              35,000              55,000              

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 418,744$         383,121$          446,600$         403,000$         425,000$         

COMMODITIES

60-51-6-602 Gasoline & Oil 7,046$              9,378$               8,500$              6,200$              8,000$              

60-51-6-603 Fuel-Heating 9,025                 11,961               10,000              11,000              10,000              

60-51-6-605 Tools 686                    166                     800                    800                    800                    

60-51-6-606 Supplies 2,301                 6,482                 5,500                 6,200                 6,000                

60-51-6-607 Chemicals 76,594              77,515               80,000              74,100              80,000              

60-51-6-615 Lab Chemicals 18,777              15,298               16,000              16,000              16,000              

60-51-6-620 Material to Maintain Buildings 4,494                 759                     3,500                 2,500                 3,000                

60-51-6-621 Material to Maintain Equipment 46,831              76,864               48,000              53,000              50,000              

60-51-6-622 Material to Maintain Vehicles 1,246                 1,093                 600                    3,000                 1,500                

60-51-6-623 Material to Maintain Land 414                    270                     1,000                 1,100                 1,000                

TOTAL COMMODITIES 167,414$         199,786$          173,900$         173,900$         176,300$         

CAPITAL OUTLAY

60-51-7-720 Equipment 1,508$              -$                   3,000$              26,100$            5,000$              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,508$              -$                   3,000$              26,100$            5,000$              

TOTAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT DIVISION EXPENSES 960,008$         938,488$          1,008,300$      978,000$         1,005,100$     

Water & Sewer Utility-Expenses

WASTEWATER TREATMENT



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

SALARIES

60-52-3-408 Supervisor 71,763$            74,627$            75,900$            76,100$            79,000$           

60-52-3-415 Maintenance 337,305            337,159            368,700            347,600            336,200           

60-52-3-431 Extra Labor -                     -                      6,400                 4,000                 4,500                

60-52-3-445 Overtime 19,678              23,818               29,000              21,000              25,000              

TOTAL SALARIES 428,746$         435,604$          480,000$         448,700$         444,700$         

PERSONAL SERVICES

60-52-4-451 Sick Leave Conversion 1,082$              646$                  3,200$              1,200$              1,800$              

60-52-4-453 Uniforms 3,197                 3,895                 3,800                 4,500                 4,000                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 4,279$              4,541$               7,000$              5,700$              5,800$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

60-52-5-501 Communications 11,311$            9,829$               11,500$            10,500$            9,500$              

60-52-5-540 Utilities-Lift Stations 30,486              31,201               37,000              34,000              34,000              

60-52-5-541 Utilities-Booster Stations 14,432              15,299               13,000              13,000              13,500              

60-52-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment 993                    131                     1,500                 1,000                 1,500                

60-52-5-553 Service to Maintain Vehicles 5,880                 104                     7,000                 6,500                 7,000                

60-52-5-554 Service to Maintain Water Mains 33,032              48,546               32,000              32,000              34,000              

60-52-5-555 Service to Maintain Sewer Mains 72,708              50,351               43,000              30,000              40,000              

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 168,842$         155,461$          145,000$         127,000$         139,500$         

COMMODITIES

60-52-6-602 Gasoline & Oil 22,517$            28,315$            24,000$            20,000$            24,000$           

60-52-6-605 Tools 2,114                 2,396                 1,800                 1,800                 2,000                

60-52-6-606 Supplies 2,012                 2,501                 2,000                 2,000                 2,000                

60-52-6-621 Material to Maintain Equipment 4,291                 7,227                 2,800                 3,500                 3,500                

60-52-6-622 Material to Maintain Vehicles 6,609                 7,303                 5,500                 11,800              7,000                

60-52-6-624 Material to Maintain Water Mains 28,666              36,193               29,000              27,000              29,000              

60-52-6-625 Material to Maintain Sewer Mains 68,141              65,757               55,000              55,000              55,000              

TOTAL COMMODITIES 134,350$         149,692$          120,100$         121,100$         122,500$         

CAPITAL OUTLAY

60-52-7-720 Equipment 3,234$              3,852$               4,000$              8,800$              4,000$              

60-52-7-725 Water Meters -                     -                      65,000              65,000              65,000              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,234$              3,852$               69,000$            73,800$            69,000$           

TOTAL SEWER & WATER MAINTENANCE DIVISION EXPENSES 739,451$         749,150$          821,100$         776,300$         781,500$         

Water & Sewer Utility-Expenses

SEWER & WATER MAINTENANCE



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

PERSONAL SERVICES

60-53-4-452 Travel & Training 1,035$              1,980$               5,000$              4,000$              5,500$              

60-53-4-454 Dues & Subscriptions 312                    377                     3,300                 1,000                 1,000                

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 1,347$              2,357$               8,300$              5,000$              6,500$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

60-53-5-502 Legal Expenses 75$                    413$                  300$                  1,100$              500$                 

60-53-5-503 Engineering Services 10,546              3,731                 8,000                 4,000                 6,000                

60-53-5-537 Printing Services -                     2,301                 1,200                 1,000                 1,200                

60-53-5-538 IEPA WWTP Permit Fees 34,500              34,500               35,000              33,500              34,500              

60-53-5-560 JULIE Fees 2,940                 3,209                 3,400                 3,800                 4,200                

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 48,061$            44,154$            47,900$            43,400$            46,400$           

COMMODITIES

60-53-6-601 Postage 10,968$            13,764$            12,500$            14,200$            18,000$           

60-53-6-604 Education Programs 247                    457                     600                    700                    700                    

60-53-6-606 Supplies 275                    810                     800                    1,500                 1,000                

TOTAL COMMODITIES 11,490$            15,031$            13,900$            16,400$            19,700$           

INTEREST

60-53-8-930 Interest Expense (2004F) 57,960$            46,779$            40,900$            40,900$            28,300$           

60-53-8-931 Interest Expense (2008) 120,115            115,915            111,500            111,500            106,700           

TOTAL INTEREST 178,075$         162,694$          152,400$         152,400$         135,000$         

OTHER CHARGES

60-53-8-517 Bond Fees 549$                  557$                  800$                  700$                  700$                 

60-53-8-900 Bond Principal (2004F) 250,000            265,000            270,000            270,000            285,000           

60-53-8-901 Bond Principal (2008) 140,000            145,000            150,000            150,000            155,000           

TOTAL OTHER CHARGES 390,549$         410,557$          420,800$         420,700$         440,700$         

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION & DEBT SERVICE DIVISION EXPENSES 629,522$         634,793$          643,300$         637,900$         648,300$         

Water & Sewer Utility-Expenses

ADMINISTRATION & DEBT SERVICE



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

CAPITAL OUTLAY

60-54-7-713 DPW Facility Expansion and Maintainance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   30,000$           

60-54-7-771 Water Tower Maintenance 10,530              27,000               10,000              3,800                 10,000              

60-54-7-772 Well Maintenance & Improvement 35,109              142,989            65,000              99,700              70,000              

60-54-7-773 Water Main Replacement & Construction 53,536              -                      40,000              40,000              15,000              

60-54-7-775 Water Meter Replacement Program -                     -                      190,000            136,700            150,000           

60-54-7-778 Water Treatment Plant Maintenance 12,275              51,604               50,000              52,800              55,000              

60-54-7-779 Wastewater Treatment Plant Maintenance 214,133            162,645            56,000              179,000            26,000              

60-54-7-782 Technology Improvements 4,769                 -                      -                     -                     41,300              

60-54-7-784 Motor Pool 33,011              87,145               -                     -                     20,000              

60-54-7-785 I & I Improvements -                     78,818               30,000              30,000              15,000              

60-54-7-788 Lift Station Maintenance 102,768            52,907               65,000              55,000              20,000              

60-54-7-789 IDOT Rt. 14 Utilities 2,185                 568                     175,000            184,200            -                     

60-54-7-790 PW Radio Communications 13,155              -                      -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 481,471$         603,676$          681,000$         781,200$         452,300$         

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT DIVISION EXPENSES 481,471$         603,676$          681,000$         781,200$         452,300$         

Water & Sewer Utility-Expenses

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 2,692,900$       2,792,800$   

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

62-00-3-376 Connection Fees 276,750$         453,690$          350,000$         500,000$             650,000$         

TOTAL SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES 276,750$         453,690$          350,000$         500,000$             650,000$         

OTHER

62-00-5-381 Interest Income 25,400$            24,918$            22,700$            22,700$                23,000$           

TOTAL OTHER 25,400$            24,918$            22,700$            22,700$                23,000$           

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 302,150$         478,608$          372,700$         522,700$             673,000$         

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

62-00-9-961 Transfer from Water & Sewer Fund 36,600$            36,600$            -$                   -$                       -$                  

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 36,600$            36,600$            -$                   -$                       -$                  

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 338,750$         515,208$          372,700$         522,700$             673,000$         

CAPITAL OUTLAY

62-00-7-739 Land Expansion -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                       300,000$         

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                       300,000$         

INTEREST

62-00-8-930 Interest Expense (2010D) 74,840$            71,600$            67,500$            67,500$                62,400$           

TOTAL INTEREST 74,840$            71,600$            67,500$            67,500$                62,400$           

OTHER

62-00-8-517 Bond Fees 259$                  265$                  300$                  300$                      300$                 

62-00-8-900 Bond Principal 2004F (Partial) 100,000            100,000            100,000            100,000                100,000           

62-00-8-901 Bond Principal 2010D 340,000            250,000            255,000            255,000                260,000           

TOTAL OTHER 440,259$         350,265$          355,300$         355,300$             360,300$         

TOTAL WATER & SEWER CAPACITY CIP FUND EXPENSES 515,099$         421,865$          422,800$         422,800$             722,700$         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (176,349)$        93,343$            (50,100)$          99,900$                (49,700)$          

Ending Fund Balance 2,792,800$       2,743,100$   

Water & Sewer Capacity CIP Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 17,845,000$ 18,227,500$ 

OTHER

70-00-5-381 Interest Income 222,997$         346,381$          450,000$         123,000$         125,000$         

70-00-5-383 Gain/(Loss) from Invest Sale 779,392            1,106,748         400,000            447,000           955,000           

70-00-5-386 Employee Contributions 277,616            290,105            285,000            293,000           309,000           

70-00-5-387 Credible Service Buyback -                     -                      -                     25,900              -                     

TOTAL OTHER 1,280,005$      1,743,234$      1,135,000$      888,900$         1,389,000$     

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 1,280,005$      1,743,234$      1,135,000$      888,900$         1,389,000$     

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

70-00-9-903 Transfer from Police Protection 862,721$         882,336$          932,300$         930,600$         950,000$         

70-00-9-995 Transfer to General Corp Fund (5,000)               (5,000)                (5,000)               (5,000)               (5,000)               

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 857,721$         877,336$          927,300$         925,600$         945,000$         

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 2,137,726$      2,620,570$      2,062,300$      1,814,500$     2,334,000$     

PERSONAL SERVICES

70-00-4-452 Travel & Training 1,565$              740$                  2,500$              1,600$              2,000$              

70-00-4-454 Dues & Subscriptions 1,525                 775                     900                    800                    900                    

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 3,090$              1,515$               3,400$              2,400$              2,900$              

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

70-00-5-502 Legal/Professional Services 9,334$              10,288$            10,000$            2,500$              10,000$           

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 9,334$              10,288$            10,000$            2,500$              10,000$           

COMMODITIES

70-00-6-606 Supplies 376$                  78$                     200$                  100$                 200$                 

TOTAL COMMODITIES 376$                  78$                     200$                  100$                 200$                 

OTHER

70-00-8-814 Pension & Disability Payments 1,071,789$      1,198,843$      1,320,000$      1,245,000$     1,325,000$     

70-00-8-823 Actuarial Requirements 2,100                 2,100                 2,200                 2,400                2,500                

70-00-8-940 Medical Expense/Physical Exams -                     -                      6,000                 -                     6,000                

70-00-8-950 Refund of Contributions 3,384                 73,208               25,000              -                     25,000              

70-00-8-970 Investment Manager Fees 129,217            144,446            145,000            150,000           155,000           

70-00-8-980 Custodial Fee 25,013              25,283               27,000              26,200              27,000              

70-00-8-981 Department of Insurance Filing Fee 3,131                 3,156                 3,300                 3,400                3,500                

TOTAL OTHER 1,234,634$      1,447,036$      1,528,500$      1,427,000$     1,544,000$     

TOTAL POLICE PENSION FUND EXPENSES 1,247,434$      1,458,917$      1,542,100$      1,432,000$     1,557,100$     

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 890,292$         1,161,653$      520,200$         382,500$         776,900$         

Ending Fund Balance 18,227,500$ 19,004,400$ 

Police Pension Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance (394,500)$     (76,100)$       

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

75-00-3-386 Retired/Disabled Contributions 97,880$           127,613$         174,100$         196,500$         194,800$        

75-00-3-387 Claims Recovered 127,031           -                    25,000              108,300           25,000             

75-00-3-389 Employee Contribution 150,448           182,190            232,500           210,500           277,000           

TOTAL GOODS AND SERVICES 375,359$         309,803$         431,600$         515,300$         496,800$        

OTHER

75-00-5-381 Interest Income 15$                   19$                    -$                  -$                  -$                 

TOTAL OTHER 15$                   19$                    -$                  -$                  -$                 

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 375,374$         309,822$         431,600$         515,300$         496,800$        

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

75-00-9-376 Transfer from Performing Arts Fund 89,340$           95,004$            89,800$           66,800$           66,600$           

75-00-9-379 Transfer from Public Parks Fund 119,783           141,603            164,800           144,900           154,300           

75-00-9-389 Transfer from Police Protection Fund 645,275           703,332            689,800           677,400           600,000           

75-00-9-391 Transfer from Library Fund 97,418              125,258            121,300           121,700           122,300           

75-00-9-392 Transfer from General Corporate Fund 616,072           717,600            726,100           658,400           670,000           

75-00-9-395 Transfer from Water & Sewer Utility Fund 289,208           303,548            341,700           284,100           251,000           

75-00-9-396 Transfer from Recreation Center Fund 8,934                9,828                9,300                9,300                8,900               

75-00-9-397 Transfer from Aquatic Center Fund 8,934                9,828                9,300                9,300                8,900               

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 1,874,964$      2,106,001$      2,152,100$      1,971,900$      1,882,000$     

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 2,250,338$      2,415,823$      2,583,700$      2,487,200$      2,378,800$     

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

75-00-5-502 Administrative & Start-Up Expense 15,321$           32,491$            61,800$           56,000$           71,800$           

75-00-5-503 Professional Services 33,600              33,800              34,600              36,000              37,000             

75-00-5-504 ACA FEES -                    -                    -                    14,200              17,900             

75-00-5-541 Life Insurance Premiums 7,482                7,786                8,000                7,500                7,500               

75-00-5-545 Excess Insurance Premiums 261,434           255,313            226,100           211,000           228,200           

75-00-5-546 Claim Payments 2,095,960        2,035,468        1,950,000        1,842,000        2,050,000       

75-00-5-548 Employee Physical Development 2,000                2,050                3,000                2,100                2,500               

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,415,797$      2,366,908$      2,283,500$      2,168,800$      2,414,900$     

TOTAL HEALTH/LIFE INSURANCE FUND EXPENSES 2,415,797$      2,366,908$      2,283,500$      2,168,800$      2,414,900$     

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (165,459)$        48,915$            300,200$         318,400$         (36,100)$         

Ending Fund Balance (76,100)$        (112,200)$     

Health/Life Insurance Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 2,363,100$   2,193,200$   

FEES

82-00-2-320 Telecommunication Tax 790,423$         670,392$          740,000$         618,000$         630,000$         

82-00-2-384 Capital Expansion Fees-Police 34,172              51,294              50,000              54,500              75,000             

82-00-2-385 Capital Expansion Fees-Streets 8,978                14,760              13,000              22,100              30,000             

TOTAL FEES 833,573$         736,446$          803,000$         694,600$         735,000$         

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

82-00-4-349 Safe Route to School Grant 22,761$            -$                  125,000$         161,800$         19,400$           

82-00-4-360 Raffel Road Improvements Grant -                    300,000            -                    -                    -                    

82-00-4-363 Miscellaneous Grants -                    -                     -                    -                    567,300           

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 22,761$            300,000$          125,000$         161,800$         586,700$         

OTHER

82-00-5-380 Miscellaneous -$                  -$                  -$                  30,200$            -$                  

82-00-5-381 Interest Income 10,747              8,720                8,900                8,300                7,800                

82-00-5-382 Settlement -                    -                     -                    -                    367,000           

TOTAL OTHER 10,747$            8,720$              8,900$              38,500$            374,800$         

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 867,081$         1,045,166$      936,900$         894,900$         1,696,500$     

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

82-00-9-391 Transfer from General Fund 550,000$         875,000$          475,000$         950,000$         821,000$         

82-00-9-392 Transfer from TIF 100,000            -                     -                    -                    -                    

82-00-9-393 Transfer from Park Development -                    35,000              20,000              20,000              -                    

82-00-9-396 Transfer to Debt Service (Streets) (69,400)             (72,800)             (70,800)             (70,800)             (68,300)            

82-00-9-397 Transfer to Debt Service (Police Station) (350,800)          (347,500)           (340,200)          (340,200)          (341,700)          

82-00-9-399 Transfer to Debt Service (Parks) (150,400)          (146,800)           (147,700)          (147,700)          (136,700)          

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS 79,400$            342,900$          (63,700)$          411,300$         274,300$         

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 946,481$         1,388,066$      873,200$         1,306,200$      1,970,800$     

CAPITAL OUTLAY-GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

82-01-7-701 Finance-Accounting Program 66,680$            5,764$              -$                  -$                  28,000$           

82-01-7-702 Printer/Scanner/Copier -                    9,990                -                    -                    10,000             

82-01-7-704 Computer Network 34,455              24,179              15,000              15,000              15,000             

82-01-7-705 Data Backup -                    25,000              -                    -                    -                    

82-01-7-711 VOIP Phone System 97,716              39,611              -                    -                    -                    

82-01-7-712 Fiber Network -                    -                     90,000              30,000              330,000           

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-GENERAL ADMIN 198,851$         104,544$          105,000$         45,000$            383,000$         

CAPITAL OUTLAY-PUBLIC FACILITIES

82-02-7-705 Radio Communication System Upgrade 48,484$            2,595$              -$                  -$                  -$                  

82-02-7-708 Opera House 86,141              117,736            60,000              69,400              45,000             

82-02-7-712 City Hall Improvements -                    -                     75,000              80,000              70,100             

82-02-7-713 Existing Public Works Facility -                    39,998              53,000              42,800              60,000             

82-02-7-721 Gateway/Directional Signage -                    15,189              -                    -                    -                    

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-PUBLIC FACILITIES 134,625$         175,518$          188,000$         192,200$         175,100$         

General Corporate - CIP Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

CAPITAL OUTLAY-PUBLIC SAFETY

82-03-7-701 Annual Police Vehicle Purchase 100,822$         51,000$            100,000$         168,000$         74,000$           

82-03-7-702 Communications System Upgrade 24,827              17,914              18,000              18,000              18,000             

82-03-7-705 UPS Battery Backup 4,801                -                     -                    -                    -                    

82-03-7-706 In-Car Computer Terminals 9,642                -                     -                    -                    -                    

82-03-7-708 Vehicle Equipment 10,311              6,442                13,700              13,700              7,200                

82-03-7-715 Computer Upgrade -                    14,135              -                    -                    -                    

82-03-7-716 In-Car Video Cameras -                    -                     35,700              35,700              -                    

82-03-7-717 Live Scan -                    -                     -                    19,500              -                    

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-PUBLIC SAFETY 150,403$         89,491$            167,400$         254,900$         99,200$           

CAPITAL OUTLAY-PARKS

82-06-7-703 Playground Equipment 40,740$            76,432$            40,000$            41,100$            -$                  

82-06-7-713 Resealing Courts 13,500              11,160              13,000              13,500              -                    

82-06-7-720 Dog Park -                    12,400              -                    -                    -                    

82-06-7-721 Park in Square Statue -                    -                     30,000              30,000              -                    

82-06-7-722 Peace Park -                    -                     -                    7,500                20,000             

82-06-7-723 D200 Renaissance -                    -                     -                    -                    100,000           

82-06-7-724 Emricson Lighting & Fence Improvements -                    -                     -                    -                    178,000           

82-06-7-725 Donato Conservation Area - Pathway -                    -                     -                    -                    20,000             

82-06-7-726 Ryder Woods -                    -                     -                    -                    20,000             

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-PARKS 54,240$            99,992$            83,000$            92,100$            338,000$         

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT-MOTOR POOL

82-07-7-701 Streets- Dump Truck Replacement 140,453$         -$                  -$                  -$                  150,000$         

82-07-7-704 Parks- Vehicle Replacement -                    92,950              -                    -                    -                    

82-07-7-707 Streets- Equipment Replacement 19,873              19,873              34,900              19,900              24,000             

82-07-7-720 Parks- Equipment Replacement -                    42,489              58,000              56,700              35,000             

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-MOTOR POOL 160,326$         155,312$          92,900$            76,600$            209,000$         

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT-STREETS/SIDEWALKS/SIGNALS

82-08-7-701 Route 47 7,739$              23,987$            60,000$            60,000$            -$                  

82-08-7-703 Resurfacing 351,092            346,264            375,000            381,100            992,000           

82-08-7-704 Sidewalk Construction -                    35,126              15,000              22,500              

82-08-7-705 Route 14/IDOT -                    -                     80,000              60,000              -                    

82-08-7-707 Rt 47/Ware Road Intersection 1,332                -                     -                    -                    -                    

82-08-7-708 Raffel Road Improvements 176,213            -                     -                    -                    -                    

82-08-7-710 Safe Routes to School Program 33,716              22,128              155,000            168,700            35,000             

82-08-7-711 Melody Land Bridge Maintenance (383)                  -                     -                    -                    -                    

82-08-7-723 Street Maintenance Evaluation -                    -                     40,000              40,000              -                    

82-08-7-725 Bike Path Extension -                    -                     -                    -                    25,000             

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-STREETS/SIDEWALKS/SIGNALS 569,709$         427,505$          725,000$         732,300$         1,052,000$     

CAPITAL OUTLAY-STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

82-09-7-701 Stormsewer Improvements -$                  44,579$            75,000$            83,000$            525,000$         

82-09-7-709 I&I Improvements 16,218              12,317              -                    -                    40,000             

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 16,218$            56,896$            75,000$            83,000$            565,000$         

TOTAL GENERAL CORPORATE - CIP FUND EXPENSES 1,284,372$      1,109,258$      1,436,300$      1,476,100$      2,821,300$     

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (337,891)$        278,808$          (563,100)$        (169,900)$        (850,500)$       

Ending Fund Balance 2,193,200$   1,342,700$   

General Corporate - CIP Fund (Continued)



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 300,000$       301,400$      

OTHER

85-00-5-381 Interest Income -$                    -$                    800$                   1,400$               1,000                 

85-00-5-382 Loan Interest -                      -                      1,000                  -                      1,000                 

TOTAL OTHER -$                    -$                    1,800$               1,400$               2,000$               

TOTAL REVENUES -$                    -$                    1,800$               1,400$               2,000$               

OTHER

85-00-5-516 Administrative Fees -$                    -$                    2,500$               -                      2,500                 

85-00-5-560 Uncollectable Loan Accounts -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     

TOTAL OTHER -$                    -$                    2,500$               -$                    2,500$               

TOTAL REVOLVING LOAN FUND EXPENSES -$                    -$                    2,500$               -$                    2,500$               

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) -$                    -$                    (700)$                 1,400$               (500)$                 

Ending Fund Balance 301,400$       300,900$      

Revolving Loan Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 550,900$       317,500$      

TAXES

90-0-1-311 Property Taxes 523,643$           538,371$           540,000$           539,000$           540,000$          

TOTAL TAXES 523,643$           538,371$           540,000$           539,000$           540,000$          

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

90-00-3-371 Refuse Sales -$                    -$                    -$                    610,000$           1,045,000$       

TOTAL SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES -$                    -$                    -$                    610,000$           1,045,000$       

OTHER

90-00-5-381 Interest Income 5,418$               4,701$                4,800$               3,400$               2,500$               

TOTAL OTHER 5,418$               4,701$                4,800$               3,400$               2,500$               

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 529,061$           543,072$           544,800$           1,152,400$       1,587,500$       

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

90-00-9-392 Transfer to General Fund (87,341)$            (80,000)$            (80,000)$            (80,000)$            (80,000)$           

90-00-9-914 Transfer to Debt Service Fund (219,100)            (218,900)            (217,800)            (217,800)            (198,100)           

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (306,441)$         (298,900)$          (297,800)$         (297,800)$         (278,100)$         

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 222,620$           244,172$           247,000$           854,600$           1,309,400$       

PERSONAL SERVICES

90-00-4-452 Travel and Training -$                    -$                    200$                   -$                    200$                  

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES -$                    -$                    200$                   -$                    200$                  

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

90-00-5-502 Legal Services 200$                   -$                    800$                   1,100$               1,000$               

90-00-5-506 USEPA Oversight 1,610                  4,394                  15,000               26,400               15,000               

90-00-5-537 Printing -                      -                      -                      3,700                  6,500                 

90-00-5-552 Service to Maintain Equipment -                      712                     3,000                  2,800                  1,000                 

90-00-5-560 Waste Disposal Service 27,384               22,597                30,000               41,000               35,000               

90-00-5-561 Residential Waste Disposal -                      -                      -                      597,000             1,031,500         

90-00-5-570 Yard Waste Disposal 18,268               14,026                29,000               26,100               29,000               

90-00-5-595 Mosquito Abatement 18,800               23,070                28,000               23,300               28,000               

90-00-5-703 Wetlands Maintenance/Improvement 12,360               12,610                13,000               13,000               13,000               

90-00-5-704 Landfill 83,280               26,400                50,000               10,000               30,000               

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 161,902$           103,809$           168,800$           744,400$           1,190,000$       

COMMODITIES

90-00-6-609 Alternate Ice Control Methods 30,238$             42,827$             30,000$             22,000$             30,000$            

90-00-6-610 Environmental Education Program 813                     812                     1,500                  1,000                  1,200                 

90-00-6-621 Material to Maintain Equipment 19,719               6,746                  15,000               6,000                  8,000                 

TOTAL COMMODITIES 50,770$             50,385$             46,500$             29,000$             39,200$            

CAPITAL OUTLAY

90-00-7-701 Green Vehicles 13,250$             -$                    7,000$               9,800$               10,000$            

90-00-7-702 Leaf Machines -                      56,835                65,000               64,800               70,000               

90-00-7-703 Street Sweeper -                      237,830             265,000             240,000             -                     

90-00-7-715 Recreation Center Lighting 8,245                  -                      -                      -                      -                     

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 21,495$             294,665$           337,000$           314,600$           80,000$            

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 234,167$           448,859$           552,500$           1,088,000$       1,309,400$       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (11,547)$            (204,687)$          (305,500)$         (233,400)$         -$                   

Ending Fund Balance 317,500$       317,500$      

Environmental Management Fund

REVENUES



Account Account FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY14/15 FY15/16

Number Description Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance 82,500$         78,000$         

TAXES

91-00-1-320 Hotel/Motel Taxes 70,521$             75,276$             72,000$             72,000$             72,000$            

TOTAL TAXES 70,521$             75,276$             72,000$             72,000$             72,000$            

TOTAL REVENUES  (BEFORE TRANSFERS) 70,521$             75,276$             72,000$             72,000$             72,000$            

TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS

91-00-9-396 Transfer from General Fund -                      -                      -                      -                      20,000               

91-00-9-898 Transfer to Performing Arts Fund (30,000)$            (30,000)$            (30,000)$            (30,000)$            (30,000)$           

TOTAL TRANSFERS (TO)/FROM OTHER FUNDS (30,000)$            (30,000)$            (30,000)$            (30,000)$            (10,000)$           

TOTAL REVENUES (AFTER TRANSFERS) 40,521$             45,276$             42,000$             42,000$             62,000$            

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

91-00-5-501 Council Disbursements 42,250$             44,000$             50,000$             46,500$             62,000$            

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 42,250$             44,000$             50,000$             46,500$             62,000$            

TOTAL HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND EXPENSES 42,250$             44,000$             50,000$             46,500$             62,000$            

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (1,729)$              1,276$                (8,000)$              (4,500)$              -$                   

Ending Fund Balance 78,000$         78,000$         

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

REVENUES

EXPENSES



       City of    

               
 

Human Resources  Department                                                121  W.  Calhoun  St reet   

Debbie  Schober ,  MS,  SPHR                                          Woods tock,  I l l ino is  600 98  

Hu man Resources  Director                                                                                        815/338-1172 

fax 815/338 -2264  

humanresources@woodsto cki l . gov  

www.woodsto cki l . go v  

MEMO 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members  

Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Deb Schober, Human Resources Director 
 
DATE:  April 13, 2015 
 
RE:  Transmittal of FY15/16 Salary Structure and Schedule of Authorized Positions/FTEs 
 

 
Attached, please find the Salary Structure for Non-Represented / Non-Bargaining Unit Employees and the Schedule 
of Authorized Positions/FTEs Proposed Exhibits for FY15/16.  Both exhibits are consistent with the FY15/16 Budget 
that is scheduled for adoption at the April 21

st
 City Council meeting. Furthermore, I am very proud to advise you 

that the Schedule of Authorized Positions/FTEs is once again 100% consistent with the personnel summaries 
included with each individual department with manpower and include all Seasonal/LPT employees.  Furthermore, 
the totals on the Schedule of Authorized Positions/FTEs remain 100% consistent with the totals on the Staffing 
Comparison by Department component of the budget.  Maintaining consistency between these various reports will 
allow us to continue to manage our manpower even more effectively and efficiently than we have in the past. 
 
The City continues to be tested as a result of the Governor’s budget crisis to address Illinois’ ongoing economic 
struggles; however, the City has been able to maintain reduced personnel and payroll costs through attrition and 
appropriately calculated timing of replacements and yet, maintain the exemplary service the community has come 
to expect. The City was successful, through a non-essential hiring freeze during four past fiscal years, in realizing an 
annual savings in excess of $1,500,000 through the attrition of 20-25 full-time positions in Police, Public Works, 
Opera House, Recreation Center, Library, Finance, Community & Economic Development, and Human Resources 
Departments.  In an effort to recognize this new level of manpower operation, effective FY15/16, all vacant 
positions have been removed from the Authorized Positions and Salary Structure documents.  Due to the fiscal 
diligence the City has displayed in the past, we are proud to propose the FY15/16 budget with a 2.5% cost-of-living 
salary adjustment with an additional maximum of 2.4% merit pay based on performance review scores for the 
City’s non-represented employees.  
 
This transmittal includes two attachments: Exhibit III - Salary Structure for Non-Represented / Non-Bargaining Unit 
Employees and Exhibit IV – Schedule of Authorized Positions / FTEs Proposed.  The recommendation for Salary 
Structure movement for FY15/16 reflects a 1.0% increase compared to FY14/15 to be consistent with research on 
structure movement in the Public Sector relevant marketplace.  As indicated above, the proposed Schedule of 
Authorized Positions shows that a total of 29 positions (21.5 FTEs) were removed from the City’s position roster by 
the elimination of 9 PT positions (4.5 FTEs), 15 FT positions (14.5 FTEs), and 5 LPT/Seasonal positions (2.5 FTEs).   
 
Therefore, it is recommended that the City Council adopt the attached documents Exhibit III – City of Woodstock 
Salary Structure for Non-Represented / Non-Bargaining Unit Employees and Exhibit IV – Schedule of Authorized 
Positions/FTEs Proposed for FY15/16. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44e



EXHIBIT III

GRADE PAY TYPE MINIMUM MIDPOINT MAXIMUM POSITION TITLE

1 Hourly FY15/16 8.76$              16.62$             24.51$             Front Desk Clerk (Finance)

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 18,212.11$    34,579.17$     50,986.42$     Limited Part-time Employee (unless addressed by separate chart)

Part-time Employee (unless addressed by position)

Seasonal Part-time Employee (unless addressed by separate chart)

2 Hourly FY15/16 15.06$            19.22$             23.39$             Custodian

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 31,324.84$    39,978.22$     48,653.94$     Department Office Assistant

Library Desk Assistant

Vehicle Maintenance Worker (WPD)

3 Hourly FY15/16 17.37$            22.18$             26.98$             Community Service Officer

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 36,137.25$    46,126.32$     56,115.39$     General Services Library Assistant

IT Technician / Desktop Support Specialist

Production Assistant

4 Hourly FY15/16 20.87$            26.62$             32.38$             Billing Coordinator

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 43,400.02$    55,375.87$     67,351.71$     Department Office Manager

Economic Development Coordinator

Grant Writer

Human Resources Coordinator

Reference Librarian

Staff Accountant

Youth Services Librarian

5 Hourly FY15/16 23.76$            30.35$             36.94$             Building Inspector

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 49,426.58$    63,135.33$     76,844.09$     Circulation Manager

Code Enforcement Officer / Assistant Building Inspector

Executive Assistant

Opera House Box Office Manager

Recreation Center Manager

Recreation Program Coordinator

Senior Accountant

CITY OF WOODSTOCK FY2015/2016  SALARY STRUCTURE
FOR NON-REPRESENTED / NON-BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYEES



EXHIBIT III

GRADE PAY TYPE MINIMUM MIDPOINT MAXIMUM POSITION TITLE

CITY OF WOODSTOCK FY2015/2016  SALARY STRUCTURE
FOR NON-REPRESENTED / NON-BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYEES

6 Hourly FY15/16 26.66$            34.03$             41.40$             Librarian/Network Administrator

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 55,453.13$    70,784.42$     86,115.71$     

7 Hourly FY15/16 28.97$            36.98$             44.99$             City Planner

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 60,250.94$    76,921.35$     93,577.16$     IT Manager

Opera House Building Manager

Opera House Production Manager

Sewer and Water Maintenance Superintendent

8 Hourly FY15/16 31.28$            39.93$             48.58$             City Engineer

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 65,055.88$    83,058.28$     101,048.48$   Planning and Zoning Administrator

Parks and Facilities Superintendent

Police Sergeant

Streets and Fleet Superintendent

Wastewater Superintendent

Water Superintendent

9 Hourly FY15/16 34.77$            44.38$             54.00$             Assistant Public Works Director

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 72,330.54$    92,318.86$     112,329.78$   Building Services (Planning, Zoning, etc. ) Director

Economic Development Director

Deputy Chief of Police

Library Director

Opera House Managing Director

Recreation Director

10 Hourly FY15/16 41.74$            53.27$             64.79$             Chief of Police

FY15/16 Annual Equiv. 86,822.12$    110,795.88$   134,769.65$   Finance Director

Human Resources Director

Public Works Director



EXHIBIT IV

Proposed FY14/15 to

FTE FTE FY15/16

Positions FTEs Funded Funded Additions/

DEPARTMENT Position Authorized Authorized FY14/15 FY15/16 (Deletions)

General Government

CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE City Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Executive Assistant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Grant Writer 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

IT Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Desktop Support Specialist 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Office Assistant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0
Total 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 0.0

BUILDING, PLANNING & Building, Planning & Zoning Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

ZONING Code Enforcement Officer/Asst Bldg Inspector 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Planning & Zoning Administrator 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

City Planner 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Office Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Building Inspector 2.0 2.0 3.0 2.0 (1.0)
Total 7.0 7.0 8.0 7.0 (1.0)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Economic Development Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Economic Development Coordinator 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0
Total 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0

FINANCE Finance Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Senior Accountant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Accountant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Billing Coordinator 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Front Desk Clerk 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

*Position Cut FY15/16* Finance Office Assistant (PT) 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 (0.5)

Finance Office Clerk/Intern (LPT) 2.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0
Total 7.0 6.0 5.5 6.0 0.5

HUMAN RESOURCES Human Resources Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Human Resources Coordinator 1.0 1.0 0.5 1.0 0.5

*Position Cut FY15/16* Benefits Analyst 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 (1.0)

Human Resources Office Assistant/Clerk (LPT) 1.0 0.5 0.0 0.5 0.5
Total 3.0 2.5 2.5 2.5 0.0

Culture and Recreation

LIBRARY Library Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Circulation Desk Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Librarian 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 0.0

Circulation Desk Assistant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Office Assistant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

*Convert from PT to FT* Young Adult Assistant (FT) 1.0 1.0 0.5 1.0 0.5

Librarian (PT) 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0
*Convert 1 PT to LPT* Circulation Desk Assistant (PT) 6.0 3.0 3.5 3.0 (0.5)

Librarian (LPT) 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0
*Convert 1 PT to LPT* Circulation Desk Assistant (LPT) 2.0 1.0 0.5 1.0 0.5

Shelver (LPT) 4.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0

Shelver (LPT)(filled w/2 Seasonal SPT Shelvers) 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0

Building Fund Worker/SEDOM (LPT) 3.0 1.5 1.5 1.5 0.0
Total 29.0 20.0 19.5 20.0 0.5

CITY OF WOODSTOCK

FY2015/2016 SCHEDULE OF AUTHORIZED POSITIONS / FTES

A-1



EXHIBIT IV

Proposed FY14/15 to

FTE FTE FY15/16

Positions FTEs Funded Funded Additions/

DEPARTMENT Position Authorized Authorized FY14/15 FY15/16 (Deletions)

CITY OF WOODSTOCK

FY2015/2016 SCHEDULE OF AUTHORIZED POSITIONS / FTES

Culture and Recreation (continued)

OPERA HOUSE Managing Director/Opera House 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Box Office Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Production Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Building Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Production Assistant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Office Manager (PT) 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0

Box Office Assistant (PT) 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0

Box Office Worker (LPT) 3.0 1.5 1.5 1.5 0.0

House Manager (LPT) 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Facility/Events Worker (LPT) 10.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 0.0

Stage Left Café Staff (LPT) 4.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0
Total 26.0 15.5 15.5 15.5 0.0

RECREATION Recreation Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Recreation Center Manager/Office Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Program Coordinator 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0

Recreation/Aquatic Center Coordinator 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Counter Stafff (PT) 6.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 0.0

Playroom Attendant (LPT) 8.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 0.0

Counter Stafff (LPT) 11.0 5.5 5.5 5.5 0.0

Recreation Center Maintenance (LPT) 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0

Recreation Center Instructors (LPT) 20.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 0.0

SEDOM (LPT) 3.0 1.5 1.5 1.5 0.0

Playground Program Counselor (seasonal) 24.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 0.0

Playground Program Supervisor (seasonal) 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Recreation Aide (seasonal & LPT positions) 54.0 27.0 27.0 27.0 0.0

Aquatic Center Manager (seasonal) 4.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0

Aquatic Center Maintenance (seasonal) 4.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0

Lifeguard (seasonal) 50.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 0.0

Aquatic Center Cashier/Attendant (seasonal) 10.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 0.0
Total 202.0 103.5 103.5 103.5 0.0

Public Safety

POLICE Police Chief 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Sworn Positions Deputy Chief 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Detective Sergeant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Patrol Sergeant 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 0.0

Special Services Sergeant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Patrol Officer 22.0 22.0 22.0 22.0 0.0

D.A.R.E. Officer 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

School Liaison Officer 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Detective 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 0.0
Total 37.0 37.0 37.0 37.0 0.0

Non-Sworn Positions Telecommunicator 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 0.0

Records Clerk 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0

Office Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Police Custodian 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Community Service Officer (PT) 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Vehicle Maintenance (PT) 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0

Crossing Guard (LPT/Seasonal) 8.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 0.0
Total 24.0 18.5 18.5 18.5 0.0

Police Overall Total 61.0 55.5 55.5 55.5 0.0

A-2



EXHIBIT IV

Proposed FY14/15 to

FTE FTE FY15/16

Positions FTEs Funded Funded Additions/

DEPARTMENT Position Authorized Authorized FY14/15 FY15/16 (Deletions)

CITY OF WOODSTOCK

FY2015/2016 SCHEDULE OF AUTHORIZED POSITIONS / FTES

Public Works

PUBLIC WORKS Public Works Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Administration Assistant Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

City Engineer 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Office Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0
Total 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 0.0

Fleet Maintenance Fleet Maintenance Foreman 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Mechanic I & II 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0
Total 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 0.0

Parks & Facilities Division Parks & Facilities Superintendent 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Parks & Facilities Foreman 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Crew Leader 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Forestry Technician 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Maintenance Worker I & II (Parks)  5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 0.0

*City Hall Custodian position*Maintenance Worker I & II (Facilities)  1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 * 0.0

Seasonal Worker (0.5 LPT, but work FT) 5.0 2.5 2.0 2.5 0.5
Total 15.0 12.5 12.0 12.5 0.5

Parks/Streets (shared) Maintenance Worker I & II 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 0.0
Total 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 0.0

Sewer & Water Maintenance Sewer & Water Superintendent 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Sewer & Water Foreman 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Crew Leader 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Utility Inspector 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Maintenance Worker I & II 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 0.0

Water Meter Technician I & II 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Seasonal Worker (0.5 LPT, but work FT) 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0
Total 10.0 9.5 9.5 9.5 0.0

Street Division Street & Fleet Superintendent 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Street Foreman 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Crew Leader 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0

Maintenance Worker I & II 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 0.0

Seasonal Worker (0.5 LPT, but work FT) 3.0 1.5 1.5 1.5 0.0
Total 13.0 11.5 11.5 11.5 0.0

Wastewater Treatment Wastewater Treatment Superintendent 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I & II 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 0.0

Laboratory Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Seasonal Worker (0.5 LPT, but work FT) 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0
Total 7.0 6.5 6.5 6.5 0.0

Water Treatment Water Treatment Superintendent 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Water Treatment Plant Operator I & II 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 0.0
Total 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 0.0

Public Works Overall Total 60.0 55.0 54.5 55.0 0.5

OVERALL TOTALS: 403.0 273.0 272.5 273.0 0.5

Total PT: 18.0 9.0 10.0 9.0 (1.0)
Total FT: 143.0 143.0 144.0 143.0 (1.0)

Total PT & FT: 161.0 152.0 154.0 152.0 (2.0)

Total of Vacant FTEs (FT/PT ONLY) for FY15/16: 0.0

Total Seasonal/LPT: 242.0 121.0 118.5 121.0 2.5
Total PT, FT & Seasonal/LPT (All positions): 403.0 273.0 272.5 273.0 0.5

Total of Vacant FTEs (All positions) for FY15/16: 0.0

A-3



 
 

 

Memo 
To: Mr. Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

From: Paul Christensen, Finance Director 

Date: April 9, 2015 

Re: Consideration of an Ordinance Approving the FY15/16 Water and Sewer Rates and a 

Proposed Modification Increasing the After Hours Reinstatement Fee. 

The FY15/16 Budget proposal includes a 5.0% water and sewer rate increase to provide the 

proper funding to operate the Water & Sewer Utility Fund.  Attached is an Ordinance for 

formal consideration by the City Council.  As stipulated in this Ordinance, the increase will be 

effective on all water and sewer bills issued on or after May 1, 2015.  This adjustment will 

increase the resident’s average quarterly bill, based on 22 hundred cubic feet of usage, from 

$111.54 to $117.26 representing an increase of $5.72 per quarter or $22.88 per year.   

By Ordinance, the City is required to review water and sewer rates on an annual basis.  There 

is no specific format or structure required within the Ordinance for the completion of this 

annual review.  In the past, the general practice has been to consider the performance and 

financial health of the Water & Sewer Fund in combination with the recommended costs and 

future service demands for the upcoming budget year.  In addition, the City needs to be 

cognizant of upcoming major projects and capital costs that will be required by this Fund to 

maintain existing service levels.   

It should be noted that increases adopted in any given year for the water and sewer rates 

sometimes are influenced by other factors.  For instance weather in FY04/05 was impacted by 

extreme drought conditions experienced in the summer, resulting in record levels of water 

demand that generated a significant increase in revenue. 

Conversely, the City experienced a small decrease in both FY08/09 and FY09/10 revenues, 

even with the increase in rates, due to the significant rainfall that occurred over the summer 

months.  These two examples demonstrate that the Utility Fund’s revenues can be influenced 

more by weather conditions then the actual rate adjustments. 

In addition, economic and green incentives can also have a large impact on the water system.  

With the induction of low flow toilets and shower heads, typical homes are slowly starting to 

use less water as these devises are replaced by homeowners as part of normal upgrades.  

Finance Department  
       City of   

                

 

121 W. Calhoun Street  
Woodstock, I l l inois   60098  
815/338-4300 
Fax 815/334-2267 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44f



While these replacements are good for the environment, unfortunately, they result in the 

reduction in water sales that reduces revenue production.  Also foreclosures, which have 

resulted in an increase in vacant homes, and the loss of some businesses in the City of 

Woodstock, have also resulted in a reduction in water sales. 

In FY14/15, $4.5 million was budgeted for water and sewer sales.  Unfortunately, it is 

projected that only $4.45 million will actually be billed.  Weather is seen as the driving force 

in the shortfall as again the summer of 2014 tended to be cooler and wetter than normal.  On a 

positive side, revenue did rebound from FY13/14 levels. 

For FY15/16 the following has been budgeted in the Utility Fund which includes the 5% 

proposed increase: 

 Total Net Revenue $3,888,000 

   (Net of Operating Transfers) 

 

 Water Treatment $   912,300 

 Wastewater Treatment 1,005,100 

 Sewer & Water Maintenance 781,500 

 Administration & Debt      648,300 

 Total Operating Expenses $3,347,200 

 

 CIP        $452,300 

 

 Profit (Loss)   $88,500 

 

 Projected Beginning Fund Balance $  161,300 

 Projected Ending Fund Balance $  249,800      

 

FY15/16 is expected to be financially better than FY14/15 when a budget was adopted with a 

($522,800) deficit.  Ultimately this shortfall is expected to be less and FY14/15 is projected to 

end the fiscal year with a smaller deficit of ($355,100) as a result of operational cost savings. 

 

For FY15/16, City Staff is recommending an increase of 5%, which is higher than the prior 

year’s 2% increase.  Staff is recommending this amount as a way to strengthen the finances of 

the Water and Sewer Fund.  In order to just balance the Water and Sewer Fund, a 3% raise is 

necessary at this point.  The additional 2% is intended to be placed into fund balance to cover 

future capital improvements along with covering potential revenue shortfalls. 

 

City Staff has examined the rates of other communities to ensure Woodstock’s water and 

sewer rates are competitive.  The City of Genoa has recently conducted a survey of 22 

surrounding communities.   From this survey it shows that the City of Woodstock is on the 

lower end of rates with 15 of the 22 communities surveyed having higher rates than the City.  

However after further review of the document, it shows that they have miscalculated the 

City’s rates by incorrectly including a customer charge.  The correct charge for both water and 

sewer assuming a monthly charge using 6,000 gallons of water would be $40.68.  This would 

place the City of Woodstock 20
th
 with only Huntley and Belvidere being lower.  After the 



proposed 5% rate increase, 6,000 gallons of water used monthly would cost a Woodstock 

customer $42.72 and would still result in the City maintaining the same place in the 

comparison without knowing the rate adjustments being proposed by the other communities.  

 

Other steps that are being taken in order to insure that the City receives all revenue due is that 

large meters will continue to be tested along with a systematic approach to replace old meters 

with new radio read meters.  These steps will not only increase the efficiency in which City 

employees can read meters, but also reduce the amount of unbilled water. 

 

Also included in the attached Ordinance is a proposal to change the amount that is charged for 

turning on water after hours as a result of disconnection for nonpayment.  Currently there is an 

additional charge of $25 for Public Works to restore water service after hours for a resident.  

Unfortunately, the City’s cost for this employee to complete this work significantly exceeds 

the existing charge.  The average cost is estimated at $70 and is impacted by the minimum 2 

hour overtime requirement provided for within the union contract.  The costs can be as high as 

$87 if a senior employee is required to turn on the water.  The City utilizes a rotating list to 

determine the next available employee to complete this work, again in accordance with the 

union contract. 

 

Therefore, in order to cover the cost of having to turn on a resident’s water after hours, it is 

proposed that the $25 fee be increased to $75 to better cover the City’s costs. 

 

Recommendations: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the attached Ordinance, identified as 

Document #_______, “An Ordinance Amending Portions of Title 6, Chapter 4 of the 

City Code of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, Pertaining to Water and 

Sewer Rates and Utility Service Procedures.” 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
4



rstelford
Typewritten Text
Woodstock - Current Rates Water = $2.35 x 1.337 = $3.14 per 1,000 gallonsSewer = $2.72 x 1.337 = $3.64 per 1,000 gallonsCombined = $6.78 per 1,000 gal. x 6,000 gal. = $40.68

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text
Study inaccurately includes customer charge for Woodstock

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text
Woodstock - Proposed Rates Water = $2.47 x 1.337 = $3.30 per 1,000 gallonsSewer = $2.86 x 1.337 = $3.82 per 1,000 gallonsCombined = $7.12 per 1,000 gal. x 6,000 gal. = $42.72

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text

rstelford
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-O-_________ 

An Ordinance Amending Portions of Title 6, Chapter 4 of the City Code of the 

 City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, 

Pertaining to Water and Sewer Rates and Utility Service Procedures 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, 

Illinois as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  That Section 6.4D.3 of the City Code of the City of Woodstock, McHenry 

County, Illinois is hereby amended as follows: 

WATER RATES 

All property upon which any building has been or may after be erected having a connection 

with any mains or pipes which may hereafter be constructed and used in connection with the 

City water system shall pay the following rates per quarter: 

Consumption Base Fee Usage Fee  Total 

0 Cubic Feet $10.65  $0.00   $10.65 

100 Cubic Feet $10.65  $1.26    $11.91 

200 Cubic Feet $10.65  $2.52   $13.17 

300 Cubic Feet $10.65  $3.78   $14.43 

400 Cubic Feet $10.65  $5.04   $15.69 

500 Cubic Feet $10.65  $6.30   $16.95 

600 Cubic Feet $10.65  $7.56   $18.21 

700 Cubic Feet $10.65  $8.82   $19.47 

800 Cubic Feet $10.65 $10.08    $20.73 

900 Cubic Feet or more Not Applicable $2.47 per 100 cubic feet of water consumed 

 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.4



 

SECTION TWO:  That Section 6.4D.4 of the City Code of the City of Woodstock, McHenry 

County, Illinois is hereby amended as follows: 

 

SEWER RATES 

 

There are hereby established rates or charges for the usage of the sewage system of the City.  

Rates or charges shall be based upon the amount of the water supplied by the City of 

Woodstock’s water works system, as shown by the water meter readings performed quarterly 

by the Public Works Department of the City.  All users of the sewage system shall be charged 

quarterly.  The rates hereinafter set out based upon the water meter readings and are as 

follows: 

 

Consumption Base Fee Usage Fee  Total 

0 Cubic Feet $12.82 $0.00 $12.82 

100 Cubic Feet $12.82 $1.40 $14.22 

200 Cubic Feet $12.82 $2.80 $15.62 

300 Cubic Feet $12.82 $4.20 $17.02 

400 Cubic Feet $12.82 $5.60 $18.42 

500 Cubic Feet $12.82 $7.00 $19.82 

600 Cubic Feet $12.82 $8.40 $21.22 

700 Cubic Feet $12.82 $9.80 $22.62 

800 Cubic Feet $12.82 $11.20 $24.02 

900 Cubic Feet or more Not Applicable   $2.86 per 100 cubic feet of water consumed 

 

SECTION THREE:  That this rate increase shall pertain to all water/sewer bills issued by the 

City of Woodstock on or after May 1, 2015. 

 

SECTION FOUR:  That paragraph L in Section 6.4D.9, Utility Service Procedures, of the 

Woodstock City Code shall be amended to read as follows: 

 

L. Reinstatement Of Service: Upon payment to the finance director of the full 

delinquency, including a fifty dollar ($50.00) reinstatement fee and, when applicable, a 

twenty-five dollar ($25.00) posting fee, the city will reinstate the utility service. In the 

event reinstatement does not take place during regular business hours, the charges for the 

reinstatement fee will be increased by an additional seventy-five dollars ($75.00). Upon 

payment of the fees and reinstatement of utility service, the building shall, so far as the 

city is concerned, be again "fit for human occupancy" in this regard only. 

Should a city employee be sent to a property to turn off the water after proper notices and 

the water is left on because a payment arrangement is made at this point, a twenty five 

dollar ($25.00) dispatch fee will be charged. This fee will be in addition to the twenty 

five dollar ($25.00) posting fee, if applicable, but will be in lieu of the fifty dollar 

($50.00) reinstatement fee. 



 

Termination of service for any reason including nonpayment will not eliminate customer 

obligation from being charged as defined in sections 6.4D.3 and 6.4D.4 of this article. 

SECTION FIVE:  That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

SECTION SIX:  That this Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance Number    and 

shall be in full force and effect after its passage and approval as provided by law. 

 

Upon a motion by      and seconded by    , passed this 

21
ST

 day of April, 2015 by roll call vote as follows: 

 

 

Ayes: 

 

Nays: 

 

Abstentions: 

 

Absentees: 

 

      APPROVED: 

 

 

           

      Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST:      

                City Clerk, Arleen Quinn 

 

Passed:           

 

Approved:       

 

Published:       
 



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

       City of    

               
Depart ment  of  Publ ic  Wo rks  

3 2 6  Wash in gton  S t r ee t  

Wo od s tock ,  I l l i n o i s  6 0 0 9 8  
   8 1 5 /33 8 -6 11 8  ♦  Fax  8 1 5 /3 3 4 -2 2 6 3  

p ru sck o@ wo od s tock i l . g o v  

www. wo od s t ock i l . go v  

 

To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Shawn Parker, Sewer & Water Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Re: Approval to Waive Requirement for Competitive Bids and Purchase of 

Neptune Water Meters 

 

Date: April 15, 2015 

 

The proposed FY15/16 Water and Sewer CIP Budget includes funding to allow the City to 

continue the accelerated pace of replacing all residential water meters within the community.  

Over time aging meters begin to slowdown in favor of the customer by providing a reading that 

is less than accurate.  As more meters get replaced, the City will realize an increase in revenue 

from the more accurate sale of water.  In addition, these replacements should improve the 

efficiency of meter-reading operations, eliminate the need to enter a home to obtain a reading, 

result in less time dedicated toward meter reading, have a positive impact on the City’s water 

billed vs. pumped ratio, help in resolving billing disputes, and reduce chances of meter reading 

errors. 

 

Prior to the current fiscal year, approximately 200 new water meters were funded and replaced 

per year.  In FY14/15 and again in FY15/16, we are targeting to purchase and replace 

approximately 700 new water meters for installation by City staff.  The cost to replace 

“residential-type” water meters (up to and including 1 ½” meters) is borne by the City; there is 

no charge for labor or material to the customer.  In order to maintain consistency with 

approximately 8,000 water accounts in Woodstock, water meters need to be purchased from a 

single manufacturer.  This allows the City to utilize one software database for reading and 

billing, allows the City to standardize on units of measurement (which in Woodstock is 100 

cubic feet), and allows the City to minimize parts inventory.  The City has standardized on 

Neptune water meters and the authorized distributor that serves our region is Water Resources 

Incorporated located in Elgin, Illinois. 

 

Previously, the City ordered water meters once per month throughout the year.  However, the 

supplier continues to offer a discount ($5 per meter) when the City places a larger single order of 

100 meters or more.  The supplier also continues to offer an additional discount ($5 per meter) 

on our most frequently used meter if we commit to purchase a total of at least 650 meters (sum 

of all sizes) during the fiscal year. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44g



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

 

 

Water Meter Order <100 Order ≥100 Order ≥100 & min. 650 total 

5/8” x 1/2” $225 $220 $215 

3/4” $260 $255 $255 

1” $315 $310 $310 

 * Price per meter. 

 

The proposed FY 15/16 Budget, line item 60-54-7-775 includes $150,000 for the Water Meter 

Replacement Program.  This budget amount was based upon purchasing approximately 700 

water meters.  The exact quantity of each water meter size needed is unknown due to the fact that 

many of the meters are very old and meter size was not always accurately tracked in the past.  

However, based on experience we can confidently plan for the majority needing to be 5/8” x 1/2” 

water meters with a relatively small percentage needing to be either 3/4” or 1” water meters.  

 

It is important to note that a waiver of competitive bids requires a 2/3 majority vote in 

accordance with State Statutes. 

 

It is recommended that the requirement for competitive bids be waived and that the City 

Council approve the purchase of a minimum of 650 Neptune water meters during Fiscal 

Year 2015-2016 from Water Resources, Inc. for a total cost not to exceed $150,000. 

rstelford
Approved



 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

 

       City of    

               
 

Department of  Publ ic  Works                                                  phone 815 .338 . 6118  

326  Washin gton  St reet                                                      fax 815 .334 .226 3  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                       wsmith@woodstocki l . gov  

                                               www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

To:  Mr. Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Will Smith, Water Treatment Plant Superintendent 

 

Re: Approval of Resolution Authorizing a Change Order to the Contract for the 

Repair of a Softener at the First Street Water Treatment Plant 

 

Date:  April 15, 2015 

 

 

On February 18, 2014 the City Council awarded a contract to Manusos General Contracting Inc. 

for an amount not-to-exceed $23,579 for the repair of a hole in the cast metal wall of softener #1 

at the First Street Water Treatment Plant.  Prior to this award of contract the City received two 

other bids to consider.  The next lowest bid was nearly two times more than the Manusos bid.   

 

After the award of contract in early 2014, the City evaluated the appropriate timing of this 

project because the First Street Water Treatment Plant would have to be taken out of service to 

facilitate the softener repair.  Due to increased water use at that time, the City Administration 

decided to postpone the project until the fall of 2014.  In the fall of 2014, the City contacted 

Manusos to schedule the project and they advised that they could not hold their bid prices 

because too much time had passed and employees received a wage increase effective May 31, 

2014.   

 

As a result, Manusos provided the following information with regard to the increase they would 

need to the contract price in order to move forward with the project: 

 

 An increase of $0.55 per lineal inch for welding services w/a 250-inch minimum,  

 An increase of $10.16 per square inch for coating/spot repair w/a 250 sq. inch 

minimum, and  

 An increase of $4,968.00 in Manusos’ original contract for increase in materials and 

wages,  

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44h



These price increases were consistent with market conditions and the overall contract cost was 

significantly less than the next lowest bidder so Manusos was instructed to proceed.    

 

The City took the First Street Water Treatment Plant out of service on March 9, 2015 to facilitate 

the softener repair.  All of the work associated with the repair of the hole in the side of the vessel 

was completed at the end of the day Friday, March 13, 2015 except for the reinstallation of new 

ion exchange resin and sand.  Because the City was dependent upon the Seminary Avenue Water 

Treatment Plant to provide all of the City’s water demand, overtime costs ($649.08) were 

approved for work on Saturday, March 14, 2015 to install the resin and sand which provided the 

opportunity to put the facility back into service immediately thereafter, to safeguard the City 

from relying on the Seminary Avenue Water Treatment Plant for an extended period.  The plant 

was put back in service the following Monday. 

 

The increase in the contract described as the first and final change order for this project totals 

$8,294.58.  This amount is further detailed as follows: 

 

Amount of base contract awarded February 18, 2014  $21,625.00 

   Increase for welding services       $     137.50 

Increase for coating/surface prep    $  2,540.00 

Increase in Manusos’ cost for labor & material  $  4,968.00 

Overtime costs for work on Saturday, 3/14/2015  $     649.08 

New contract amount after change order is approved  $29,919.58 

 

As shown with this summary, the total net change to the contract (if these items are accepted by 

the City Council) will be an increase of $8,294.58.   

 

It is recommended that the attached Resolution, identified as Document No. _______, 

authorizing the first and final Change Order to the First Street Water Treatment Plant 

Softener Repair project, be approved resulting in an INCREASE of $8,294.58 to the 

contract amount.  The Water & Sewer CIP budget, line item #60-54-7-778, includes $33,500 to 

pay for this activity related to the First Street Water Treatment Plant improvement project in 

FY14/15.   

 

 

c: Paul Ruscko  

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
5



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

       City of    

               
 

Department of  Publ ic  Works                                                  phone 815 .338 . 6118  

326  Washin gton  St reet                                                      fax 815 .334 .226 3  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                       wsmith@woodstocki l . gov  

                                               www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

 

FINAL CHANGE ORDER NO.1 

FIRST STREET WTP SOFTENER REPAIR 
     April 21, 2015 

 

Owner:   City of Woodstock 

Contractor:   Manusos General Contracting, Inc. 

Date of Contract Award: February 18, 2014 

 

On February 18, 2014 the City Council of the City of Woodstock awarded a contract to provide 

all labor, equipment, and materials necessary to empty material and repair a hole in the cast 

metal shell of the #1 softener at the First Street Water Treatment Plant.   

 

The City postponed this project based upon water demand because the facility had to be removed 

from service in order to facilitate this repair and because a sufficient amount of time had passed, 

there was a wage increase approved for the contractor’s employees, and work was approved by 

the City at an overtime rate which was not factored into the original bid.  Therefore, the City 

Council has determined that; 

 

1) This change is germane to the original contract as approved and signed by the City of 

Woodstock; and  

2) This change is in the best interest of the City.   

 

Both the City of Woodstock and the Contractor agree that all terms, conditions, and 

specifications included with the bid documents and plans shall remain unchanged. 

 

 Contract amount as awarded    $ 21,625.00 

 Amount of this change order, not to exceed     $   8,294.58 

 Final contract amount     $ 29,919.58 

 

 

 

Approved By City of Woodstock: _______________________________________ 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-R-__________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER IN THE  

CONTRACT FOR FIRST STREET WATER TREATMENT PLANT SOFTENER REPAIR  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, on 

February 11, 2014 authorized the Mayor and Clerk to enter into a contract (the “Contract”) with 

Manusos General Contracting  (the “Contractor”) that exceeded $10,000.00; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Contract, the Contractor agreed to provide all 

labor, equipment, materials, supplies, and related items for the completion of the planned water 

treatment facility improvements and related work; and 

 

 WHEREAS, since that Contract was approved by the City Council, the scope of services to 

be provided by the Contractor needs to be revised, necessitating a change order in the Contract; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor is to make the changes requested by the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to 720 ILCS 5/33E-9, Change orders, the City Council finds (1) the 

circumstances said to necessitate the change in performance were not reasonably foreseeable at the 

time the Agreement was entered; and (2) the change is germane to the original Agreement as signed, 

and (3) the change order is in the best interest of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, 720 ILCS 5/33E-9 requires that any change order be made in writing. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

 That the provisions outlined in Change Order No. 1, dated April 21, 2015 is hereby approved 

and the City Manager or his designee is authorized to execute the Change Order incorporating said 

proposal. 

 

 Passed this _______________________________. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

      __________________________________________ 

      Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

Attest: 

____________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.5



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

       City of    

               
Depart ment  of  Publ ic  Wo rks  

3 2 6  Wash in gton  S t r ee t  

Wo od s tock ,  I l l i n o i s  6 0 0 9 8  
   8 1 5 /33 8 -6 11 8  ♦  Fax  8 1 5 /3 3 4 -2 2 6 3  

p ru sck o@ wo od s tock i l . g o v  

www. wo od s t ock i l . go v  

To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From: Paul R. Ruscko, Public Works Director 

 

Re: Approval to Purchase Bulk Rock Salt from Compass Minerals America Inc. for 

the Winter of 2015/2016 

 

Date: April 15, 2015 

 

The Department of Public Works is responsible for maintaining the City’s roadways and keeping 

them passable for motorists.  To be effective in clearing snow and ice from city streets in the 

winter months, Public Works needs to secure the necessary materials to ensure safe travel and 

respond to the needs of the community.  Therefore, it is essential that the City has an ample 

supply and that a supplier is secured to deliver salt on an “as needed” basis throughout the winter 

months. 

 

For many years, the City has been a participant in the State of Illinois Joint Purchasing Program 

for the purchase of bulk rock salt.  However, the City Administration reanalyzed this approach 

after receiving last season’s astronomical price of $140.19 per ton and determining that the 

Program doesn’t afford the City the opportunity to reject any and all bids received if it is in the 

best interest of the City.  As a result, the City Administration worked with the McHenry County 

Council of Governments, McHenry County, and other municipalities to determine other bulk 

rock salt procurement options in lieu of the State of Illinois Joint Purchasing Program.  

Ultimately, the McHenry County Purchasing Department offered to solicit bids for any unit of 

government that wanted to participate in their procurement process.  They agreed to include 

language which allowed all local government units to issue individual awards or rejections in 

accordance with the provisions of each participating local government unit.  Therefore, the City 

Administration elected to participate in the McHenry County Purchasing Department’s bulk rock 

salt procurement process. 

 

The following is a summary of the bulk rock salt bids received for the City of Woodstock: 

 

Vendor Bid 

Compass Minerals America Inc. – Overland Park, KS $71.51 

Cargill Deicing Technology – North Olmsted, OH $74.62 

Detroit Salt Co. – Detroit, MI $87.58 

Central Salt, LLC – Elgin, IL $109.00 

Morton Salt – Chicago, IL $149.74 

American Rock Salt – Mount Morris, NY No Bid 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44i



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

In the proposed Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) Fund section of the City’s FY15/16 Budget, $170,000 is 

allocated for the purchase of ice control salt in line item #12-00-6-572.  In March 2015, the City 

had to specify to McHenry County the amount of ice control salt that the City of Woodstock 

would like to reserve for use this coming winter.  Based upon the amount of road salt that has 

been used to maintain City streets within the past few years and accounting for all the salt 

currently in our storage facilities, 1,700 tons of salt has been reserved in this year’s contract for 

the City of Woodstock.  This quantity at the lowest bid contract price per ton equals $121,567. 

 

Through this contract, the City has an obligation to accept delivery of 100% (1,700 tons) of the 

estimated quantity, and the vendor has an obligation to deliver a maximum of 120% (2,040 tons) 

of the quantity at the contract price if the City desires.  All salt deliveries will be initiated by the 

Street & Fleet Superintendent on an as-needed basis.  It is impossible to predict what type of 

weather the City will experience this winter.  The weather will, however, have a direct bearing 

upon the total amount of ice control salt that the City will purchase, and the total price paid will 

be based upon the quantity of material that is ordered. 

 

In order to assure that there is an ample supply of bulk rock salt for the winter season, which is 

used to make City streets safe for motorists, it is recommended that the City Council approve 

the purchase of bulk rock salt to be supplied throughout the winter of FY15/16 by Compass 

Minerals America Inc., at a unit price of $71.51 per ton. 

 

 

c: All Bidders 

 Mark Miller 

rstelford
Approved



  

       City of    

               
Department of  Community & Economic Development                     phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                               fax  815.334-2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                          commdevdept@woodstocki l .gov  

                                                    www.woodstockil.gov 

 

April 15, 2015 

 

 

To:  Roscoe C. Stelford III, City Manager 

 

From:  Cort Carlson, Community & Economic Development Director 

 

APPROVAL OF A FIRE ALARM SYSTEM FOR THE PROPERTY AT 1300 S. 

EASTWOOD DRIVE IN LIEU OF CITY FIRE SUPRESSION REQUIRMENTS  

 

The building located at 1300 S. Eastwood Drive within the City of Woodstock, and commonly 

known as the former Schulhof Plumbing Supply building, was originally constructed in 1946 and 

has subsequently undergone several additions 

bringing the building’s current size to over 

26,000 square feet on 1.35 acres.  The building 

served several purposes throughout its lifetime 

and is most commonly known as a plumbing 

supply distributor.  The building has been 

vacant for approximately six years and is 

located just south of the Lake Avenue 

intersection along a very busy Route 47 corridor 

and represents a high-priority redevelopment 

area for the City.   

 

The City was contacted by the property owners 

who have a potential new lease holder for approximately 6,000 square feet of the building.  After 

reviewing the Unified Development Ordinance it was determined that the proposed use would be 

appropriate for the building.  Current City Building Codes require any building over 5,000 sq. ft. 

to have a fire suppression (sprinkler) system installed.  Because of the building’s age and since 

its previous use preceded the current code requirements the building has never had a fire 

suppression system installed.  Due to the change of use as proposed by the potential lease holder, 

per City Code they would be required to install a fire suppression system at great cost to the 

owner.  Subsequently the building owners are requesting approval to install an automatic and 

manual fire alarm system monitored by the City of Woodstock, including notification appliances 

provided throughout the tenant space in lieu of the fire suppression system.  The cost to install a 

fire suppression system in the building would prohibit the owners from moving forward with 

lease terms and secure a viable tenant for a portion of the building. 

 

Scott McClain and Chris Dahm, the building owners, went before the Building Board of 

Construction Commission on Tuesday, April 9th at which time the Commission 

recommended unanimously in favor of a waiver of the required fire suppression system 

and approval of a City-monitored automatic and manual fire alarm system.    

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44j



  

 

Based upon the above comments, and the recommendation of the Building Board of 

Construction Commission, the City Administration believes the request by the property owners 

of 1300 S. Eastwood Drive is appropriate.   

 

If the City Council agrees and supports a City-monitored automatic and manual fire alarm 

system at 1300 S. Eastwood, in lieu of fire suppression requirements, then it is 

recommended that Document Number __________, consisting of “An Ordinance Varying 

Building Code Provisions for Property at 1300 South Eastwood Drive” be approved.   

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
6



 
 

 

Minutes 
 

Building Board of Construction 

City of Woodstock 

 

April 13th, 2015 

 

Call to Order 
 

A meeting of the Building Board of Construction Commission was called to order at 7:00 p.m., 

Thursday April 9
th

, 2015.  Members present were, Tom LaFontaine, John Loacker, John Kohler 

and Mike Hill.  City staff present was Dan Streit.  Members not present Steve Zimmerman. 

 

Approval of Minutes 
 

Motion by Mike Hill, seconded by John Loaker to approve the minutes from the April 30th, 2014 

meeting.  All ayes, motion carried. 

 

Agenda Item 3. 
 

Building owners Scott McClain and Chris Dahm have requested to install an automatic and manual 

fire alarm system monitored by the City of Woodstock, including notification appliances provided 

throughout the tenant space.  This request is in lieu of a fire suppression system which would be 

required by the City’s building code amendment. The building code amendment requires any new 

building or any building that changes use, that is 5,000 sq. ft. or larger to have a fire suppression 

system.  This building which is located at 1300 S Eastwood Dr. currently has no fire suppression or 

alarm system. 

 

The building owners discussed how they have a tenant called Reclaimed, owned by Brent Hollenberg 

who would like to rent out approximately 6,000 sq. ft. of space for his furniture repair store.  They 

repurpose older wooden furniture pieces and other wooden items like barn wood and beams. Brent 

will use only water-based paints and finishes that are stored in a paint storage cabinet when not in 

use.  He will also use a dust collection system at all points of dust creation. 

 

Board members asked about exiting the building from the location because it looked as if only one 

exit was available.   The building owners stated that they were aware of that issue and would comply 

with all adopted building codes and have drawings prepared by a licensed professional. 

 

       City of    

               
 
Department of  Communi ty  Development                                                  phone 815 .338 .4305  
121  W.  Calhoun St r ee t                                                      f ax  815 .334 .2269  
Woods tock ,  I l l ino i s  60098                                 commdevdept@woods tock i l . gov  
                                              www.woods tock i l . gov  

 

 



 

Motion by John Kohler, to approve the request to install an automatic and manual fire alarm system 

monitored by the City of Woodstock, in lieu of a fire suppression system. Seconded by Tom 

LaFontaine.  All ayes, motion carried. 

 

 

Adjournment  
 

Motion by John Kohler, seconded by Mike Hill, to adjourn.  All ayes, motion carried.  Meeting 

adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Daniel Streit 

Building Inspector 

City of Woodstock 





  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 15-O-______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE VARYING BUILDING  

CODE PROVISIONS FOR PROPERTY AT  

1300 SOUTH EASTWOOD DRIVE 

 

Be it ordained by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 

Illinois, as follows: 

 

Section One.   That Chapters 1.1, 1.2, and 1.14, all in Title 7 of the Woodstock City Code, are 

hereby varied to allow the remodeling and reuse of an existing building known as 1300 South 

Eastwood Drive, said variation requested by Scott McClain and Chris Dahm (owners) on behalf 

of Brent Hollenberg/Reclaimed LLC (tenant), without the installation of an automatic fire 

suppression system but subject to compliance with all other building and construction code 

requirements, including those pertaining to the installation of required automatic and manual fire 

alarm and emergency notification systems, of the City of Woodstock. 

 

Section Two.  That the Board of Building Construction conducted a public meeting on April 9, 

2015 regarding the proposed building code variation and unanimously recommended its approval 

to the City Council. 

 

Section Three.  Those representatives of the Woodstock Fire Rescue District and Fire Safety 

Consultants, Inc. (the City of Woodstock’s fire safety consultant) have recommended approval of 

the requested variation. 

 

Section Four.  That this ordinance shall be known as Ordinance Number 15-O-_________ and 

shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval as provided by law. 

 

 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.6



Section Five.  Any ordinances or parts thereof or any regulations in conflict with this ordinance 

are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

APPROVED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 

Illinois, this __________ day of April, 2015. 

 

                                             

 

              

       ______________________________ 

                                          Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

Attest:         

 

 

________________________________    

City Clerk Arlene Quinn     

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  City of    

               
Department of  Community & Economic Development                     phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                               fax  815.334-2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                          commdevdept@woodstocki l .gov  

                                                    www.woodstockil.gov 
 

 

April 10, 2015 

 

 

To:  Roscoe C. Stelford III, City Manager 

 

From:  Jim Kastner, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

 

DAKOTA RIDGE PHASE 3 – FINAL PLAT EXTENSION 

 

Pat Stanton, the developer of Dakota Ridge Subdivision, will be appearing before the City 

Council to request an extension of time within which to record the approved final plat for phase 

3 of this subdivision.  Correspondence from Mr. Stanton regarding his request is attached.  This 

is the third such extension requested for this project.  

 

The final plat of subdivision for Dakota Ridge Phase 3 was approved by the City Council on 

May 19, 2009.  In accordance with provisions set forth in the Unified Development Ordinance, a 

one-time administrative extension of 12 months in which to record the final plat was granted and 

the deadline for recording it was extended to May 19, 2011.  On March 15, 2011 and at the 

request of the developer, the City Council adopted a resolution approving an additional 24 

months in which to record the final plat.  A second extension was approved by the City Council 

on April 2, 2013.  As a result of these actions, the current deadline for recording the final plat is 

May 19, 2015. 

 

The minutes of the April 2, 2013 meeting specifically included a reference related to the 

approval granted by the City Council and has been excerpted below: 

 

 
 

The Dakota Ridge Preliminary Plat was originally approved by the City Council on December 

19, 1989 and provided for a total of 111 lots on the 80-acre site.  Final plat approval for the first 

phase of Dakota Ridge, which contains 20 lots, occurred on August 7, 1990.  A final plat for the 

second phase, containing 30 lots, was granted on August 7, 1990.  Phase 3, which has an area of 

43 acres, was originally intended to contain 61 lots.  The developer, however, at the request of 

the City, agreed to reduce the number of lots to 41 in order to provide for dedicated conservation 

areas and wetland buffer zones.   

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44k



 

Mr. Stanton has requested an additional year to record the final plat.  He has stated in his 

correspondence that the reasons for this request continue to be based on a sluggish housing 

market and general economic conditions over the past several years. He has also advised City 

staff that the final plat is the same as what was originally approved by the Plan Commission and 

Council, and that site layout and design changes made during the final plat approval process 

remain in place; there are no changes being considered or proposed.  Mr. Stanton has indicated 

that if the extension is denied, he will have to resubmit the same final plat to the Plan 

Commission and City Council for their review and approval.  According to Mr. Stanton, this will 

only add additional time to the development process and delay completion of the Dakota Ridge 

development. 

 

If the City Council is supportive of Mr. Stanton’s request, then it is recommended that 

Document Number __________, consisting of “A Resolution Granting a Third Extension of 

Time in Which to Record the Dakota Ridge Phase 3 Final Plat,” be approved.  

 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
7



 
 

 

 

 



 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 15-R-______ 

 

 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A THIRD  

EXTENSION OF TIME IN WHICH TO RECORD THE  

FINAL PLAT FOR DAKOTA RIDGE PHASE 3 
 

 

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2009 the final plat of subdivision for Dakota Ridge Phase 3 was 

approved by the City Council; and     

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance said final plat 

was required to be recorded within one year of the date of its approval, i.e., by May 19, 2010; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance, an additional 

year in which to record the final plat was granted and the deadline for its recording was extended 

to May 19, 2011; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance, the City 

Council granted additional extensions in which to record the final plat and the deadline for its 

recording was extended to May 19, 2015; and 

 

WHEREAS, the owner and developer of Dakota Ridge Phase 3 has requested an additional year 

in which to record the aforesaid final plat.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

SECTION 1: The deadline for recording the final plat of subdivision for Dakota Ridge Phase 3 is 

hereby extended by one year to May 19, 2016. 

 

SECTION 2:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of this 

Resolution shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment 

shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which remainder shall remain 

and continue in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

Dakota Ridge Phase 3 Final Plat Recording Extension - Page 1 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.7



 

 

 

 

SECTION 3:  This Resolution shall be known as Resolution Number 15-R-  and shall be 

in full force and effect upon its passage and approval as provided by law. 

 

SECTION 4: This Resolution approved this _______ day of _______________, 2015. 

 

Ayes: 

 

Nays:  

 

Abstentions:  

 

Absentees:  

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

        Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

(SEAL) 

 

 

ATTEST: ___________________________ 

         City Clerk Arleen Quinn 

 

 

Passed:   

 

Approved:  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dakota Ridge Phase 3 Final Plat Recording Extension – Page 2 



       City of 

               
 
Woodstock Opera House  phone 815 .338 .4212  

John  Scharres ,  Direc tor  fax 815 .334 .2287  

121  Van Buren  St ree t  operahouse@woodstocki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098  www.woodsto cki l . go v  

  

  

 

 

Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

TO:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

FROM: John Scharres, Opera House Director 

DATE: April 15, 2015 

RE:  Discussion Concerning Downtown Perimeter Lighting 

At the February 3
rd

 City Council meeting, a discussion ensued concerning the purchase and 

installation of LED lights to replace the existing perimeter lighting installed on the buildings 

throughout the downtown.  Some of the Council members expressed concerns that the initial 

LED lights installed on the Stage Left Café, which wrapped around the corner on the building 

adjacent building down Johnson Street were too bright and looked more linear in appearance 

compared to the current system.   

As a result, staff did conduct additional research to determine if new products were available 

which provided a greater distance between each LED node, but would still provide an 

encapsulated structure to ensure longevity and be visually unobtrusive.  No new lighting 

products are currently available which would significantly modify the aesthetics of the proposed 

exterior lighting upgrades.  However, Opera House staff did modify the existing lighting to 

utilize a dimmer to reduce the brightness of the lights.  The Mayor and City Council members 

have been afforded the opportunity to view the LED lights at full brightness (i.e., on Johnson 

Street) and compare to the same lights significantly dimmed (i.e., on the front of Stage Left 

Café). 

By installing dimmers within each segment of the project, the City would be able to adjust the 

brightness of the lights based on the final design of the new system.  However, this will increase 

the costs of the project (i.e., estimated to be less than 10%) and will add an additional point of 

future maintenance/possible failure to the system.  In the opinion of the Mayor and City Council 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
April 21, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 44l



members, this may be more than offset by the additional control of the lighting elements and the 

aesthetic options that can be provided on behalf of the downtown. 

Therefore, direction is requested from the Mayor and City Council to determine the future 

design elements for the replacement of the downtown lighting.  Note: the existing lighting 

system is nearing failure and staff does not recommend replacing the existing system in a 

similar manner with PVC pipe with four-watt C7 incandescent lamps. 

rstelford
Approved


	April 21, 2015 City Council Agenda
	A. Floor Discussion: Recognition of Julie Dillon
	B. Minutes of Previous Meetings: April 7, 2015 City Council Meeting
	C. Warrants:
	Warrant 3659
	Warrant 3660
	MFT #546

	D. Minutes and Reports:
	Community and Economic Development Report - March 2015
	Police Department Report - March 2015
	Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes-January 13, 2015
	Transportation Commission Minutes - January 21, 2015


	E. Manager's Report No.44
	1. Liquor License Amendment
	Doc.1

	2. Event Request and Outdoor Dining Request-Tequilaville 
	3. Liquor License Amendment
	Doc.2

	4. Annual Budget for FY15/16
	Doc.3

	5. Schedule of Authorized Positions
	6. FY15/16 Water and Sewer Rates
	Doc.4

	7. Award of Contract - Water Meters 
	8. Change Order - Water Treatment Plant
	Doc.5

	9. Purchase - Ice Control Salt
	10. Fire Alarm System
	Doc.6

	11. Dakota Ridge Phase 3
	Doc.7


	DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	12. Downtown Perimeter Lighting

	Untitled



